
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
JOINT MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL 

AND PLAN COMMISSION 
 MAY 8, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
A joint meeting of the Common Council and Plan Commission of the City of Cedarburg, 
Wisconsin, will be held on Monday, May 8, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall, W63 N645 
Washington Avenue, Cedarburg, WI, in the Council Chambers.  
 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  - Mayor Kip Kinzel 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE  

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
4.        ROLL CALL:  Present – 

 
 
 
 

Common Council – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members  
John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick 
Verhaalen, Mitch Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike 
O’Keefe 
 
Plan Commission – Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Member 
John Czarnecki, Dan von Bargen, Heather Cain, Mark 
Poellot, Mark Burgoyne, and Greg Zimmerschied 
 

5. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES* - April 18, 2017, April 24, 2017, and April 25, 2017 
 
7. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS** Comments from citizens on a 

listed agenda item will be taken when the item is addressed by the Council.  At this time 
individuals can speak on any topic not on the agenda for up to 5 minutes, time 
extensions at the discretion of the Mayor.  No action can be taken on items not listed 
except as a possible referral to committees, individuals or a future Council agenda item. 

 
8. PRESENTATIONS  
 
* A. Consider Resolution No. 2017-10 commending retiring Detective/Sergeant 

Jeffrey Vahsholtz for his years of service; and action thereon 
 
* B.  Presentation of the 2016 Audit Report; and direction thereon 
 
* C. Presentation of the 2016 Library Report 
 
* D. Presentation of the Arrabelle traffic study; and possible action thereon 

 
The Plan Commission will be excused after this item 

 

1 of 381



9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
* A. Consider approval of a Revolving Loan Fund loan for TemperaturePro; and 

action thereon (ad hoc Debt/Investment Committee, 05/02/17) 
 
* B. Consider proposal from Ruekert and Mielke for Cedarburg to participate in the 

Mid Moraine Water Quality Collective; and action thereon 
 
* C. Consider engineering proposal from GRAEF for additional testing and analysis of 

the Columbia Mills Dam per DNR requirements; and action thereon 
 
* D. Consider request from WE Energies to rent the former remote receiving station at 

N144 W5888 Pioneer Road from June 1, 2017 to April 20, 2018 for outdoor 
storage of power poles, cable, and switchgear; and action thereon 

 
* E. Consider appeal of the WPDES permit and request for contested case hearing; 

and action thereon 
 
* F. Consider Resolution No. 2017-11 declaring May 13, 2017 as International 

Migratory Bird Day; and action thereon 
 
* G. Consider request for additional funding for purchase of a front end loader; and 

action thereon 
 
 H. Consider Mayor Kinzel’s appointments to various Boards, Committees, and 

Commissions; and action thereon 
 
* I. Consider payment of bills dated 04/28/17, transfers for the period 04/20/17 

through 05/02/17, and payroll for the period 04/09/17 through 04/22/17; and 
action thereon 

 
*** J. Consider License Applications; and action thereon 
    
   1. Authorize issuance of 2017-2018 new and renewal Operators License 

applications (see attached list); and action thereon 
 
           2. Consider approval of new Operators License applications for the period 

ending June 30, 2017 for Elizabeth A. Albers, Kimberly R. Eggleston, 
Diane M. Lane, Saul Benjamin Morales McQuaid; and action thereon 

    
    3. Consider issuance of a 6-month Class B Beer license to C. Wiesler’s Inc.,  

 Michael G. Jackson, Agent, for the Cedar Creek Park Concession Stand,  
 N52 W5925 Portland Road, from May 8, 2017 to November 8, 2017;
 and action thereon 

   
10.       REPORTS OF CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
* A. Administrator’s Report 
* B. Building Inspector’s Report – April 2017 

2 of 381



11. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
** A. Comments and suggestions from citizens 
 B. Comments and announcements by Council Members  

C. Mayor’s Report  
 1. Proclamation – Older Americans Month - May 

 
12.    ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
  

It is anticipated the Common Council will adjourn to closed session pursuant to State 
Statutes 19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the Council who is rendering oral or 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted with respect to litigation in which it is 
or is likely to become involved, more specifically,  to discuss the Prochnow Landfill.   
Approval of closed session minutes of 04/18/17 and 04/25/17. 

   
13.    RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
  
14.    ADJOURNMENT 
 
Individual members of various boards, committees, or commissions may attend the above meeting.  It 
is possible that such attendance may constitute a meeting of a City board,  committee or commission 
pursuant to State ex. rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553, 494 NW 2d 408 (1993).  
This notice does not authorize attendance at either the above meeting or the Badke Meeting, but is 
given solely to comply with the notice requirements of the open meeting law. 

 
 
* Information attached for Council; available through City Clerk’s Office.   
** Citizen comments should be primarily one-way, from citizen to the Council.  Each citizen who wishes to 

speak   shall be accorded one opportunity at the beginning of the meeting and one opportunity at the end 
of the meeting.  Comments should be kept brief.  If the comment expressed concerns a matter of public 
policy, response from the Council will be limited to seeking information or acknowledging that the citizen 
has been understood.  It is out of order for anyone to debate with a citizen addressing the Council or for 
the Council to take action on a matter of public policy.  The Council may direct that the concern be placed 
on a future agenda.  Citizens will be asked to state their name and address for the record and to speak 
from the lectern for the purposes of recording their comments. 

*** Information available through the Clerk’s Office. 
 

UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO 
ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES. 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (262) 375-7606 

E-MAIL:  cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
05/04/17 ckm    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 of 381

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


Authorize issuance of new Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018: 
 
Wendy S. Bolz Alex M. Hauschel Tyler T. Schemenauer 
 
 
Authorize issuance of renewal Operator’s Licenses for period ending June 30, 2018: 
 
Emma M. Allison Jill Hepburn Kenneth W. Reid II 
Hannah C. Aronson Sarah L. Hepburn Ronald H. Reimer 
Kevin J. Bachmann Leslie E. Heppe Troy D. Reissmann 
Deborah Bath Bradley J. Herian Erin A. Riley 
Lisa F. Bender James M. Hintz Mark D. Roberts 
Lindsey J. Berndt Elizabeth D. Hoffman Ann M. Ruska 
Michael C. Besaw Teri Jackson Elizabeth M. Sattler 
Nan J. Bolker Matthew C. Jackson Rhyann E. Schottler 
Caitlyn C. Burns Kristin V. Kamke Susan E. Schrader 
Abigail R. Carpenter Mikayla F. Keough Alan M. Schroeder 
Pamela M. Caserta Hugdahl Charles A. Kison Richard S. Siefert 
Annette L. Chiddister Woods Nekana L. Kitzerow Jean M. Snow-Lambo 
Christine Christon Bruce K. Knutson Steven K. Stauske 
Joel M. Christophersen Shannon M. Kolbach Julie M. Streicher 
Andrew W. Conley Bruce A. Krenzke Laura M. Struebing 
Bill W. Conley Shirley K. Krenzke Gene Szudrowitz 
Megan T. Czisny Daniel W. Kropidlowski Jeff M. Theisen 
Mary E. Dolezal Terry B. Krueger Jodie E. Thierfelder 
Tricia A. Dooley Pamela S. LaBouve Scott R. Thomas 
Monica J. Dorsey Diane M. Lane Clayton A. Tietz 
Shelley M. Doxtator James A. Lee Kelly E. Timple 
Gordon K. Dreblow Dennis H. Loberger Karie L. Todd 
Jonathan P. Dunne Karissa J. Mathias Gerald E. Truchan 
Eric W. Engstrom Brandon J. McCarthy Abby M. Tucholka 
Suzanne V. Ernst Cheyenne C. McDaniel Richard L. von Trebra 
Judi K. Even Saul Benjamin Morales McQuaid Frank N. Vroman 
Robert J. Flom Jason D. Mutza Clarey Wamhoff 
Kathlyn T. Geracie Sharon L. Nelson Larry D. Weidmann 
Blaine E. Gibson Richard H. Nielsen Patrick R. Weyer 
Daniel D. Gogin Daniel S. Pals Jeffrey A. Wrobbel 
Kim M. Gordon Sheryl L. Pals John E. Zarling 
Eric E. Grassel Maureen M. Peck  
Jeremy M. Gruenweller David J. Polacek  
Christopher S. Haywood Krystal L. Poppe  
Andrew W. Heidtke Bryan J. Price  
Gerald J. Henning Nicholas J. Rech  
 

4 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170424-1 

                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 

April 24, 2017 

        

A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 

Monday, April 24, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 

Chambers.   Mayor Kinzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Present  -  Common Council:   Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 

Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe  

  

                       Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Clerk Constance 

McHugh, Parks, Recreation and Forestry Director Mikko Hilvo, 

Deputy Treasurer/Payroll Officer Kelly Livingston, Light and Water 

General Manager Dale Lythjohan, retired Parks and Forestry 

crewperson Jim Grube, Building Maintenance Engineer John Oswald, 

Assistant City Attorney Tim Schoonenberg, Economic Development 

Coordinator Mary Sheffield, Economic Development Board Members 

Greg Zimmerschied, Mike Pahl,  and Lynn Knutson, interested 

citizens and news media 

 

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

At Mayor Kinzel’s request, City Clerk McHugh verified that notice of this meeting was provided to 

the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, to all news 

media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the Wisconsin Open 

Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide their input during the 

citizen comment portion of the meeting. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-07 COMMENDING RETIRING DPW CREWPERSON JIM 

GRUBE FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE 

 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adopt 

Resolution No. 2017-07 commending retiring DPW crewperson Jim Grube for his 33 years of 

service to the City.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Grube said the City has a great Public Works crew and facility.  He thanked the Council for this 

acknowledgement. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-08 COMMENDING RETIRING BUILDING MAINTENANCE 

ENGINEER JOHN OSWALD FOR HIS YEARS OF SERVICE 
 

Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adopt 

Resolution No. 2017-08 commending retiring Building Maintenance Engineer John Oswald for his 

37 years of service to the City.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

5 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-2 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Mr. Oswald thanked the Council for the recognition. 

 

CONSIDER FUNDING A BRAND STRENGTHENING INITIATIVE 
 

Economic Development Coordinator Mary Sheffield made the following presentation on a possible 

brand strengthening initiative: 

 Your brand is what people say about you when you are not around. 

 BRANDING is what you do about it. 

 Cedarburg already has a BRAND, and people make decisions based on it. 

 

The Economic Development Board has been discussing Cedarburg’s brand for several years and 

most recently… 

 Cedarburg School District’s interest in a cohesive marketing strategy to attract students. 

 Exposure to community branding efforts through Wisconsin Economic Development 

Corporation and Tourism: 

o Columbus, IN website 

o Green County, WI site visit 

o Lake Bluff, IL site visit 

 Cedarburg Chamber of Commerce branding interest 

 Support from key Cedarburg organizations 

 

Last year as the Economic Development Board became more project focused, a Branding Project 

sub-committee was formed with Lynn Knutson, Michael Pahl, Greg Zimmerschied, and Mary 

Sheffield. 

 

Why Brand Strengthening for Cedarburg? 

 Reinforce Cedarburg’s commitment to its residents, businesses and tourists. 

 To convey the warmth and sense of family that defines Cedarburg. 

 Obtain research to support decision making. 

 Improve cohesiveness among Cedarburg organizations. 

 Increase effective communication. 

 Surrounding communities are doing more in terms of investing, beautification, and 

marketing. 

 

Steps to Brand Strengthening – The Process 

 Education 

 Research 

 Insights and Strategy 

 Creativity and Design 

 Action 

 Evaluation and Results Tracking 

 

Lynn Knutson, owner of Frill and Economic Development Board Member, discussed why this 

initiative is important to her as a downtown business owner.  Ms. Knutson said she worked for 

Harley Davidson for 15 years on branding projects.  She asked for the support of the Council on this 

6 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-3 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

matter because the information and knowledge that is gathered will be invaluable.  Brand 

strengthening will allow the community to focus on marketing needs and will provide the tools to 

market the City in a unified voice.  She said the City cannot afford to do nothing. 

 

Economic Development Board Member Mike Pahl said he was skeptical about this project at the 

beginning.  He said members of the Economic Development Board took a field trip to Green 

County, WI and Lake Bluff, IL.  Both entities did a great job with brand strengthening and he was 

impressed with work that was done for both by the branding company.  He said branding will 

connect people to this community and will bring everyone together. 

 

Jennifer Andreas, Executive Director of the Chamber, said she was employed by the Girl Scouts for 

18 years.  The Girl Scouts did a major rebranding in 2012.  During this process the organization 

found that there were a lot of inconsistent perceptions and the organization needed to increase its 

brand relevancy.  Brand strengthening defined who the Girl Scouts are.  She said brand 

strengthening will ingrain how the community articulates who we are and how to present ourselves 

in a better, more precise way. 

 

Ms. Andreas said this initiative can only be done with the support of and from the City.  It is 

estimated to cost $90,000.  The entities to be involved include: 

 The City of Cedarburg 

 The Cedarburg School District 

 Cedarburg Light and Water 

 The Cedarburg Landmarks Preservation Society 

 The Ozaukee Bank Gift to the Future Fund 

 Cornerstone Buildings, LLC.   

 

The initiative will be stronger when everyone works together said Ms. Andreas. 

 

Council Member Thome stated it is the idea that brand strengthening will determine who we are 

really hits home.  She said the knowledge that will be gained from this initiative will allow 

everyone to plan more accurately.  The City’s efforts towards business and residential development 

will be based on research.  She said the City has just gone through long debates on the needs 

regarding residential development.  Research can more accurately define the needs. 

 

Council Member Thome further stated that this endeavor will help the community to work 

cohesively and proactively together over the long term.  If every organization talks about Cedarburg 

in a similar manner, it’s a stronger message.  That is not to remove our individual identities or 

efforts but to be unified in how we present Cedarburg and how we describe who we are.  Council 

Member Thome said this is an investment into the future of Cedarburg that will help ensure that our 

business community thrives and grows.  This will strengthen and diversify the tax base. 

 

Council Member Thome said it took her a while to be on board with this effort but she is a strong 

advocate of pro-active economic development efforts.  Strong partners stepping up to share the 

costs as well as the oversight are the final steps for her. She thanked all entities who have stepped 

forward. 

 

7 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-4 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Council Member Verhaalen asked what the goals are and how the goals will be measured. 

 

Mr. Pahl said if the community can build an identity that is attractive or powerful and commands 

affection and wonder, a sense of belonging and confidence and trust, it will help to identify many of 

the challenges that face the community.  It can motivate citizens and stakeholders to work together. 

It can make people and firms reluctant to leave even if the competition is fierce. 

 

Economic Development Board Member Greg Zimmerschied said the goal is to achieve a message 

that attracts people, tourism, and business.  He said this is a great opportunity for all organizations 

to work together to lessen the financial burden to the City. 

 

Jill Hepburn, W62 N736 Riveredge Drive, said the ultimate goal is to maintain the wonderful 

quality of life in the City. 

 

Council Member O’Keefe asked if a certain demographic is being targeted. 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied said he believes the School District is looking to attract families with young 

children.  He said this project will tell the community what segments are underserved. 

 

Council Member O’Keefe asked if the proposed $90,000 is an initial investment. 

 

Ms. Sheffield said the $90,000 will cover all the steps mentioned in the presentation and also follow 

up in one year. 

 

Mayor Kinzel said there likely will be costs to implement the initiatives. 

 

Ms. Sheffield said the branding sub-committee of the Economic Development Board saw a 

presentation at a Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation event from a company called 

North Star in Tennessee.  Members viewed the communities on-line where the firm had done work.  

The sub-committee contacted North Star and received a proposal. 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied said there will be a steering committee with representatives from each group 

involved.  The City will be one member.  The contribution will be $15,000 from each member.  He 

said it is likely the project will be dead if there not a contribution from the City. 

 

Council Member Verhaalen asked who would select the brand, and whether the Town of Cedarburg 

has been asked to participate.  Council Member Arnett agreed the Town could benefit from this. 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied said the steering committee will select the brand.  He said the Town was not 

asked to be involved because the assets are in the City.  He said this will be a City of Cedarburg 

branding effort. 

 

Council Member Regenfuss asked how the committee will obtain resident input. 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied said Lake Bluff, IL had town hall meetings and contacted groups in the 

community for input.  He said the group will reach out to community leaders and possibly visitors 

to the Visitor Center. 

8 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-5 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Council Member Czarnecki said he is not comfortable with this idea or cost.  He said he does not 

agree that if the City is not involved, the project is dead.  He said he is not saying this is good or 

bad, but that every group in the community has different ideas, as do the residents.  He said the 

Council saw this during the discussions on the proposal to redevelop the St. Francis Borgia property 

when a large anti-development group came forward.  He asked what the costs will be to implement 

this. 

 

Council Member Verhaalen said he is trying to understand what this initiative will do for the City.  

He asked what the return on investment will be. 

 

Bruce Knutson, W63 N680 Washington Avenue, said brands sometimes do not know how to 

communicate brands.  He said this process will assist in gathering information and data for the 

stakeholders of the community to help provide a consistent message. 

 

Brian Collins, W61 N479 Washington Avenue and member of the Cedarburg Landmarks 

Preservation Society, said it is very competitive to attract residents and businesses to the City.  This 

project is a way to determine what brings people to Cedarburg and will market Cedarburg directly. 

 

Council Member Arnett said his constituents will pay for half the costs of this. He asked how the 

City will benefit financially. 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied asked what this will cost the City.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said 

$15,000 will add just over one penny to the City’s tax rate. 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied said the outcome will be a common template to increase the power of marketing 

and advertising in the City.   

 

Mayor Kinzel said this initiative will strengthen the community’s message and get it out there.  The 

end result will be a tool that will be helpful for the City. 

 

Council Member Dieffenbach asked if money for this is included in the 2017 budget.  City 

Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said money is not included in the budget for this, but funds could 

come from the Fund Balance. 

 

Council Member Arnett said there are likely many residents in the City with marketing experience 

that could help out with this.  He asked if more groups could be involved. 

 

Mike Farley, W72 N903 Harrison Avenue, agreed with Council Member Arnett that there are 

marketing people in the City. He suggested these people not be overlooked. He said there will be a 

return on investment but the community must take a leap of faith.  If one business is attracted it will 

be worth the cost. 

 

Jack Henke, 10635 Foxcroft Drive, Cedarburg, said a professional is needed for this project, but the 

local talent in the community can be tapped for this. This is not just about who we are, but who we 

are perceived to be. 

 

9 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-6 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Mr. Zimmerschied said a decision tonight by Council to support the initiative is being asked.  He 

asked the Council to respect the work of the Economic Development Board. 

 

General Manager Lythjohan said if Cedarburg Light and Water participates in this, it will not be 

funded through rates.  He said it would be done knowing there will be a return on the investment. 

 

Council Member Verhaalen asked if any businesses have been consulted about this. 

 

Ms. Sheffield said she talked to a few businesses.  The idea was also discussed at several Economic 

Development Board meetings. 

 

Council Member Regenfuss said this needs to be done and is a big deal, but at this time he is not on 

board with the dollar amount or the process.  He said he thinks there needs to be more discussion 

about it at the Council level and he needs to spend more time on it. 

 

Mayor Kinzel said the project will pay for itself. 

 

Council Member Thome said she cannot imagine not participating in this.  She said the City does 

not spend much money for economic development. 

 

Council Member Arnett said he can support this but he is concerned about the costs of 

implementation.  He suggested it be put in next year’s budget and paid for over two years, and that 

an RFP process be followed. 

 

Council Member Regenfuss said this is a good thing, but he is unclear about the process.  He said he 

will do more follow up on his end. 

 

Todd Sprenger, N66 W6506 Cleveland Street, said this is a $15,000 investment that will impact 

many decisions that cannot be pulled back once made.  He said the Council is doing due diligence 

by asking for more information. 

 

Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O’Keefe, to approve 

contributing one-sixth of the cost of the brand strengthening initiative in an amount not to exceed 

$15,000, with funds to come from the 2018 budget, and subject to sending out RFPs.  The motion 

carried with Council Members Arnett, Regenfuss, Thome, and O’Keefe voting aye and Council 

Members Czarnecki, Dieffenbach, and Verhaalen voting nay. 

 

The Council welcomed any additional information that can be provided. 

 

CONSIDER GRANTING AN EASEMENT TO CEDARBURG LIGHT AND WATER FOR 

A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT N144 W5888 PIONEER ROAD 

 

Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Czarnecki, to grant an easement to 

Cedarburg Light and Water for a portion of the property located at N144 W5888 Pioneer Road.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

10 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-7 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 DESIGNATING AND AUTHORIZING 

SIGNATURES FOR THE CITY OF CEDARBURG CHECKING AND SAVINGS 

ACCOUNTS FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 
 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 

Resolution No. 2017-09 designating and authorizing signatures for the City checking and savings 

accounts for the ensuing year.  Motion carried unanimously. 

  

CONSIDER MAYOR KINZEL’S APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 

COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS 

 

Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O’Keefe, to approve 

Mayor Kinzel’s appointment of Todd Bugnacki as School Representative on the Library Board and 

Mayor Kinzel’s appointment of DeWayna Cherrington as a member of the Library Board. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

The remainder of appointments will be made at the May 8 Common Council meeting. 

 

CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-12 INCREASING THE ALLOCATED FUNDS IN THE 

GENERAL FUND AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

 

Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2017-12 increasing the allocated funds in the General Fund and Capital 

Improvement Fund.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

CONSIDER MAYOR KINZEL’S COUNCIL MEMBER APPOINTMENTS 
 

Motion made by Council Member O’Keefe, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 

Mayor Kinzel’s Council Member appointments to Boards, Committees and Commissions as 

follows.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Council Member John Czarnecki (1
st
 District) 

 (Plan Commission Rep) 

Personnel Committee 

 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee 

 

Council Member Jack Arnett (2
nd

 District) 

 Personnel Committee 

 Economic Development Board 

 Public Art Commission 

  

Council Member Dick Dieffenbach (3
rd

 District) 

 Library Board 

 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee 

Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee 

 

 

11 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-8 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Council Member Rick Verhaalen (4
th

 District) 

 Parks, Recreation and Forestry Board 

 Ad hoc Mayors Enhancement Award Committee 

 

Council Member Mitch Regenfuss (5
th

 District) 

Community Development Authority 

 Ad hoc Debt/Investment Advisory Committee 

 Ad hoc Creekwalk Committee 

 

Council Member Patricia Thome (6
th

 District) 

 Light and Water Commission 

Landmarks Commission 

 Ad hoc Cedar Creek Cleanup Committee 

 

Council Member Mike O’Keefe (7
th

 District) 

 (Council President)  

Personnel Committee 

 Public Works & Sewerage Commission 

Festival Committee Liaison  

Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee (Alt.) 

 

CONSIDER POSSIBLE POLICY REGARDING CONTACTING THE MUNICIPAL 

ATTORNEY(S) 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said Council Member Czarnecki expressed interest in the 

development of policy as to who can contact the Municipal Attorney.  She said that the Mayor, 

Council Members, and Department Heads are able to contact the Municipal Attorney; however, it is 

best to contact her prior to determine if the matter has already been addressed or if the question can 

be answered by someone else.  This will help to cut down on legal bills. 

 

Council Member Czarnecki said a policy will ensure the Municipal Attorney is clear as to who can 

contact his/her office.  He said there have been instances of residents contacting the Municipal 

Attorney for legal advice. 

 

Assistant City Attorney Tim Schoonenberg said his office prefers a chain of command.  He said it is 

more efficient if the City Administrator aggregates the questions and issues and forwards them to 

his office.  When his office is contacted by a resident, Council Member, or Department Head it is 

made known that the office is representing the City, not the individual. 

 

The Council directed City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes and the City Attorney’s office to draft a 

policy regarding the contacting of the Municipal Attorney(s) for review and adoption at a future 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

12 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170424-9 

April 24, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 

 

Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to approve the 

payment of the bills for the period dated 04/13/17, transfers for the period 04/15/17 through 

04/19/17, and Fire Department payroll dated 04/18/17.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said the dissolution of the WPPI Insurance Trust has occurred.  

The City received a check in the amount of $3,930 that will be forwarded to the City’s current 

health insurance provider, WCA, to lower the monthly premium. 

 

City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes said she met with the auditors today.  The 2016 audit will be 

presented at the May 8 Council meeting. 

 

COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

Council Member Thome invited Council Members to attend the Cedarburg Foundation Civic event 

that will be held on May 11. 

 

Council Member Dieffenbach said he is interested in a tour of the portion of Cedar Creek that is 

being cleaned up. 

 

Council Member Verhaalen said Behling Field was graded and will be seeded soon. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

Mayor Kinzel issued a proclamation for Municipal Clerk’s Week – May 7-13. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
       

Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member O’Keefe, to adjourn 

the meeting at 9:16 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

       Constance K. McHugh, MMC/WCPC 

       City Clerk 

13 of 381



 

  CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170418-1 
                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 
                                                                    April 18, 2017 
        
A regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on 
Tuesday, April 18, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington Avenue, second floor, Council 
Chambers.  Acting Mayor O’Keefe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present -  Common Council – Council Members John Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, 

Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, 
Mike O’Keefe 

 
  Excused -  Mayor Kip Kinzel 
                           
                    Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Attorney Michael 

Herbrand, Deputy City Clerk Amy Kletzien, Director of Engineering 
and Public Works Tom Wiza, Director of Parks, Recreation & 
Forestry Mikko Hilvo, interested citizens and news media 

 
STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
At Acting Mayor O'Keefe’s request, Deputy City Clerk Kletzien verified that notice of this meeting 
was provided to the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News 
Graphic, to all news media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with 
the Wisconsin Open Meetings law.  Citizens present were welcomed and encouraged to provide 
their input during the citizen comment portion of the meeting. 
 
Council Member O'Keefe stated that as Acting Mayor, he retains his right to vote as Council 
Member of the 7th Aldermanic District. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member O'Keefe, to approve the 
minutes from the March 27, 2017 meeting.  Motion carried without a negative vote.   
 
COMMENTS & SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None 
 
OATHS OF OFFICE 
 
Deputy City Clerk Kletzien administered the oaths of office to Council Members Jack Arnett (2nd 
Aldermanic District), Rick Verhaalen, (4th Aldermanic District), and Patricia Thome (6th 
Aldermanic District). 
 
ELECTION OF COMMON COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 
Council Member Thome nominated Council Member O’Keefe as Council President.  The 
nomination was seconded by Council Member Czarnecki. 
 

14 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-2 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Dieffenbach, to close the 
nominations.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
With Council Members Czarnecki, Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Regenfuss, Thome and 
O’Keefe voting for Council Member O'Keefe, Council Member O'Keefe was elected as Council 
President. 
 
ELECTION OF COMMON COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE TO PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Council Member Thome nominated Council Member Czarnecki as Council Representative to the 
Plan Commission.  The nomination was seconded by Council Member Arnett.   
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to close 
the nominations.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
With Council Members Czarnecki, Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Regenfuss, Thome, and 
O'Keefe voting for Council Member Czarnecki, Council Member Czarnecki was elected as the 
Common Council Representative to the Plan Commission. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-05 CREATING SEC. 7-18 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES:  REGULATION OF MOBILE VENDORS AND MOBILE FOOD 
ESTABLISHMENTS; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Attorney Herbrand explained that this is a revised Ordinance based upon discussion at the last 
Common Council meeting.  The current revisions include:  expanded to include all mobile vendors, 
exempted home parties or catering events, removed the limitation on the number of trucks, and 
finally there are locational restrictions (a portion of Mill Road and Portland Road). 
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s question, City Attorney Herbrand stated the location was 
determined by Planner Censky in conjunction with City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes and him.  
This may have been determined by the fact that the Common Council wanted the trucks located off 
Washington Avenue and parking is already an issue on some streets off Washington Avenue. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Attorney Herbrand explained that trucks 
would be allowed on Mill Street between Hanover Avenue and east to the Cultural Center. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, City Attorney Herbrand stated that this area 
was chosen because it would be conducive to trucks. 
 
City Attorney Herbrand added that trucks would be allowed on all private commercial property with 
no locational restrictions.  A $100 license fee is being proposed.  And finally, one direct seller 
permit has been issued under the old ordinance to Yellow Bellies and he proposes that this new 
ordinance would be effective January 1, 2018. 
 

15 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-3 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Czarnecki was in favor of banning food trucks from all City streets because it is 
still a competitive advantage to be on the road. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen agreed because he received a call from a restaurant owner stating that 
people who are walking the streets are stopping and turning around to go to the food truck.  This 
creates another barrier. 
 
Council Member Regenfuss was not in favor of food trucks on Mill Street because they would still 
be too visible to tourists. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, City Attorney Herbrand stated that parking on 
Portland Road would be allowed outside the times for Summer Sounds.  Licenses would exclude 
the Friday nights of Summer Sounds. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki asked if there was a consensus to keep the trucks off City streets. 
 
Council Member Thome stated that she did not want to ban food trucks from City streets; only 
Washington Avenue.  She confirmed with City Attorney Herbrand that any food trucks parking on 
Portland Road on Friday nights would need to be contractually involved with Summer Sounds to 
participate. 
 
Director Hilvo brought attention to other activities that occur in the area of Portland Road such as a 
planned bike festival.  He does not want food trucks competing against those venues.  Also the 
concession stand for softball is important to the City.  He suggested that the permit be restricted for 
these events. 
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that it would be tricky to draft for every single event.  Would softball 
games be an event that would eliminate food trucks? 
 
Council Member Thome suggested omitting Portland Road except for contracting with Summer 
Sounds. 
 
Festivals Director Homayouni stated that Festivals is running on very low revenue right now and 
anyone competing outside the footprint would add to this problem.   
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that the current proposal states that Festival participation is not 
allowed with the permit.  Festivals has control over the footprint. 
 
Director Homayouni stated that they do not close the street for Winter Festival and the event 
already loses money (approximately $37,000).  The festival is held primarily to give an economic 
boost to the Cedarburg Merchants during a slow time of the year.  They have a food booth during 
Winter Festival, Oktoberfest and Cedar Brew Fest in April.  Any competition during these events 
could be more detrimental for them. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, Council Member Czarnecki explained that 
banning them from all public streets would clean up the situation.  Food trucks on the street create 

16 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-4 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
an unfair advantage to the commercial buildings that need to abide by certain rules.  He is okay with 
Food Trucks vending on commercial property. 
 
In response to discussion by the Council Members, City Attorney Herbrand stated that he could 
make sure that it is clearly defined that food trucks would be allowed in parking lots, such as private 
non-residential (i.e., Cultural Center) with their permission. 
 
Council Member Thome stated she still believes food trucks would add vitality and would bring 
people into the City.  It would bring people who would not necessarily eat in a restaurant.  She 
would like to have a spot where food trucks could park. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated he agreed with Council Member Thome and is not in favor of an 
outright ban.  He understood the unfair advantage argument on Washington Avenue as well.  He 
agrees with the concerns expressed by the Council on Mill Street in regard to too many food trucks 
and the future business that will be located on the corner of Mill Street and Washington Avenue; 
along with the concerns on Portland Road. 
 
Amy Radtke, W54 N254 Van Buren Drive, stated that she would not be opposed to food trucks on 
City streets.  She suggested that food trucks be allowed on the street by the Cedarburg High School.  
Students are only allowed thirty minutes for lunch and they are not allowed to leave the parking lot 
in their car during the day.  Food trucks would provide another option for the students.   
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that he represents this district and years ago students ate lunch 
at their car and left garbage behind on Evergreen Blvd. and that is why the privilege was taken 
away.  The neighbors would not like this to happen again. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Attorney Herbrand explained that a 
Direct Sellers permit refers to the current transient merchant license that allows people to sell door-
to-door. 
 
In answer to Council Member Regenfuss’ question, City Attorney Herbrand’s latest understanding 
is that the Council did not want to limit the number of food truck vendors.  
 
The pros and cons of limiting the number of food trucks were discussed.  It was expressed that food 
trucks would self-regulate. 
 
Steve Leonard, N91 W5939 Dorchester Drive, stated that there is a current ordinance that regulates 
Direct Sellers stating that the licensee has to move every 15 minutes and they cannot return within 
100 feet of a previous position within four hours.  He was told that this was not enforced because 
the Police Chief had a conversation with a previous mayor and the decision was made to enforce 
this time limit on carts only and not vehicles, as written.  Those vendors who come here have a 
history with no resistance.  He stated that food truck websites indicate that trucks are anxious to 
come to Cedarburg.   
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated the Council is discussing food trucks tonight because the City is 
trying to clarify the difference between a direct seller and a food truck vendor.   
 

17 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-5 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Arnett stated that the current ordinance is inadequate and encouraged the Common 
Council to move forward. 
 
Mr. Leonard stated that he has reviewed the history of the Direct Seller’s permit that was initiated in 
1978.  He did not see any Plan Commission details leading up to this permit; however, the Common 
Council minutes spoke about the carts and wagons coming to the City vying for business in 
Cedarburg.  He stated that the current ordinance should be enforced. 
 
In answer to Council Member O'Keefe’s question, City Attorney Herbrand stated that the proposed 
Ordinance would supersede what is currently in the Code.  Because the Direct Seller permit is 
currently being used for food truck vendors, he proposed that the new ordinance take effect on 
January 1, 2018, which would provide a clear line on who is a food vendor and who is a direct seller 
with a new set of rules. 
 
Mr. Leonard hears that the current ordinance is not sufficient; however, he felt that if the current 
ordinance was enforced it would be adequate.  He said that he is not sure that they should be 
banned.  There is a use for them somewhere and some time.   
 
Mr. Leonard presented a sign, “Support Your Local Business 4-18,” and spoke about the proposed 
ordinance.  He questioned Sec. 7-18-3(b) Any Mobile Food Vendor or Mobile Food Establishment 
acting by, through or under Summer Sounds at Cedar Creek Park organized by Cedarburg Music 
Festivals by asking if this regulates mobile food vendors at Cedar Creek Park or away from Cedar 
Creek Park.  He would like the language tightened to not allow a food truck operating under 
Summer Sounds to post elsewhere in the City. 
 
Mr. Leonard also questioned Sec. 7-18-6 regarding location restrictions.  As described it does not 
match the overlay between the description and the map.  The area has food trucks allowed in No 
Parking zones along with two and one hour zones.  He questioned whether the parking restrictions 
will be changed to match the accommodations for food trucks.   
 
Mr. Leonard addressed fairness and stated that he would not be allowed to post his “Support Your 
Local Business 4-18” sign in front of a current business.  However, a food truck can have whatever 
signage they wish to have on their trucks.  Current business owners are limited by the City of 
Cedarburg Sign Code that protects the historic district.  This Ordinance disfavors Cedarburg 
businesses to assist people coming from out of town.  This is a detriment to the Community and 
historic district.  He stated that a reasonable compromise would allow trucks in certain situations 
that are specified such as the fairgrounds, festivals, Summer Sounds, etc.  Even this will give the 
food trucks access to a huge amount of the business revenue in a very revenue sensitive period.  He 
reiterated what the Economic Development Board said that food trucks are bad for Cedarburg 
businesses and economics and the City decided otherwise.  The Economic Development Board 
brought other ideas forward and the Council is considering going even further than their proposal.  
Food trucks will be taking money out of the pockets of businesses that are here year round.  Mr. 
Leonard is against allowing non-citizens of Cedarburg speak on this topic.  He felt that people 
living outside of Cedarburg should not be allowed to tell Cedarburg people what to do.  There is a 
process if they have added value.  He stated that there is a place for food trucks but not on a daily 
basis. 
 

18 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-6 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Joan Dorsey, W65 N705 St. John Avenue, is the owner of Settler’s Inn for 24 years.  She spoke in 
regard to the current ordinance and the history of hot dog carts in the City.  Previous to hot dog carts 
in Cedarburg, Settler’s Inn had a good business of offering Chicago style hot dogs and once the cart 
came in their business dropped off and they no longer offer them because they could not compete.  
She thought the same thing might happen with food trucks.  She expressed concern about not 
limiting the number of food truck vendors.  The City has no idea how many people will apply the 
first year.  Another concern is allowing food trucks on private commercial property.  Providing the 
property to the north of their business is still zoned commercial, she could have a food truck parked 
four feet from her north entrance.  On Cleveland Street, to the south of her business is a parking lot 
for the JAVA House and the resale store that could allow a food truck.  This could directly involve 
Settler’s Inn in two instances.  Joan Dorsey expressed concern for the $100 fee and questioned the 
amount.  All her license fees have increased and she felt that $100 was too low.  She added that if 
the Ordinance does not take effect until 2018, Cedarburg businesses will have to get through 
another summer and fall of food trucks and she asked that the current law be enforced. 
                      
Jack Barta, W59 N910 Sheboygan Road, was encouraged by his neighbor to speak tonight.  He 
questioned whether any data was available from business owners stating how much business they 
lose when food trucks are in the City.  He questioned why Cedarburg needs outside vendors.  He 
thought the Council was spending a lot of time on this issue and the decision should be easier for 
the Common Council to decide. 
 
Shannon Whitworth, W59 N965 Essex Drive, was also encouraged to attend tonight’s meeting.  He 
took the time to listen to everyone and appreciated the discussion that has taken place.  He asked the 
Common Council what the incentive or gain is for a brick and mortar restaurant in Cedarburg who 
has a tight margin, pays taxes or has a lease, has regulations regarding signage, liquor sales, 
occupancy, etc.  Restaurants live on extremely tight margins even in the best of times.  Business 
tends to be slow in winter in Cedarburg and the businesses rely on summertime to make up the lost 
revenue.  It also seems that the businesses are being put into direct competition with vendors who 
are not required to practice under the same rules as the brick and mortar restaurants.  He is in favor 
of options and choices; however, he has not heard a discussion on what is being done to keep the 
current people in Cedarburg.  He is in favor of the proposed Arabelle Development and bringing the 
right people to Cedarburg, however, we should also want the right people to stay.  He asked the 
Common Council how this conversation will reach that goal. 
 
Christin Leonard, W61 N502A Washington Avenue, has attended many meetings on this topic.  He 
would have appreciated a forum where interested parties could have a debate and make decisions.  
This topic is very important to his business.  It is also a nationwide issue that he has been following.  
He is surprised the debate has reached this far because food trucks do not meet the ambience that 
Cedarburg projects.  He said that food trucks are essentially signs that do not meet the current Sign 
Code for brick and mortar businesses.  What he sells is based on what he can communicate to the 
foot traffic that passes in front of his store.  He is very restricted on what is allowed.  After listening 
to the dialog he feels as though he is being discriminated against as a brick and mortar business 
because he has so many rules and no one has talked about how the trucks will look.  The food trucks 
from out of town will be competing for the same customers that he tries to bring into his restaurant.  
They will have an inherent advantage with their signs because they are bright and colorful and their 
lettering is large with their menu displayed prominently.  He cannot have his phone number or 

19 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-7 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
website anywhere on the front of his restaurant.  He would like a chance to discuss this issue with 
other business owners to come up with a reasonable solution. 
 
Chris Morton, N56 W6339 Center Street, stated that he has been in business for 28 years.  Summer 
Sounds is a fantastic venue for the community; however, it is 11 or 12 Friday nights that are cut in 
half for his business.  Friday is his biggest day and that is a lot of money.  Bringing food trucks into 
the City would add to this competition.  The Art Museum has an event on Thursday nights with a 
food truck which is two blocks north, food trucks on Mill Street would be one block south, Yellow 
Bellies parks on Washington Avenue and he is surrounded by competition and it eats into business 
and it is hard to compete with. 
 
Mike Maher, 397 W. Thornapple Lane, Grafton, stated that he took offense to a comment from 
Steven Leonard.  He was a resident of Cedarburg for 12 years, a Council Member for four terms, his 
children are in the Cedarburg School District, he serves on the Cedarburg Education Foundation, 
and is a member of the Thorson PTO.  He is still a member of this community and his comment was 
ridiculous.  He said this issue began on May 31, 2016 and the Common Council needs to make a 
decision.   
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki to ban mobile food vendors in the City of Cedarburg.   
 
City Attorney Herbrand suggested that he come back one more time with a revised ordinance 
because it easy to ban food trucks but Summer Sounds and Festivals should be addressed and how 
the ban might work. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki stated that his motion was made to start discussion and possibly making 
amendments for what the Council wants to allow.  He asked that a decision be made.  
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that an ordinance will help the Police Department and staff to 
understand exactly what a ban means.  Points have been made on both sides and staff is looking for 
direction.  If the Council decides on yes but for those exceptions, he will come forth with an 
ordinance that states what is or is not allowed. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated it was important to get it right rather than force a decision tonight.  
He is in favor of another meeting and unfortunately it is the process. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen seconded the motion to ban mobile food trucks. 
 
City Attorney Herbrand asked if the Council wanted to revise the existing ordinance to ban mobile 
food vendors and food trucks on any public and private property. 
 
Council Member Czarnecki said yes; however amendments can be made. 
 
Council Member O'Keefe was not in favor of throwing out all the work put forth by City Attorney 
Herbrand.  It is a workable ordinance that can be tweaked.  He did not agree with banning food 
trucks and then adding things back in.  The present proposed Ordinance is a good template to work 
from. 
 

20 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-8 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Verhaalen expressed that the exemptions in Sec. 7-18-3 are valid and would not 
require a permit. 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Council Member Verhaalen stated that exemption 
(f) would allow food trucks on private property. 
 
Council Member Arnett sensed that there was a consensus to allow food trucks on private property 
and he suggested amending the current Ordinance. 
 
Council Member Thome stated that Christian Leonard made a good point in regard to signage 
restrictions and this is an issue.  She eats at area restaurants and she may not be a fan of mobile food 
trucks; however, she has had many people approach her who are looking for variety.  She wants the 
right decision made and this may take longer.  She does not want to take away all options from the 
Community.  She wants the Cultural Center, Art Museum and others to have the opportunity to use 
food trucks. 
 
Motion failed with Council Members Czarnecki, Verhaalen and Dieffenbach voting in favor and 
Council Members Arnett, O'Keefe, Regenfuss and Thome opposed.  
 
Council Member Arnett stated that his constituents want the option of mobile food trucks.  He will 
compromise and take them off the public streets but allow them on private property per the 
provisions provided in the proposed Ordinance.  This can always be revisited. 
 
Council Member Thome stated that she cannot see the Plan Commission allowing someone to park 
a food tuck on their lawn. 
 
City Attorney Herbrand stated that it could be added that a food truck must be parked on a paved 
surface. 
 
Council Member Arnett stated that food trucks are social media driven and they will bring people to 
Cedarburg.  He stated that all delivery trucks have signs and the food trucks are not parked that 
long, it is a temporary issue. 
 
Council Member Regenfuss suggested limiting the number of permits to five. 
 
Council Member Arnett suggested that the ordinance be effective immediately and to allow the one 
permit that was issued to continue under the old rules or refund their money and have them apply 
for a new permit. 
 
After discussion, it was decided not to limit the number of food trucks at this time. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2017-05 creating Sec. 7-18 of the Code of Ordinances:  Regulation of Mobile 
Vendors and Mobile Food Establishments as amended by the Common Council to include the 
following: 

• Mobile vendors and mobile food establishments are prohibited on public streets; 
• Ordinance will be in effect upon posting and publication; 

21 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-9 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• Redefine ordinance to allow trucks on non-residential private property with the permission 
of the owner; 

• Fee is $100 annually; 
• Exemptions from license and location requirements would apply under all those listed under 

7-18-3 (Trucks are prohibited anywhere within the City during Festivals except for those 
allowed by Festivals within the footprint). 

 
Motion carried with Council Members Arnett, Regenfuss, Thome, and O’Keefe voting in favor and 
Council Members Czarnecki, Dieffenbach, and Verhaalen opposed.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
CONSIDER AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE CONCRETE SIDEWALK PROGRAM; 
AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Wiza explained that two bids were received for the 2017 concrete sidewalk sawing 
program.  The low bid was received from Hardrock Concrete Cutters, Inc. of Wheeling, IL in the 
amount of $10,726.00.  The second bidder was Safe Step, LLC at $14,993.18. 
 
The City has not previously worked with Hard Rock Concrete Cutters, but they met with the 
Superintendent and the equipment they propose to use and their plan of action look good.  They 
anticipate that the work will take one week to complete. 
 
Director Wiza stated that the City has done small sidewalk sawing projects in the past, but this year 
the City will not have a remove and replace sidewalk contract.  The cost to saw a slab typically runs 
about 40% of the remove and replace cost, and this was in-part a cost savings measure.  He intends 
to bid out a conventional remove/replace sidewalk program next year.  Staff is recommending this 
award along with the Public Works and Sewerage Commission. 
 
In answer to Council Member Czarnecki’s question, Director Wiza explained that sawing consists 
of using a sawblade to bevel the edge of the walk and gradually taper it to an even slab. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Director Wiza stated that it will taper a slab 
from five inches thick to 4 inches thick.  Often times sawing is done on sidewalk sections near street 
trees whose roots have upheaved the concrete.  When the tree dies, the concrete slab is replaced. 
 
In answer to Council Member O'Keefe’s question, Director Wiza explained that there is a list of 
good candidates this year and this does not always happen.  He could mix some sawing in with next 
year’s replacement program. 
 
In answer to Council Member Verhaalen’s question, Director Wiza does not know anyone who has 
used this company. 
 
In answer to Council Member O'Keefe’s question, Director Wiza stated that the cost difference is 
$68 for sawing compared to $170 to replace a section of sidewalk. 
 

22 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-10 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
In answer to Council Member Thome’s question, Director Wiza stated that the City does do some 
mud jacking. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to award 
the contract for the concrete sidewalk program to Hardrock Concrete Cutters, Inc. in the amount of 
$10,726.00  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
REVIEW OF 2016 ANNUAL REPORT FOR NR216 MUNICIPAL STORMWATER 
COMPLIANCE; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director of Engineering and Public Works Wiza explained that as part of the City’s NR216 
stormwater permit, the City must prepare an annual compliance report for submission to the DNR 
which documents our storm water program accomplishments.  As in previous years, AECOM has 
been retained to assist in compiling the necessary information and performing the required water 
quality testing. 
 
Director Wiza stated that the DNR requires that the report be reviewed with the governing body.  
Because the document is very lengthy, Director Wiza passed around the bound report copies at the 
meeting and provided the following review: 
 
Permit Conditions Imposed on the City: 

• Implement a storm water public education and outreach program – accomplished with Cedar 
Post articles brochures and commercials. 

• Must inform the public of activities required under the permit – accomplished through the 
City website and Engineering Department brochures. 

• Maintain a program to detect and remove illicit discharges – AECOM assists with dry 
weather sampling at outfalls. 

• Enforce erosion and sediment control for construction sites. 
• Monitor post construction water quality controls – best management practices 

checked/ponds. 
• Continue a pollution prevention program. 
• Achieve compliance with target of 40% suspended solids reduction. 
• Maintain and update the City storm sewer mapping – the GIS mapping is current. 

 
Annual Accomplishments: 

• Cleaned virtually all catch basin sumps as well as six hydrodynamic separators 
(approximately 100 tons were removed that would have gone into Cedar Creek). 

• Issued thirty-seven erosion control permits and three storm water management permits. 
• Provided a full display rack of storm water related information brochures at City Hall. 
• Published storm water articles in the Spring and Fall Cedar Post issues. 
• Maintained and updated a storm water webpage. 
• Provided the rotating display rack with storm water literature to the County Fair. 
• Assisted AECOM with illicit discharge investigations. 
• Swept downtown streets weekly and residential streets monthly. 
• Collected and disposed of approximately 120 tons of street sweepings. 
• Collected and composted approximately 1,366 tons of leaves, brush and yard waste. 

23 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-11 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 

• Collected and recycled (or burned) 2,720 gallons of used motor oil. 
• Installed 26 new catch basins with two foot sumps which incorporate the “Dump No Waste 

Drains to Stream” logo on the cast iron curb head. 
• Updated storm sewer mapping on GIS. 
• Participated in the Sweetwater “Respect Our Waters” program for metropolitan Milwaukee. 

 
CONSIDER REQUEST OF SCOTT SIDNEY OF THE JAVA HOUSE CAFÉ & MICRO 
ROASTER, LLC TO AMEND THE PREMISE DESCRIPTION OF THE CLASS “B” BEER 
AND “CLASS C” WINE LICENSE OF THE JAVA HOUSE, W63 N653 WASHINGTON 
AVENUE, TO SELL AND SERVE BEER AND WINE OUTSIDE OF THEIR PREMISES 
DURING STRAWBERRY AND WINE AND HARVEST FESTIVALS; AND ACTION 
THEREON 
 
Request was withdrawn. 
 
CONSIDER REQUEST TO FILL VACANT PARKS DEPARTMENT CREW PERSON 
POSITION; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Director Hilvo explained that due to the recent retirement of Crewperson Jim Grube, he would like 
to fill the position as soon as possible to maintain a three person crew in the Department.  
   
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Regenfuss, to 
approve filling the vacant Parks Department Crew Person position.  Motion carried without a 
negative vote.  
 
DESIGNATION OF CITY’S OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER FOR ENSUING YEAR; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that the City is required to designate a newspaper 
for the publication of Council proceedings and other legal notices each year. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Attorney Herbrand stated that the 
proposed legislation will provide a cost savings to municipalities; however, official actions will still 
need to be published. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Thome, to designate 
the News Graphic as the official newspaper for the ensuing year.  Motion carried without a negative 
vote.  
 
CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2017-06:  2016 BUDGET AMENDMENT 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS FROM PUBLIC WORKS TO PUBLIC SAFETY, CULTURE & 
RECREATION, CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFERS OUT; AND 
ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that this action is a year-end procedure to balance 
the budget to actual numbers.  The Public Works and Parks and Forestry side transfer is an annual 
adjustment between tree work and planting vs. storm sewer work.  The remaining changes are due 

24 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-12 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
to an accounting change from the recent audit and their preference for recording.  Deposit accounts 
for the fuel system, recycling gate and card system, senior center tours, and fire alarm monitoring 
have been eliminated so the City will need to start budgeting for these items.  The Trust and Agency 
accounts (Library donations, Senior Center and van, and Parks) have been moved out to the General 
Fund or Special Revenue programs because the auditors did not feel they qualified for this 
description.  The Fire Department’s retirement plan is the only item left in the Trust and Agency 
Fund.  Moving some of these accounts caused certain areas to be over budget.  Transfers out were 
over budget due to the additional funding necessary to support the swimming pool operation of 
$13,503. 
 
Council Member Regenfuss clarified that the General Government was over budget for the year due 
to the unrealized loss from the change in market value of the US Bank investments. 
 
In answer to Council Member Dieffenbach’s question, City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes 
explained that these changes made a lot of extra work for the Department; however, the audit will 
be much easier for 2017 because the changes will be implemented.  She agreed that the re-
designation and reclassification of the Trust and Agency accounts as operative funds is positive; 
however, they will still need to be recorded separately because people are donating money for a 
certain use.         
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adopt 
Resolution No.  2017-06:  2016 budget amendment transferring funds from Public Works to Public 
Safety, Culture & Recreation, Conservation and Development and transfers out.  Motion carried 
without a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2017-11 INCREASING THE ALLOCATED FUNDS IN THE 
GENERAL FUND; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes explained that this item is also a result from the audit.  In 
2015, there were some projects and purchases that were not completed so Department Heads did a 
purchase order to carry the funds over to the new year when the project was finished.  The auditors 
requested that these transactions be done by ordinance and to have them approved by the Common 
Council.  City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes will be presenting the 2016 encumbrances that were 
carried over to 2017 at the next meeting.   
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2017-11 increasing the allocated funds in the General Fund.  Motion carried without 
a negative vote.  
 
CONSIDER PAYMENT OF BILLS FOR THE PERIOD 03/22/17 THROUGH 04/11/17, 
TRANSFERS FOR THE PERIOD 03/26/17 THROUGH 04/08/17, AND PAYROLL FOR 
THE PERIOD 03/12/17 THROUGH 04/08/17; AND ACTION THEREON 
 
Motion made by Council Member Regenfuss, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to approve 
payment of bills for the period 3/22/17 through 4/11/17, transfers for the period 3/26/17 through 
4/8/17, and payroll for the period 3/12/17 through 4/8/17.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 

25 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-13 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
CONSIDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 
 
AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A FESTIVAL CELEBRATION PERMIT TO FESTIVALS 
OF CEDARBURG, INC., FOR STRAWBERRY FESTIVAL TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY, 
JUNE 24, 2017 FROM 10:00 A.M. – 6:00 P.M. AND ON SUNDAY JUNE 25, 2017 FROM 
10:00 A.M. TO 5:00 P.M. 
 
Festivals Director Homayouni asked for a correction to be made to the licensing hours on Saturday, 
June 24, 2017 from 10:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 a.m. – 8:30 p.m. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve the 
issuance of a Festival Celebration Permit to Festivals of Cedarburg, Inc. for Strawberry Festival to 
be held on Saturday, June 24, 2017 from 10:00 a.m. – 8:30 p.m. and on Sunday June 25, 2017 from 
10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A FESTIVAL CELEBRATION PERMIT TO FESTIVALS 
OF CEDARBURG, INC., FOR WINE AND HARVEST FESTIVAL TO BE HELD ON 
SATURDAY, SPETEMBER 16, 2017 FROM 10:00 A.M. TO 8:30 P.M. AND ON SUNDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2017 FROM 10:00 A.M. TO 5:00 P.M. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve the 
issuance of a Festival Celebration Permit to Festivals of Cedarburg, Inc. for Wine and Harvest 
Festival to be held on Saturday, September 16, 2017 from 10:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. and on Sunday, 
September 17, 2017 from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A FESTIVAL CELEBRATION PERMIT TO FESTIVALS 
OF CEDARBURG, INC., FOR OKTOBERFEST TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY, 
OCTOBER 14, 2017 FROM 11:00 A.M. TO 8:00 P.M. AND SUNDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2017 
FROM 10:00 A.M. TO 5:00 P.M. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Czarnecki, seconded by Council Member Arnett, to approve the 
issuance of a Festival Celebration Permit to Festivals of Cedarburg, Inc. for Oktoberfest to be held 
on Saturday, October 14, 2017 from 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and Sunday, October 15, 2017 from 
10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
 
City Administrator/Treasurer Mertes reminded the Common Council of two meetings next week ( a 
regular Common Council meeting on Monday, April 24 and a Joint Common Council and 
Community Development Authority meeting on Tuesday, April 25).  
 
COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS - None   
 
COMMENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Council Member Dieffenbach stated that TP&D came forward and paid for the painting of 10 trash 
cans.  

26 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL CC20170418-14 
April 18, 2017                     UNAPPROVED 
 
Council Member Verhaalen encouraged the Common Council to stop by or participate in a Mel’s 
Charity bowling event at Cedar’s III on May 13, as he is sponsoring two teams.  
 
Council Member Czarnecki requested a review of the procedure for contacting the City Attorney at 
the next Common Council meeting. 
 
Council Member Verhaalen asked that the City lean on Mercury Marine to complete the restoration 
of Behling Field.  The baseball season has been pushed to start late on June 1 and there is a lot of 
work to be done.  If there is reason for the delay, the City should know what that is.  This is a 
revenue source for Parks and Recreation and it is unacceptable that the City will lose revenue and 
possibly lose teams. 
 
Council Member O'Keefe stated that the Public Works recycling drop-off is working well.  Director 
Wiza stated that 700 cards have been sold to-date. 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Acting Mayor O’Keefe presented a Proclamation issued by Mayor Kinzel in honor of Arbor Day, 
April 28, 2017. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adjourn to 
closed session at 9:28 p.m. pursuant to State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 
purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, to 
discuss possible negotiations with BMO Harris Bank for the purchase of property on Columbia 
Road.  Approval of closed session minutes of March 27, 2017.  Motion carried unanimously on a 
roll call vote. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion made by Council Member Dieffenbach, seconded by Council Member Thome, to reconvene 
to open session at 9:59 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Thome, to adjourn the 
meeting at 9:59 p.m.  Motion carried without a negative vote.  
       
        
      Amy D. Kletzien, MMC/WCPC 
      Deputy City Clerk 

27 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG     CC20170425-1 

                                                             COMMON COUNCIL UNAPPROVED 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

April 25, 2017 

        

A joint  meeting of the Common Council and Community Development Authority of the City of 

Cedarburg, Wisconsin, was held on Tuesday, April 25, 2017, at City Hall, W63 N645 Washington 

Avenue, second floor, Council Chambers.   Mayor Kinzel called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Present  -  Common Council:   Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council Members John 

Czarnecki, Jack Arnett, Dick Dieffenbach, Rick Verhaalen, Mitch 

Regenfuss, Patricia Thome, Mike O’Keefe  

  

  Community Development Authority: Mayor Kip Kinzel, Council 

Member Mitch Regenfuss, Eric Stelter (left meeting at 8:20 p.m.), 

Eric Arvold, Joe Kassander, Dale Lythjohan, Andy Dettro  

  

                        Also Present - City Administrator/Treasurer Christy Mertes, City Clerk Constance 

McHugh, City Attorney Michael Herbrand, Attorney Buck Sweeney 

of Axley Brynelson, and Chris Bonniwell of Wilcox Environmental 

Engineering 

                        

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

At Mayor Kinzel’s request, City Clerk McHugh verified that notice of this meeting was provided to 

the public by forwarding the agenda to the City’s official newspaper, the News Graphic, to all news 

media and citizens who requested copies, and by posting in accordance with the Wisconsin Open 

Meetings law.   

 

ADJOURNMENT – CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, the Common 

Council and Community Development Authority adjourned to closed session at 7:02 p.m. pursuant 

to State Statutes 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchasing of public properties, the 

investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business whenever competitive or 

bargaining reasons require a closed session, more specifically, for purposes of discussing a 

Developer’s Agreement with regard to the redevelopment of the Amcast property.  Motion carried 

on a roll call vote with Council Members Czarnecki, Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Regenfuss, 

Thome and O’Keefe voting aye and CDA Members Kinzel, Stelter, Arvold, Kassander, Lythjohan 

and Dettro voting aye. 

  

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION  

 

Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member O’Keefe, to reconvene to 

open session at 9:23 p.m.  Motion carried on a roll call vote with Council Members Czarnecki, 

Arnett, Dieffenbach, Verhaalen, Regenfuss, Thome and O’Keefe voting aye and CDA Members 

28 of 381



COMMON COUNCIL/CDA CC20170425-2 

April 25, 2017 UNAPPROVED 

 

Kinzel, Arvold, Kassander, Lythjohan and Dettro voting aye and CDA Member Eric Stelter 

excused. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

       

Motion made by Council Member Arnett, seconded by Council Member Czarnecki, to adjourn the 

meeting at 9:24 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously with CDA Member Stelter excused. 

 

       Constance K. McHugh, MMC/WCPC 

       City Clerk 

29 of 381



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 

 

A Resolution Honoring Detective/Sergeant Jeffrey Vahsholtz 

 

 WHEREAS, Jeffrey Vahsholtz has completed thirty-five years of service with the  

Cedarburg Police Department; beginning his employment as a Patrol Officer on May 3, 1982; 

and   

 

 WHEREAS, during his thirty-five years of service, Jeff Vahsholtz has conscientiously 

and capably served the Cedarburg Police Department, the City of Cedarburg, and its citizenry; 

and has demonstrated the highest principles of community service while exhibiting high moral 

and ethical standards; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Detective Vahsholtz demonstrated sound judgment and decision-making in 

matters involving the Cedarburg Police Department; and his integrity, courtesy, and 

professionalism earned him the respect of the community, his co-workers, and peers; and  

 

 WHEREAS, during his service as a member of the Cedarburg Police Department, 

Detective Vahsholtz served as a Drug Abuse Resistance Education (D.A.R.E.) instructor; was 

promoted to  Detective/Juvenile Officer in July of 2000, serving in that position for six years; 

was promoted to Detective/Sergeant in April 2006, serving in that position for eleven years; and 

excelled in major investigations; and was instrumental in the implementation of Automatic 

External Defibrillators (AEDs) in our squad cars; and assisted in the policies and implementation 

of the County-wide Emergency Medical Dispatch program; and made possible the administration 

of Epi-Pens and Narcan via a cooperative effort between the Cedarburg Police and Cedarburg 

Fire Departments; and      

 

 WHEREAS, the Cedarburg Police Department and the City of Cedarburg have benefited 

significantly from the dedicated law enforcement skills and services of Detective Vahsholtz;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of 

Cedarburg, members of the Cedarburg Police and Fire Commission, the men and women of the 

Cedarburg Police Department, and the citizens of the City of Cedarburg join in expressing their 

sincere appreciation to Jeffrey J. Vahsholtz for his many years of law enforcement service, and 

extend to him best wishes for a happy and healthy retirement. 

 

 Passed and adopted this 8th
th

 day of May, 2017.  

 

       ___________________________________  

       Kip D. Kinzel, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

________________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk   

30 of 381



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2016 Financial Highlights 
Presented to the  
City of Cedarburg 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Paul J. Frantz, CPA, Senior Manager 
Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 
777 E Wisconsin Ave, 32nd Floor 

Milwaukee, WI 53202 
tel 414 777 5506,   fax 414 777 5555 

paul.frantz@bakertilly.com Connect with us: bakertilly.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

31 of 381



 
 

 

Presentation to the Common Council 
of the City of Cedarburg 

May 8, 2017 
 

• Audit Objective 
– The objective of our audit was to express our opinion on the 

financial statements of the City of December as December 31, 
2016. 

 
• Reports Issued - DRAFT 

– Financial Statements  
 Includes expressed audit opinion 

– Communication to Those Charged with Governance and 
Management 
 Includes all communications required under professional 

standards 
 Includes comments and recommendations resulting from our 

audit 
 Includes Information applicable to future audits 

 
• Financial Statements  

– Audit opinion (pages 1 – 3) 
 Unmodified opinion, commonly referred to as a “clean” 

opinion 
 Highest level of assurance you can receive from your 

auditor. 
 The financial statements are fairly presented in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 Emphasis of Matter – restatements and noncompliance 

investment vehicle 
 All appropriate disclosures have been properly reflected in 

the financial statements. 
– Management’s Discussion and Analysis (pages 4 – 19) 

32 of 381



 
 

 

Presentation to the Common Council 
of the City of Cedarburg 

May 8, 2017 
 

• Financial Statements  
– Financial Highlights 

 Governmental Funds 
 

General Capital Improvement Debt Service Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Govt Funds

Revenues 7,874,191$        1,246,815$              730,560$           2,117,517$        
Expenditures 8,457,378          10,505,020              989,500             1,926,943          
Excess (deficiency) (583,187)            (9,258,205)               (258,940)            190,574             
Other sources/(uses) 780,592             8,611,152                431,387             (70,952)              
Change in fund balance 197,405             (647,053)                  172,447             119,622             

Fund balance
Beginning of year (as restated) 2,248,575          2,531,566                32,595               2,499,147          
End of year 2,445,980$        1,884,513$              205,042$           2,618,769$        

Fund Balance consist of:
Nonspendable 82,041$             -$                             -$                       -$                       
Restricted -                         212,500                   205,042             1,671,552          
Assigned 298,371             1,672,013                -                         1,003,127          
Unassigned (deficit) 2,065,568          -                               -                         (55,910)              

Total 2,445,980$        1,884,513$              205,042$           2,618,769$        

Health of General Fund Reserves:
Budgeted Expenditures for 2017 8,792,678$        
Uassigned Fund Balance in GF 2,065,568          

23%   Recommended range 10-25%

Budgetary Compliance
A summary of the general fund budget to actual results follows:

Final Budget Actual Variance
Revenues 7,652,503          7,874,191                221,688             
Expenditures 8,520,519          8,457,378                (63,141)              
Other sources/(uses) 787,712             780,592                   (7,120)                
Change in fund balance (80,304)              197,405                   277,709             

Fund balance:
Beginning of year 2,248,575          2,248,575                
End of year 2,168,271$        2,445,980$              

 
 

33 of 381



 
 

 

Presentation to the Common Council 
of the City of Cedarburg 

May 8, 2017 
 

• Financial Statements  
– Financial Highlights 

 Proprietary Funds 
 

Light and Sewer Internal Service
Water Utility Utility Fund - Risk

Operating Revenues 14,068,905$        2,306,290$        337,147$           
Operating Expenditures (includes depreciation) (12,251,600)        (2,553,726)         (392,780)            

Operating Income 1,817,305            (247,436)            (55,633)             

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), net 69,154                (19,123)             47,147               
Capital Contributions 1,055,946            -                        -                        
Transfers out (754,150)             -                        -                        

Change in net position 2,188,255            (266,559)            (8,486)               

Net Position
Beginning of year 39,533,237          16,991,092        899,509             
End of year 41,721,492$        16,724,533$      891,023$           

Available Cash in Utilities
  Unrestricted Cash 7,880,104$          2,831,959$        898,307$           
  Restricted Cash 239,983              2,909,306          -                        

8,120,087$          5,741,265$        898,307$           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34 of 381



 
 

 

 
 

Presentation to the Common Council 
of the City of Cedarburg 

May 8, 2017 

 
• Financial Statements  

– Financial Highlights 

 Long-Term Debt 
 

Governmental Business-type
Type of debt Activities Activites Total

General obligation bonds and notes 16,951,111$    1,005,000$      17,956,111$    
Premiums 256,189           26,857             283,046           
Accumulated sick pay 487,369           360,663           848,032           
Pollution remediation liability 487,200           -                      487,200           
Other long-term liabilities -                      62,665             62,665             
Net pension liability 539,835           223,392           763,227           

18,721,704$    1,678,577$      20,400,281$    

Statutory debt limit (5% of equalized value) 62,723,900$    

Capacity for additional general obligation debt 44,767,789$     
 

• Communication to those charged with governance and 
management 

– Material weaknesses 
o Internal Controls over Financial Reporting 
o Restatement of Prior Year Financial Statements – Correction 

of Prior Period Errors 
– Two way communication regarding your audit 
– Other comments and recommendations  
– Required communication to those charged with governance 

 
 
 
 
 

35 of 381



 
 

 

Presentation to the Common Council 
of the City of Cedarburg 

May 8, 2017 

 
It is a pleasure to serve you. While we work with the City’s management and 
staff in reviewing the financial data and preparing the financial statements, 
our contract is with the Council and our responsibility is to report to the 
Council. Accordingly, if any Council member has any questions or 
comments concerning our audit, the financial statements, any of the reports 
presented, or any thing else covered, please contact me at 414.777.5506 or 
paul.frantz@bakertilly.com. 
 

36 of 381



37 of 381



38 of 381



39 of 381



40 of 381



41 of 381



42 of 381



43 of 381



44 of 381



45 of 381



46 of 381



47 of 381



48 of 381



49 of 381



50 of 381



51 of 381



52 of 381



53 of 381



54 of 381



55 of 381



56 of 381



57 of 381



58 of 381



59 of 381



60 of 381



61 of 381



62 of 381



63 of 381



64 of 381



65 of 381



66 of 381



67 of 381



68 of 381



69 of 381



70 of 381



71 of 381



72 of 381



73 of 381



74 of 381



75 of 381



76 of 381



77 of 381



78 of 381



79 of 381



80 of 381



81 of 381



82 of 381



83 of 381



84 of 381



85 of 381



86 of 381



87 of 381



88 of 381



89 of 381



90 of 381



91 of 381



92 of 381



93 of 381



94 of 381



95 of 381



96 of 381



97 of 381



98 of 381



99 of 381



100 of 381



101 of 381



102 of 381



103 of 381



104 of 381



105 of 381



106 of 381



107 of 381



108 of 381



109 of 381



110 of 381



111 of 381



112 of 381



113 of 381



114 of 381



115 of 381



116 of 381



117 of 381



118 of 381



119 of 381



120 of 381



121 of 381



122 of 381



123 of 381



124 of 381



125 of 381



126 of 381



127 of 381



128 of 381



129 of 381



130 of 381



131 of 381



132 of 381



133 of 381



134 of 381



135 of 381



136 of 381



137 of 381



138 of 381



139 of 381



140 of 381



141 of 381



142 of 381



143 of 381



144 of 381



145 of 381



146 of 381



147 of 381



148 of 381



149 of 381



150 of 381



151 of 381



152 of 381



153 of 381



154 of 381



155 of 381



156 of 381



157 of 381



158 of 381



159 of 381



160 of 381



161 of 381



162 of 381



163 of 381



164 of 381



165 of 381



166 of 381



167 of 381



168 of 381



169 of 381



170 of 381



171 of 381



172 of 381



173 of 381



174 of 381



175 of 381



176 of 381



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING DATE:    May 8, 2017                                                                 ITEM NO: 8. D. 
 
TITLE: Presentation of the Arrabelle traffic study; and possible action thereon. 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  As a condition of approval of the Arrabelle multi-family project the applicant was 
to have a traffic impact analysis conducted and the results of that study were to be presented to both 
the Plan Commission and Common Council. Accordingly, following the public hearing and Council 
approval of the rezoning, HSI Properties hired Traffic Analysis and Design, Inc. to study exist traffic 
patterns and counts and then analyze the expected impact of the Arrabelle project on the area as 
compared to the impacts previously experience by the St. Francis Borgia Church and School when 
in operation. That study has been completed and submitted for your review. Donald Lee, P.E. of 
Traffic Analysis and Design, Inc. will be at Monday’s meeting to present the analysis and discuss his 
findings. His conclusion is provided below: 
 
Conclusion 

All movements at the study area intersections are expected to operate safely and efficiently through 
the build year 2018 under the existing geometric and traffic control conditions with no modifications 
necessary to the existing intersections with full buildout and occupancy of the residential 
development. The previous school use at this site generated more than 4-times the amount of traffic 
than the proposed apartment development during the morning peak hour and approximately 3-times 
the amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development during the afternoon peaks. On a 
daily basis, the previous school generated approximately 22-percent more traffic over the entire 24-
hour weekday. In summary, the study area intersections and roadways are expected to operate 
better than when the previous school was in operation as the traffic is expected to be less, the traffic 
is expected to be more spread out during the day and no roadways are expected to be closed for 
any part of the day as they were when the school was previously in operation. 
 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 Arrabelle Apartment Development Traffic Study 

 

REQUESTED BY: HSI Properties, LLC  
  

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 
 

177 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development

Traffic Study
Washington Avenue at Hamilton Road

City of Cedarburg
Ozaukee County, Wisconsin

April 24, 2017

178 of 381



   
TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR: 

 
 

ARRABELLE APARTMENT DEVELOPMENT 
Washington Avenue at Hamilton Road 

 
CITY OF CEDARBURG, OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
DATE SUBMITTED:  April 24, 2017 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
                   
PREPARED FOR: 
HSI Properties  
18500 W. Corporate Drive, Suite 120 
Brookfield, WI  53045 
Phone: (262) 439-8701 
Contact Person:  Tony W. DeRosa 
 
PREPARED BY: 
Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc. 
N36 W7505 Buchanan Street 
Cedarburg, WI  53012 
Phone: (800) 605-3091 
Contact Persons:  Don Lee, P.E. (WisDOT TIA Certification # SE05-804-046) 
 John Bieberitz, P.E., PTOE (WisDOT TIA Certification # SE05-804-044) 
 
“I certify that this Traffic Impact Analysis has been prepared by me or under my immediate 
supervision and that I have experience and training in the field of traffic and transportation 
engineering.” 
______________________ 
Donald J. Lee, P.E. 
Wisconsin Registration #35214-006 
Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.

179 of 381



 

Arrabelle Apartment Development 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

Table of Contents 
LIST OF EXHIBITS ....................................................................................................................... ii 

LIST OF APPENDICES ................................................................................................................ iii 

CHAPTER I – INTRODUCTION & EXECUTIVE SUMMARY..................................................1 

Part A – Purpose of Report and Study Objectives .......................................................................1 

Part B – Executive Summary .......................................................................................................1 

CHAPTER II – PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT .............................................................................4 

Part A – Proposed Development ..................................................................................................4 

Part B – Study Area .....................................................................................................................4 

Part C – Site Accessibility ...........................................................................................................4 

CHAPTER III – ANALYSIS OF EXISTING CONDITIONS ........................................................6 

Part A – Physical Characteristics .................................................................................................6 

Part B – Traffic Volumes .............................................................................................................6 

Part C – Capacity Level of Service ..............................................................................................7 

Part D – Sources of Data ..............................................................................................................9 

CHAPTER IV – DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC .............................................................................10 

Part A – Site Traffic Forecasting ...............................................................................................10 

Part B – Capacity Level of Service ............................................................................................11 

Part C – Queueing Analysis .......................................................................................................11 

CHAPTER V – RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSION ................................................12 

Part A – Recommendations .......................................................................................................12 

Part B – Conclusion ...................................................................................................................12 

180 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

ii

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1-1 ........Project Location Map 

Exhibit 1-2 ........Proposed Site Plan 

Exhibit 1-3 ........Recommended Roadway Modifications 

Exhibit 2-1 ........Project Location Map 

Exhibit 2-2 ........Proposed Site Plan 

Exhibit 3-1 ........Existing Transportation Detail 

Exhibit 3-2 ........Year 2017 Existing Traffic Volumes 

Exhibit 3-3 ........Year 2018 Background (No Development) Traffic Volumes 

Exhibit 3-4 ........Year 2017 Existing Traffic Operations – Without roadway modifications 

Exhibit 4-1 ........Proposed Development Trip Generation and Distribution 

Exhibit 4-2 ........Pervious School Trip Generation and Distribution 

Exhibit 4-3 ........Year 2018 Development New Trips 

Exhibit 4-4 ........Pervious School in Operation Trips 

Exhibit 4-5 ........Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic Volumes 

Exhibit 4-6 ........Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) Traffic Volumes 

Exhibit 4-7 ........Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) Traffic Operations 
– No roadway modifications 

Exhibit 4-8 ........Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic Operations – No 
roadway modifications 

 

 

181 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

iii

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

Appendix  A ...Traffic 

 Existing Turning Movement Counts 
 Existing Gap Counts 
 Historic AADT Backup for Growth Rate 
Appendix  B ...Peak Hour Analysis Outputs 
 Year 2017 Existing Traffic 
 Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school) Traffic 
 Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic  
 
  
 
 
  
 

182 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

 

CHAPTER I – INTRODUCTION & EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

PART A – PURPOSE OF REPORT AND STUDY OBJECTIVES 
The City of Cedarburg has requested a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) to analyze the impacts of 
the planned residential development at the lands previously occupied by the St. Francis Borgia 
Catholic School located immediately east of Washington Avenue along Hamilton Road in the 
City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, Wisconsin.  Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc. has been 
retained to identify the existing traffic operating conditions, the previous use (St. Francis Borgia 
Catholic School) traffic operating conditions and the Year 2018 build (with the apartment 
development) traffic operating conditions and roadway modifications necessary to provide safe 
and efficient traffic operations through the build year 2018 traffic conditions and beyond. 

This report documents the procedures, findings and conclusions of the traffic impact analysis.  
The analysis investigates roadway modifications based on existing intersection geometrics, 
background traffic volumes and additional traffic expected to be generated by the proposed 
development within the limits of the study area. 

PART B – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The executive summary includes a description of the study area, description of the potential 
development plans and conclusions based on the findings of the TIA.  

B1.  Location of Study Site with Respect to Area Roadway Network 
The proposed residential development site is located immediately east of Washington Avenue 
along Hamilton Road in the City of Cedarburg as shown in Exhibit 1-1.  The residential 
development is proposed to be constructed on the parcels of land currently occupied by the old 
St. Francis Borgia Catholic School and parking lots which have been in existence in the 
neighborhood from 1951 until moving to their new location north of STH 60 in 2015.  Exhibit 1-
2 shows the proposed site plan for the residential development.  Four driveways are proposed to 
provide access to the site consisting of two full access driveways along Hamilton Road, one full 
access driveway along Hilgen Avenue and a right-out exit only driveway along Washington 
Avenue.  Based on discussions with the City of Cedarburg and as shown in Exhibit 1-1, the study 
area for the potential development includes the following intersections: 

 Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road (one-way stop control); 
 Washington Avenue & Spring Street (one-way stop control); and 
 Hamilton Road & Hilgen Avenue (two-way stop control). 

B2.  Development Description and Timing 
The planned development includes the construction of three buildings within the site.  The first 
building is proposed to include 32 apartments within a two/three story building located on the 
south side of Hamilton Road immediately east of Washington Avenue.  The second building is 
proposed to include 28 apartments within a two/three story building located on the northwest 
corner of the Hamilton Road intersection with Hilgen Road.  The third building is proposed to 
include 9 townhouses on the north side of Hamilton Road, northeast of the existing St. Francis 
Borgia Church, which is expected to remain.  Surface lot and underground parking is proposed 
for the two apartment buildings with attached garages proposed along the back of the buildings 
for the townhouses along with additional surface parking spaces.  The proposed development is 
expected to be constructed and substantially occupied by the year 2018. 

183 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

2

B3.  Site Generated Traffic 
The expected traffic volumes generated by the proposed development were calculated based on 
trip rates published in the Institute of Transportation Engineer’s (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 
9h Edition, 2012.  Full build of the residential development is expected to generate 35 new trips 
(10 entering/25 exiting) during a typical weekday morning peak hour.  During a typical weekday 
evening peak hour, the residential development is expected to generate 40 new trips (30 
entering/10 exiting).  On a typical weekday, the residential development is expected to generate 
approximately 450 new trips (225 entering/225 exiting) under full build conditions. 

Even though the afternoon/evening peak hours are slightly different between the two land uses; 
when comparing the expected new peak hour trips for the proposed residential development to 
the peak hour trips from the previous school use (St. Francis Borgia Catholic School) the peak 
hour trips expected to be generated by the proposed residential development are expected to be 
significantly less than those of the previous school development.  Specifically, the proposed 
residential development is expected to generate 35 new trips in the morning peak compared to 
170 trips that were previously generated by the school and 40 new trips in the weekday evening 
peak hour compared to 120 trips that were previously generated by the school.  In addition, the 
proposed residential development is expected to generate 450 daily trips (225 entering/225 
exiting) over a 24-hoiur period which compares to 552 trips that were previously generated by 
the school.  In summary, the previous school use at this site generated more than 4-times the 
amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development during the morning peak hour and 
approximately 3-times the amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development during the 
afternoon peaks.  On a daily basis, the previous school generated approximately 22-percent more 
traffic over the entire 24-hour weekday.  

B4.  Year 2017 Existing Traffic – Recommended Roadway Modifications 
The study area intersections were analyzed based on the procedures set forth in the 2010 
Highway Capacity Manual (HCM).  Intersection operation is defined by “level of service”.  
Level of Service (LOS) is a quantitative measure that refers to the overall quality of flow at an 
intersection ranging from very good, represented by LOS ‘A’, to very poor, represented by LOS 
‘F’.  For the purpose of this study, LOS D or better was used to define desirable peak hour 
operating conditions.  This standard is the typical standard used by most municipalities as well as 
WisDOT for typical urban conditions as exist at this location. 

An analysis of the existing conditions was done as a basis for comparison and to determine if any 
roadway modifications would be necessary under the existing conditions.  The analysis was 
conducted using existing intersection geometrics and traffic control.  Based on the analysis 
completed as part of this study, no roadway modifications are recommended to accommodate the 
existing traffic volumes.  All turning movements at the study area intersections are currently 
operating acceptably at LOS C or better operations under the Year 2017 Existing (no 
development) traffic conditions. 

B5.  Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) Traffic – Recommended 
Roadway Modifications 
An analysis of the existing conditions assuming the school was still operational was also done as 
a basis for comparison and to determine if any roadway modifications would be necessary under 
the existing conditions with the school still in operation.  The analysis was conducted using 
existing intersection geometrics and traffic control.  Based on the analysis completed as part of 
this study, no roadway modifications are recommended to accommodate the existing conditions 
with the school still in operation.  All turning movements at the study area intersections are 

184 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

3

expected to operate acceptably at LOS C or better operations under the Year 2017 Existing Total 
(with previous school in operation) traffic conditions. 

B6.  Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic – Recommended Roadway 
Modifications 
Year 2018 build (with residential development) traffic volumes include full build out of the 
proposed development.  Based on the analysis completed as part of this study, no roadway 
modifications, as shown on Exhibit 1-3, are recommended to the existing intersections in order to 
accommodate the Year 2018 build (with residential development) traffic volumes.  All turning 
movements at the study area intersections are expected to continue to operate acceptably at LOS 
C or better operations under the Year 2018 build (with residential development) traffic 
conditions. 

B7.  Conclusion 
All movements at the study area intersections are expected to operate safely and efficiently 
through the build year 2018 under the existing geometric and traffic control conditions with no 
modifications necessary to the existing intersections with full buildout and occupancy of the 
residential development.   

The previous school use at this site generated more than 4-times the amount of traffic than the 
proposed apartment development during the morning peak hour and approximately 3-times the 
amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development during the afternoon peaks.  On a 
daily basis, the previous school generated approximately 22-percent more traffic over the entire 
24-hour weekday.  In summary the study area intersections and roadways are expected to operate 
better than when the previous school was in operation as the traffic is expected to be less, the 
traffic is expected to be more spread out during the day and no roadways are expected to be 
closed for any part of the day as they were when the school was previously in operation.   

185 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

Copyright © and (P) 1988–2012 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/streets /
Certain mapping and direction data © 2012 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, including: ©
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. ©  2012 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights 
reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc. © 2012 by Applied Geographic Solutions. Al l rights reserved. Portions © Copyright 2012 by Woodall 
Publications Corp. All ri ghts reserved.

Cedarburg, Wisconsin

0 yds 200 400 600 800

 
EXHIBIT 1-1

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

 

Study Area Intersection
Study Area Driveway
Proposed Site Location 

LEGEND

N

186 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 1-2

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

N

187 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 1-3

RECOMMENDED ROADWAY MODIFICATIONS

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

14
0’

Driveway

Driveway

 

Stop Sign
Proposed Driveway
Existing Lane Configuration
Proposed Lane Configuration

LEGEND

Provide full access driveways
as shown on site plan

Provide full access driveway
as shown on site plan

Provide right-out exit only 
driveway as shown on site plan

188 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

4

CHAPTER II – PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

PART A – PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
The planned residential development is proposed to be built on the lands previously occupied by 
the St. Francis Borgia Catholic School located immediately east of Washington Avenue along 
Hamilton Road in the City of Cedarburg as shown in Exhibit 2-1.  The planned development 
includes the construction of three buildings within the site. The first building is proposed to 
include 32 apartments within a two/three story building located on the south side of Hamilton 
Road immediately east of Washington Avenue.  The second building is proposed to include 28 
apartments within a two/three story building located on the northwest corner of the Hamilton 
Road intersection with Hilgen Road.  The third building is proposed to include 9 townhouses on 
the north side of Hamilton Road, northeast of the existing St. Francis Borgia Church, which is 
expected to remain.  Surface lot and underground parking is proposed for the two apartment 
buildings with attached garages proposed along the back of the buildings for the townhouses 
along with additional surface parking spaces.  Four driveways are proposed to provide access to 
the site consisting of two full access driveways along Hamilton Road, one full access driveway 
along Hilgen Avenue and a right-out exit only driveway along Washington Avenue.  Exhibit 2-2 
shows the proposed site plan for the residential development.   

The proposed development is expected to be constructed and substantially occupied by the year 
2018. 

PART B – STUDY AREA 
Based on discussions with the City of Cedarburg and as shown in Exhibit 2-1, the study area for 
the potential development includes the following intersections: 

 Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road (one-way stop control); 
 Washington Avenue & Spring Street (one-way stop control); and 
 Hamilton Road & Hilgen Avenue (two-way stop control). 

PART C – SITE ACCESSIBILITY 
The study area roadways are discussed below: 

Washington Avenue is a two-lane undivided north/south main arterial roadway with a posted 
speed limit of 25 miles per-hour (mph).  North of Hamilton Road, parking lanes exist along the 
east side of Washington Avenue to the north.  Parking lanes also exist along the west side of 
Washington Avenue to the north of Spring Street.  According to the WisDOT, the Year 2016 
annual average daily traffic (AADT) volumes on Washington Avenue were 13,600-vpd 
immediately north of Spring Street, 14,000-vpd at Hamilton Road and 12,200-vpd immediately 
south of Hamilton Road.  Sidewalks currently exist along both sides of Washington Avenue 
within the limits of the study area. 

Hamilton Road is a two-lane undivided northwest/southeast local residential roadway with 
additional parking lanes on both sides of the roadway and a posted speed limit of 25-mph.  The 
Year 2013 (most current available) WisDOT AADT volumes on Hamilton Road were 1,800-vpd 
immediately east of Washington Avenue.  Sidewalks currently exist along both sides of 
Hamilton Road within the limits of the study area. 

Spring Street is a two-lane undivided east/west local residential roadway with additional parking 
lanes on both sides of the roadway and a posted speed limit of 25-mph.  The Year 2010 (most 
current available) WisDOT AADT volumes on Spring Street were 1,100-vpd immediately east 

189 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

5

of Washington Avenue.  Sidewalks currently exist along both sides of Spring Street within the 
limits of the study area. 

Hilgen Avenue is a two-lane undivided north/south local residential roadway with additional 
parking lanes on both sides of the roadway and a posted speed limit of 25-mph.  There are 
currently no AADT count volumes available on Hilgen Avenue.  Sidewalks currently exist along 
both sides of Hilgen Avenue within the limits of the study area. 

 

190 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

Copyright © and (P) 1988–2012 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/streets /
Certain mapping and direction data © 2012 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, including: ©
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. ©  2012 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights 
reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc. © 2012 by Applied Geographic Solutions. Al l rights reserved. Portions © Copyright 2012 by Woodall 
Publications Corp. All ri ghts reserved.

Cedarburg, Wisconsin

0 yds 200 400 600 800

 
EXHIBIT 2-1

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

N

 

Study Area Intersection
Study Area Driveway
Proposed Site Location 

LEGEND

191 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 2-2

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

N

192 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

6

CHAPTER III – ANALYSIS OF EXISTING CONDITIONS 

PART A – PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS 
Exhibit 3-1 shows the existing transportation detail for the study area intersections.  More 
specifically, the exhibit illustrates intersection lane configurations, intersection traffic controls, 
posted speed limits, and approximate intersection spacing.   

PART B – TRAFFIC VOLUMES 
B1.  Existing Traffic Volumes 
The weekday morning and weekday afternoon peak hours are expected to drive the roadway 
modifications needed to adequately accommodate the proposed development, as they represent 
the highest volume of vehicles along the study area roadways.  Weekday morning peak period 
(6:00 to 9:00 am) and weekday evening peak hour (2:00 to 6:00 pm) turning movement counts 
were conducted in early April of 2017 at the three study area intersections. 

Based on the turning movement counts, the weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours 
were identified as being 7:00 to 8:00 am and 4:30 to 5:30 pm; respectively.  In addition, an 
analysis of the existing conditions assuming the school is still operational was completed for the 
school dismissal peak period of 3:00 to 4:00 pm.  The existing traffic volumes at the study area 
intersections under all three peak periods are shown in Exhibit 3-2.  The traffic counts used to 
determine peak hour factors and truck percentages have been included in the Appendix of this 
study. 

B2.  Projected Traffic Volumes 
Historical WisDOT AADT volumes from the Year 1995 through Year 2016 were collected along 
Washington Avenue and Spring Street.  Historical AADT trend lines, shown in the Appendix, 
were developed to determine the expected annual growth of traffic that may occur on the 
corridor between the present and Year 2018.  Based on the traffic projections (1995 – 2016) and 
assuming the historic trends will continue at a linear rate, traffic volumes are expected to be flat 
and or decrease along the project corridors.  However, to provide a conservative analysis, a 
growth rate of approximately 0.5-percent per year was utilized to calculate growth out to the 
build year 2018.  The build Year 2018 background (no development) traffic volumes, shown in 
Exhibit 3-3, account for the assumed 0.5-percent annual growth. 

B3.  Previous School Traffic Volumes 
To provide a comparison of the traffic volumes and operations when the St. Francis Borgia 
Catholic School was previously operating at the proposed site, traffic operations for the weekday 
morning and weekday afternoon (school dismissal) peak hours at the school were evaluated.  
Based on discussions with the school representatives and as utilized in the previous St Francis 
Borgia Catholic School relocation traffic study, the following statistics were utilized for the 
previous traffic condition: 

 Weekday morning school start time bell rang at 8:40 am; weekday afternoon dismissal 
bell rang at 3:20 pm. 

 15 buses arrived and departed every morning between 8:20 and 8:40 am; 
 5 buses arrived and departed every afternoon between 3:20 and 3:30 pm; 
 50 staff members, all driving their own vehicles, arrived between 6:30 and 8:15 am, with 

the majority arriving outside the peak hour; 
 Most staff members left between 3:45 and 4:30 pm; 
 Approximately 75 families drove their children daily to and from school; 

193 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

7

 15-20 families drove their children daily to childcare throughout the day. 

In addition, the transportation operations consisted of: 

 Buses entered from the west (off of Washington Avenue) along Hamilton Road and 
departed to the east; 

 Parents dropped off children in the parking lot on north side of Hamilton Road; 
 Parents entered the parking lot via the driveway on Spring Street and exited the driveway 

off of Hamilton Road, heading east; 
 Some parents parked in the neighborhoods to the east for drop-off/pick-up of students; 
 Hamilton Road was closed between Washington Avenue and Hilgen Avenue from 

approximately 10:00am to 11:30am and 11:30am to 1:00pm on school days to allow 
children to play in the street and access parking lot to the north; 

 Teachers parked in the lot to the south/west of school, with access off of Washington 
Avenue; 

 This teacher parking lot was also occasionally used by parents for quick turnaround drop-
off/pick-up of sick students. 

Based on this information, school trips were determined for the weekday morning and weekday 
afternoon (school dismissal) peak hours.  The school trips are discussed in the next section. 

PART C – CAPACITY LEVEL OF SERVICE 
C1.  Level of Service Definitions 
The study area intersections were analyzed based on the procedures set forth in the 2010 
Highway Capacity Manual (HCM).  Intersection operation is defined by “level of service”.  
Level of Service (LOS) is a quantitative measure that refers to the overall quality of flow at an 
intersection ranging from very good, represented by LOS ‘A’, to very poor, represented by LOS 
‘F’.  For the purpose of this study, LOS D or better was used to define desirable peak hour 
operating conditions.  This standard is the typical standard used by most municipalities as well as 
WisDOT for typical urban conditions as exist at this location.  Descriptions of the various levels 
of service are as follows: 

LOS A is the highest level of service that can be achieved.  Under this condition, 
intersection approaches appear quite open, turning movements are easily made, and 
nearly all drivers find freedom of operation.  At unsignalized intersections, average 
delays are less than 10 seconds. 
LOS B represents stable operation.  At unsignalized intersections, average delays are 10 
to 15 seconds. 
LOS C still represents stable operation, but periodic backups of a few vehicles may 
develop behind turning vehicles.  Most drivers begin to feel restricted, but not 
objectionably so.    At unsignalized intersections, average delays are 15 to 25 seconds. 
LOS D represents increasing traffic restrictions as the intersection approaches instability.  
Delays to approaching vehicles may be substantial during short peaks within the peak 
period, but periodic clearance of long lines occurs, thus preventing excessive backups.  
At unsignalized intersections, average delays are 25 to 35 seconds. 
LOS E represents the capacity of the intersection.    At unsignalized intersections, average 
delays are 35 to 50 seconds. 
LOS F represents jammed conditions where the intersection is over capacity and 
acceptable gaps for unsignalized intersections in the mainline traffic flow are minimal.  
At unsignalized intersections, average delays exceed 50 seconds. 

194 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

8

C2.  Year 2017 Existing Traffic Operations – No Roadway Modifications 
Exhibit 3-4 shows the Year 2017 existing traffic (no development and without school traffic) peak 
hour operating conditions at the study area intersections.  The existing traffic analysis was 
conducted using the existing lane configurations shown in Exhibit 3-1 and the existing traffic 
volumes shown in Exhibit 3-2. 

As shown in Exhibit 3-4, all turning movements at the study area intersections are currently 
operating acceptably at LOS C or better operations under current conditions. 

C3.  Existing Gap Analysis 
TADI also conducted a gap study along Washington Avenue at Hamilton Road during the 
weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours.  The data collection was conducted on 
Monday, April 10th (PM Peak) and Friday, April 7th (AM Peak).  Traffic gap studies measure the 
length of gaps, in time, between vehicles in roadway traffic streams to determine the ease of 
completing a turning maneuver onto a roadway.  Washington Avenue is a two-lane undivided 
roadway within the limits of the study area, allowing a left-turning vehicle to complete the 
maneuver in one stage; a left-turning vehicle finds an acceptable gap in both the northbound and 
southbound traffic simultaneously to complete the maneuver.   

According to the HCM methodology, the majority of drivers (85%) feel a 6.4-second gap 
between vehicles is required to complete a westbound left-turn from Hamilton Road onto 
Washington Avenue during a typical weekday morning or evening peak period.  Two vehicles in 
queue can complete the maneuver with 9.9-seconds of gap time, and three or more vehicles can 
complete the maneuver with 13.5-seconds of gap time.  Equivalent gaps (or capacity of gaps) are 
calculated by adding the number of gaps greater than 13.5-seconds multiplied by three, the 
number of gaps between 9.9-seconds and 13.4-seconds multiplied by two, and the number of 
gaps between 6.4-seconds and 9.8-seconds. 

Table 1 
Washington Avenue at Hamilton Road 

Equivalent Combined Gap Results 

Direction  Peak Hour 
Single Vehicle 

Gaps 
Double Vehicle 

Gaps 
Three Vehicle 

Gaps 
Equivalent 

Gaps 
Left-turn 

from 
Minor 

AM 54 22 23 167 

PM 73 25 24 195 

Based on the information summarized in Table 1, there are currently 167 equivalent gaps 
available along Washington Avenue during the weekday morning peak hour and 195 equivalent 
gaps available during the weekday evening peak hour for a westbound left-turning vehicle to 
complete the left-turn maneuver onto Washington Avenue.  For right turning vehicles, more gaps 
than those reported would be available since right-turning movements require shorter gap times 
from only the northbound traffic stream.  A gap study was used in this report to determine the 
magnitude of gaps currently existing in the traffic stream along Washington Avenue to get a feel 
for the availability of gaps with the proposed development in place.  Based on the analysis 
completed with the residential traffic, with a new need of approximately 25 gaps in the morning 
peak hour and 10 gaps in the afternoon peak hour (to accommodate the residential traffic), a 
significant number of gaps are currently available in the northbound/southbound traffic stream to 

195 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

9

allow vehicles to access Washington Avenue from Hamilton Road during the typical weekday 
morning and weekday evening peak hours. 

PART D – SOURCES OF DATA 
The following sources of data were obtained for use in conducting this traffic study: 

 Turning movement traffic counts –Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.; 

 Historic AADT volumes – WisDOT; 

 St. Francis Borgia Catholic School data - St. Francis Borgia Catholic School staff; 

 Proposed Site Plan – HSI Properties; 

 Existing transportation details – Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc. and Google™ Earth. 

196 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 3-1

EXISTING TRANSPORTATION DETAIL

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

N
N

XX’

 

Stop Sign
Existing Lane Configuration
Existing Storage Length (in Feet)
Distance Between Roadways (in Feet)
Existing Building

LEGEND

XX’

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

SPEED
LIMIT

25

SPEED
LIMIT

25

SPEED
LIMIT

25

Baseball Field

Parking Lot

Parking Lot

St Francis Borgia School

C
hurch

16
0’

675’

40
0’

14
0’

197 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 3-2

YEAR 2017 EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Volumes (7:00-8:00 AM)
Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour Volumes (3:00-4:00 PM)  
Weekday Evening Peak Hour Volumes (4:30-5:30 PM) 
Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

XX
(XX)
[XX]

–

LEGEND

 [6
90

] (
55

0)
 2

50

 5 
(1

0)
 [1

0]
 

- ( - ) [5] 70 (80) [100] 
5 (10) [5] 

64
0 

(4
75

) 
[5

55
] 

30
 (

35
) 

[5
0]

 

75 (80) [95]
- ( - ) [5] 

- 
( 

- 
) 

[ -
 ] 

- 
( 

- 
) 

[ -
 ]

- 
( 

- 
) 

[ -
 ]

  [ - ] ( - ) -
 [70] (85) 120[5] ( - ) -

 [ 
- 

] (
 -

 )
 5

[ -
 ] 

( 
- 

) 
-

[5
] (

10
) 

5

 [7
45

] (
60

5)
 3

15
  [

35
] (

20
) 

10

[5
] (

10
) 

10

45 (50) [60]
5 (5) [10] 

75 (80) [100] 
 

 [75] (85) 130

51
5 

(4
00

) 
[5

00
] 

51
5 

(4
00

) 
[4

95
]

13
0 

(8
0)

 [7
0]

 

 [6
85

] (
54

5)
 2

50
 [5

] (
5)

 -

Driveway

Driveway

198 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

- 
( 

- 
) 

[ -
 ] 

- 
( 

- 
) 

[ -
 ]

- 
( 

- 
) 

[ -
 ]

 
EXHIBIT 3-3

YEAR 2018 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

 [6
95

] (
55

5)
 2

50

 5 
(1

0)
 [1

0]
 

- ( - ) [5] 70 (80) [100] 
5 (10) [5] 

64
5 

(4
75

) 
[5

60
] 

30
 (

35
) 

[5
0]

 

75 (80) [95]
- ( - ) [5] 

  [ - ] ( - ) -
 [70] (85) 120[5] ( - ) -

 [ 
- 

] (
 -

 )
 5

[ -
 ] 

( 
- 

) 
-

[5
] (

10
) 

5

 [7
50

] (
61

0)
 3

15
  [

35
] (

20
) 

10

[5
] (

10
) 

10

45 (50) [60]
5 (5) [10] 

75 (80) [100] 
 

 [75] (85) 130

52
0 

(4
00

) 
[5

05
] 

52
0 

(4
00

) 
[5

00
]

13
0 

(8
0)

 [7
0]

 

 [6
90

] (
55

0)
 2

50
 [5

] (
5)

 -

Driveway

Driveway

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Volumes (7:00-8:00 AM)
Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour Volumes (3:00-4:00 PM)  
Weekday Evening Peak Hour Volumes (4:30-5:30 PM) 
Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)

XX
(XX)
[XX]

–

LEGEND

199 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 3-4

YEAR 2017 EXISTING TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

LT TH RT LT TH RT LT TH RT LT TH RT

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 12 - 12 - 0 0 8 0 -

- - - C - C - A A A A -

- - - 17 - 17 - 0 0 9 0 -

- - - C - C - A A A A -

- - - 22 - 22 - 0 0 10 0 -

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 11 - 11 - 0 0 8 0 -

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 15 - 15 - 0 0 9 0 -

- - - C - C - A A A A -

- - - 18 - 18 - 0 0 10 0 -

A A A A A A A A A A A A

7 0 0 8 0 0 10 10 10 10 10 10

A A A A A A A A A A A A

7 0 0 8 0 0 9 9 9 10 10 10

A A A A A A A A A A A A

7 0 0 7 0 0 9 9 9 10 10 10

                      Numbers represent average delay in seconds for each particular movement

                 PM2       Weeday evening peak hour (4:30 - 5:30 pm)

AM

PM1

PM2

One-Way 

Stop Sign

AM

PM1

PM2

AM

PM1

PM2

Exhibit 3-4

Year 2017 Existing Traffic Peak Hour Operating Conditions

Existing Geometrics and Traffic Control

Intersection

Traffic 

Control

Peak 

Hour

Level of Service per Movement by Approach

Eastbound Westbound Northbound

Washington Avenue at                  

Hilgen Avenue

Two-Way 

Stop Sign

Southbound

Washington Avenue at                   

Spring Street

One-Way 

Stop Sign

   Notes:  "-" indicates a movement that is not possible or is prohibited.

                 AM         Weeday morning peak hour (7:00 - 8:00 am)

                 PM1       Weeday afternoon (school discharge) peak hour (3:00 - 4:00 pm)

Washington Avenue at                    

Hamilton Road

200 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

10

CHAPTER IV – DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC 

PART A – SITE TRAFFIC FORECASTING 
To address any potential future traffic impacts along the study area roadways and at the 
intersections adjacent to the development, it is necessary to identify the hourly and daily volume 
of traffic generated by the proposed residential development.  The expected traffic volumes 
generated by the residential development are based on the size and type of the proposed land 
uses, and on trip rates as published in the Institute of Transportation Engineer’s (ITE) Trip 
Generation Manual, 9th Edition, 2012. 

A1.  Trip Generation – Proposed Development 
The trip generation table for the full buildout of the proposed residential development is shown 
on Exhibit 4-1.  As shown, upon full build out, the residential development is expected to 
generate 35 new trips (10 entering/25 exiting) during a typical weekday morning peak hour.  
During a typical weekday evening peak hour, the development is expected to generate 40 new 
trips (30 entering/10 exiting).  On a typical weekday 24-hour period, the residential development 
is expected to generate approximately 450 total new trips (225 entering/225 exiting) under full 
build conditions.  It is noted that the previous school use at this site generated more than 4-times 
the amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development during the morning peak hour 
and approximately 3-times the amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development 
during the afternoon peaks.  On a daily basis, the previous school generated approximately 22-
percent more traffic over the entire 24-hour weekday. 

A2.  Trip Distribution – Proposed Development 
The trip distribution for the proposed residential development was determined based on existing 
traffic patterns within the study area, the type of proposed land uses, and anticipated growth 
areas located outside the study area.  The expected trip distribution for the proposed development 
is shown in table format in Exhibit 4-1, and summarized as follows: 

 40-percent to/from the north on Washington Avenue; 

 45-percent to/from the south on Washington Avenue; 

 5-percent to/from the east on Spring Street; 

 5-percent to/from the east on Hamilton Road; and 

 5-percent to/from the south on Hilgen Avenue. 

A3.  Trip Assignment 
The peak hour trips expected to be generated by the full build-out of the proposed residential 
development were assigned to the study area roadways based on the above trip distribution and are 
shown on Exhibit 4-3.  The Year 2018 build (with residential development) traffic was 
determined by adding the Year 2018 background (no development) traffic volumes (Exhibit 3-3) 
to the build (with residential development) new trips (Exhibit 4-3).  The Year 2018 build (with 
the residential development) traffic volumes are shown in Exhibit 4-5. 

A4.  Previous School Traffic Volumes 
To provide a comparison of the traffic volumes and operations when the St. Francis Borgia 
Catholic School was previously operating at the proposed site, school trips were assigned to the 
study area intersections based on the information provided by the school and as listed in the 
previous chapter of this report. 

201 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

11

Based on this information and as shown on Exhibit 4-2, school trips were determined for the 
weekday morning and weekday afternoon (school dismissal) peak hours.  The school trips were 
then assigned to the study area intersections based on the previous traffic patterns of the school 
traffic.  The percent distribution along each of the study area roadways is also shown in table 
format on Exhibit 4-2.  The peak hour trips with the school previously in operation are shown on 
Exhibit 4-4. 

The Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) traffic was determined by 
adding the Year 2017 existing (no development) traffic volumes (Exhibit 3-2) to the peak hour 
trips with the school previously in operation (Exhibit 4-4).  The Year 2017 Existing Total (with 
previous school in operation) traffic volumes are shown in Exhibit 4-6. 

A5.  Off-Site Development 
No off-site development was included in this study.  It is noted that the Amcast property, which 
has been considered for quite some time exists to the southeast.  There are too many unknowns for 
the type of redevelopment, size, and specific use of the redevelopment and/or timing which all 
impact the amount of traffic generated.  If this redevelopment does move forward at some point in 
the future, a separate traffic study should be completed at that time to determine the impacts of that 
redevelopment on the study area.  In addition, any unknown background growth is accounted for in 
the assumed 0.5-percent annual growth used to calculate the Year 2018 background traffic 
volumes as discussed in the previous chapter. 

PART B – CAPACITY LEVEL OF SERVICE 
B1.  Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) Traffic Operations – No 
Roadway Modifications 
Exhibit 4-7 shows the Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) traffic peak 
hour operating conditions at the study area intersections.  The traffic analysis was conducted using 
the existing lane configurations shown in Exhibit 3-1 and the Year 2017 Existing Total (with 
previous school in operation) traffic volumes shown in Exhibit 4-6. 

As shown in Exhibit 4-7, all study area intersections previously operated acceptably at LOS C or 
better operations under the Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) 
conditions. 

B2.  Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic Operations – No Roadway 
Modifications 
Exhibit 4-8 shows the Year 2018 build (with residential development) peak hour operating 
conditions at the study area intersections.  The traffic analysis was conducted using the existing 
lane configurations shown in Exhibit 3-1 and the Year 2018 build (with residential development) 
traffic volumes shown in Exhibit 4-5. 

As shown in Exhibit 4-8, all study area intersections are expected to continue to acceptably at 
LOS C or better operations under the Year 2018 build (with residential development) conditions. 

PART C – QUEUEING ANALYSIS  
The maximum queues at the study area intersections were calculated based on the analysis of the 
peak hour operating conditions.  The expected maximum queues with the residential 
development at the stop sign controlled intersections are not expected to be longer than the 
existing conditions during the typical weekday morning and weekday evening peak hours. 

202 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-1

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

In Out Total In Out Total

210 5 10 15 15 5 20

(6.65) (20%) (80%) (0.51) (65%) (35%) (0.62)
190 5 10 15 10 5 15

(6.65) (20%) (80%) (0.51) (65%) (35%) (0.62)
50 0 5 5 5 0 5

(5.81) (17%) (83%) (0.44) (67%) (33%) (0.52)

450 10 25 35 30 10 40

TRIP DISTRIBUTION
North on Washington Ave 40% 185 5 10 15 10 5 15

South on Washington Ave 45% 205 5 15 20 20 5 25

East on Spring Street 5% 20 0 0 0 0 0 0

East on Hamilton Road 5% 20 0 0 0 0 0 0

South on Hilgen 5% 20 0 0 0 0 0 0

100% 450 10 25 35 30 10 40

Exhibit 4-1

On-Site Trip Generation Table

Total New Trips

Townhouses (C) 230 9 Units

Apartments (B) 220 28 Units

Apartments (A) 220 32 Units

AM Peak PM Peak

Land Use

ITE 

Code Proposed Size

Weekday 

Daily

203 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-2

PREVIOUS SCHOOL TRIP GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

In Out Total In Out Total

552 90 80 170 55 65 120

TRIP DISTRIBUTION
North on Washington Ave 35% 194 30 30 60 20 25 45

South on Washington Ave 45% 246 40 30 70 25 30 55

East on Spring Street 10% 56 10 10 20 5 5 10

East on Hamilton Road 10% 56 10 10 20 5 5 10

South on Hilgen 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

100% 552 90 80 170 55 65 120

(4) 75 families drop off and pick up during AM & PM peaks, assumed 1/3 car pool or arrive outside peaks; daily includes after 

       school activities

40 15 15 30 5 5 10

Total New Trips

(1) 15 buses during AM Peak, 5 buses during PM Peak

(2) 50 staff - all arrive between 6:30 and 8:15 & leave between 3:30 and 4:00; assumed most arrived off peak

(3) 15 families drop off for day care in AM peak, pick up in afternoon is later than school PM peak hour

Daycare (3) TADI

Family Drop Off/Pick Up  (4) TADI 100328 50 50 100 50 50

64 15 15 30 0 0 0

Buses  (1) TADI

Staff (2) TADI 10120 10 0 10 0 10

Exhibit 4-2

Previous School Trip Generation Table

Land Use

ITE 

Code Proposed Size

Weekday 

Daily

AM Peak PM Peak

204 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-3

YEAR 2018 DEVELOPMENT NEW TRIPS 

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

 [2
0]

 5

 5 
[1

0]
 

5 [ - ]  
 

 5 
[1

0]
 

5 [5]15 [5] 

5 
[ -

 ] 
 

  [5] 10

 [5
] 1

0

   
[5

] 1
0

10 [5]  

 [5] -[10] 5[15] 5

15
 [5

] 
5 

[1
0]

 

 
 [5

] 5

Driveway

Driveway

 
 [ 

- 
] 5

 [2
0]

 5

  [10] 5

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Volumes (7:00-8:00 AM)  
Weekday Evening Peak Hour Volumes (4:30-5:30 PM) 
Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)
Proposed Driveway

XX
[XX]

–

LEGEND

205 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-4

PREVIOUS SCHOOL IN OPERATION TRIPS

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

 (
15

) 
20

(5
) 

10

- (5) 
5 (10) 
 

 
30 (20)
25 (10)

5 (5) 

5 
(5

)

70
 (4

5)
  

 (
5)

 1
0

   
(25) 40

5 ( - )5 (5)  

 (5) 5

5 
(5

)
5 

(5
) 

10
 (

10
) 

Driveway

Driveway

 
 (

25
) 

45
(5

) 
10

  (25) 40(5) 10(15) 20

 5 
(5

) 
25

 (
15

)
 
25 (15) 
5 (5)

 
 (

15
) 

15
(5

) 
5

5 (5)  

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Volumes (7:00-8:00 AM)
Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour Volumes (3:00-4:00 PM)   
Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)
Proposed Driveway

XX
(XX)

–

LEGEND

D
ri

ve
w

ay

 
10 (5)

   
(1

0)
 5

(1
0)

 1
5

206 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-5

YEAR 2018 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES
WITH DEVELOPMENT

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

 [7
15

] 2
55

 5 
[1

0]
5 

[1
0]

 

 
45 [60]
5 [10] 

80 [100]15 [10] 

5 
[ -

 ]
- [

 - 
]

- [
 - 

]  

  [5] 10
[ - ] -

 
[ -

 ] 
-

[5
] 1

0 

   
[7

55
] 3

25
[3

5]
 1

0

- [5]70 [100]5 [5]  

 [5] -[85] 135[15] 5

53
5 

[5
10

] 

52
0 

[5
00

]
13

5 
[8

0]

 
 [5

] 5
[ -

 ] 
-

[ -
 ] 

-

Driveway

Driveway

 
 [6

90
] 2

55
[2

5]
 5

 65
0 

[5
70

]
30

 [5
0]

 

- [ - ]85 [105] - [ - ]

- 
[ -

 ] 
- 

[ -
 ]

- 
[ -

 ]

  [ - ] - [70] 120[15] 5

 [5
] 1

5
[ -

 ] 
-

[5
] 5

 

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Volumes (7:00-8:00 AM)  
Weekday Evening Peak Hour Volumes (4:30-5:30 PM) 
Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)
Proposed Driveway

XX
[XX]

–

LEGEND

5 [ - ]  
 

207 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-6

YEAR 2017 EXISTING TOTAL TRAFFIC VOLUMES
WITH PREVIOUS SCHOOL IN OPERATION

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

Spring Street

H
ilg

en
 A

ve
n

u
e

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve
n

u
e

Hamilton Road

 ( - ) -
( - ) -
( - ) -

- (5) 
5 (10) 
 

80 (85)- ( - )

5 
(5

)
- (

 - 
)

70
 (4

5)
  

 (
 -

 )
 5

(5
) 

10
(1

0)
 5

   
(6

15
) 

32
0

(3
0)

 2
5

5 ( - )75 (85)5 (10)  

 (5) 5(85) 130( - ) -

52
0 

(4
05

)
5 

(5
) 

52
5 

(4
10

)
13

0 
(8

0)
 

Driveway

Driveway

  (25) 40(90) 130(15) 20

 64
5 

(4
80

) 
45

 (
50

)
 
70 (65) 
10 (10)

 
 (

56
0)

 2
65

(1
0)

 5

5 (5)75 (80)- ( - )  

 (
56

5)
 2

70
(5

) 
10

 ( 
- )

 -
( -

 ) 
-

( -
 ) 

-

Weekday Morning Peak Hour Volumes (7:00-8:00 AM)
Weekday Afternoon Peak Hour Volumes (3:00-4:00 PM)   
Negligible Traffic Volumes (Fewer than 3 vph)
Proposed Driveway

XX
(XX)

–

LEGEND

208 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-7

YEAR 2017 EXISTING TOTAL TRAFFIC OPERATIONS
WITH PREVIOUS SCHOOL IN OPERATION

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

LT TH RT LT TH RT LT TH RT LT TH RT

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 14 - 14 - 0 0 8 0 -

- - - C - C - A A A A -

- - - 19 - 19 - 0 0 9 0 -

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 11 - 11 - 0 0 8 0 -

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 15 - 15 - 0 0 9 0 -

A A A A A A A A A A A A

8 0 0 8 0 0 11 11 11 10 10 10

A A A A A A A A A A A A

8 0 0 8 0 0 10 10 10 10 10 10

                      Numbers represent average delay in seconds for each particular movement

                 AM         Weeday morning peak hour (7:00 - 8:00 am)

Washington Avenue at                   

Spring Street

One-Way 

Stop Sign

Washington Avenue at                    

Hamilton Road

One-Way 

Stop Sign

Washington Avenue at                  

Hilgen Avenue

Two-Way 

Stop Sign

Exhibit 4-7

Year 2017 Total Traffic Peak Hour Operating Conditions

Existing Geometrics and Traffic Control

Intersection

Traffic 

Control

AM

PM1

PM1

AM

Peak 

Hour

Level of Service per Movement by Approach

Eastbound Westbound Northbound

                 PM1       Weeday afternoon (school discharge) peak hour (3:00 - 4:00 pm)

Southbound

AM

PM1

   Notes:  "-" indicates a movement that is not possible or is prohibited.

209 of 381



2068: 4-21-17 NOT TO SCALE

N

 
EXHIBIT 4-8

YEAR 2018 BUILD TRAFFIC OPERATIONS
WITH DEVELOPMENT

ARRABELLE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
CEDARBURG, WISCONSIN

LT TH RT LT TH RT LT TH RT LT TH RT

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 12 - 12 - 0 0 8 0 -

- - - C - C - A A A A -

- - - 23 - 23 - 0 0 10 0 -

- - - B - B - A A A A -

- - - 14 - 14 - 0 0 8 0 -

- - - C - C - A A A A -

- - - 23 - 23 - 0 0 10 0 -

A A A A A A A A A A A A

7 0 0 8 0 0 10 10 10 10 10 10

A A A A A A A A A A A A

7 0 0 7 0 0 10 10 10 10 10 10

- - - - - A - A - A - -

- - - - - 10 - 0 - 0 - -

- - - - - B - A - A - -

- - - - - 14 - 0 - 0 - -

A A A A A A B B B A A A

7 0 0 8 0 0 10 10 10 9 9 9

A A A A A A B B B A A A

8 0 0 7 0 0 10 10 10 10 10 10

A - A - - - A A - - A A

9 - 9 - - - 7 0 - - 0 0

A - A - - - A A - - A A

9 - 9 - - - 7 0 - - 0 0

                      Numbers represent average delay in seconds for each particular movement

                 PM2       Weeday evening peak hour (4:30 - 5:30 pm)

   Notes:  "-" indicates a movement that is not possible or is prohibited.

                 AM         Weeday morning peak hour (7:00 - 8:00 am)

Washington Avenue at                   

Spring Street

One-Way 

Stop Sign

Hamilton Road at                    

Proposed Full Access Driveway

Two-Way 

Stop Sign

Hilgen Avenue at                  

Proposed Full Access Driveway

AM

PM2

One-Way 

Stop Sign

AM

PM2

Southbound

AM

PM2

AM

PM2

Exhibit 4-8

Year 2018 Build Traffic Peak Hour Operating Conditions

Existing Geometrics and Traffic Control

Intersection

Traffic 

Control

Peak 

Hour

Level of Service per Movement by Approach

Eastbound Westbound Northbound

Washington Avenue at                  

Proposed Exit Only Driveway

One-Way 

Stop Sign

AM

PM2

Washington Avenue at                    

Hamilton Road

One-Way 

Stop Sign

AM

PM2

Washington Avenue at                  

Hilgen Avenue

Two-Way 

Stop Sign

210 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

12

CHAPTER V – RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSION 

PART A – RECOMMENDATIONS 
A1.  Existing Traffic – Recommended Roadway Modifications 
The study area intersections were analyzed based on the procedures set forth in the 2010 
Highway Capacity Manual (HCM).  Intersection operation is defined by “level of service”.  
Level of Service (LOS) is a quantitative measure that refers to the overall quality of flow at an 
intersection ranging from very good, represented by LOS ‘A’, to very poor, represented by LOS 
‘F’.  For the purpose of this study, LOS D or better was used to define desirable peak hour 
operating conditions.  This standard is the typical standard used by most municipalities as well as 
WisDOT for typical urban conditions as exist at this location.   

An analysis of the existing conditions was done as a basis for comparison and to determine if any 
roadway modifications would be necessary under the existing conditions.  The analysis was 
conducted using existing intersection geometrics and traffic control.  Based on the analysis 
completed as part of this study, no roadway modifications are recommended to accommodate the 
existing traffic volumes.  All turning movements at the study area intersections are currently 
operating acceptably at LOS C or better operations under the Year 2017 Existing (no 
development) traffic conditions. 

A2.  Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school in operation) Traffic – Recommended 
Roadway Modifications 
An analysis of the existing conditions assuming the school was still operational was also done as 
a basis for comparison and to determine if any roadway modifications would be necessary under 
the existing conditions with the school still in operation.  The analysis was conducted using 
existing intersection geometrics and traffic control.  Based on the analysis completed as part of 
this study, no roadway modifications are recommended to accommodate the existing conditions 
with the school still in operation.  All turning movements at the study area intersections are 
expected  to operate acceptably at LOS C or better operations under the Year 2017 Existing Total 
(with previous school in operation) traffic conditions. 

A3.  Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic – Recommended Roadway 
Modifications 
Year 2018 build (with residential development) traffic volumes include full build out of the 
proposed development.  Based on the analysis completed as part of this study, no roadway 
modifications are recommended to the existing intersections in order to accommodate the Year 
2018 build (with residential development) traffic volumes.  All turning movements at the study 
area intersections are expected to continue to operate acceptably at LOS C or better operations 
under the Year 2018 build (with residential development) traffic conditions. 

PART B – CONCLUSION 
All movements at the study area intersections are expected to operate safely and efficiently 
through the build year 2018 under the existing geometric and traffic control conditions with no 
modifications necessary to the existing intersections with full buildout and occupancy of the 
residential development.   

The previous school use at this site generated more than 4-times the amount of traffic than the 
proposed apartment development during the morning peak hour and approximately 3-times the 
amount of traffic than the proposed apartment development during the afternoon peaks.  On a 
daily basis, the previous school generated approximately 22-percent more traffic over the entire 

211 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

TADI (Traffic Analysis & Design, Inc.) 
 

13

24-hour weekday.  In summary the study area intersections and roadways are expected to operate 
better than when the previous school was in operation as the traffic is expected to be less, the 
traffic is expected to be more spread out during the day and no roadways are expected to be 
closed for any part of the day as they were when the school was previously in operation. 

212 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
Traffic 

 
Existing Turning Movement Counts 

Existing Gap Counts  
Historic AADT Backup for Growth Rate 

 
 

  

213 of 381



Version 2013.J4.1 Page 1 of 11

Base Information, Observed (7) Hour and Estimated (24) Hour Volume Summaries

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

Site Information Count Information

SE

↑

AM MD PM

AM MD PM

0.937 2.000
Company Name 1.000

Comments

Observed 7 Hour Volume Summary

7
PED: 7 BIKE: 0

0 3391 207 0
   

PED:  292 PED:
37  0 45

 46
 0

↑
0  North
0 

BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  1

   
0 0 3362 148

PED: 2 BIKE: 0

Estimated 24 Hour AADT

0 6356 388 0
   

 547
 0
 86
 0

↑
0  North
0 
0 
0 

   
Daily/Seasonal Factor 0.937 0 0 6301 277
Count Expansion Factor 2.000
Manual Adjustment Factor 1.000
Total 24 Hr Expansion Factor 1.874

Clear & Dry
Clear & Dry

AM Peak Period
Weather

Wednesday, April 05, 2017
Wednesday, April 05, 2017

No Special Events

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:

Special Pedestrians Observed
None
None

Manual Adj.

Elementry school age children
Pre‐school children

TADI, Inc.

None

Midday Peak Period
PM Peak Period Thursday, April 06, 2017

Peak Hours Selected for Analysis

Calculated Peak Hours
Clear & Dry

West Leg
South Leg Washington Avenue 7:00‐8:00am

7:00‐8:00am

North Leg Washington Avenue

None
Version 2011.J4.1

2015 DOT Factors

None
NoneWheelchairs/electric scooters

Elderly/disabled (except wheelchairs)
Visually impaired (white cane/helper dog)

AM Peak Period
Midday Peak Period

PM Peak Period

Karlyn Bieberitz

Karlyn Bieberitz

Observers

 355

3654


3
3
8 Sp
rin

g Stre
e
t

Other (describe) None None

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME

Washington Avenue


6442

6579
13,021

6849


6
3
40 

24 HOUR AADT 13,592

HOUR VOLUMES 7,252
OBSERVED Washington Avenue

0


3437

3510
6,947

6744

0

0

0
Traffic Control Partial Stop Control

County

Roadway Names North Direction

3:00‐4:00pm

4:30‐5:30pm

1
,2
9
9

Sp
rin

g Stre
e
t 665

13,956
TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME



7,446
3598

6
9
3

0 0

Washington Avenue

ESTIMATED Washington Avenue

Total Entering Hourly Volume

0
Intersection of:

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

WisDOT RegionOzaukee

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

Municipality City of Cedarburg Hrs Counted: 6:00 AM‐9:00 AM and 2:00 PM‐6:00 PM

Count Basics
Schools in Session

1st Day of Count Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Special Considerations

East Leg Spring Street

Holidays None
Special Events None

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsCount Expansion Group
Daily/Seasonal Adjustment Factor

Schools In Session

Count Expansion Factor

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsDaily/Seasonal Adjustment Group

539

1070
898

0 0 0 0 0

1013
1174

1378 1374

0 0 0 0
0

1,000

2,000

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

M
o

to
r 

V
eh

ic
le

V
o

lu
m

e

One-Hour Time Period Start Time 
(For example, 6am represents volume from 6am to 7am)

214 of 381



Page 2 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Graphical Summary

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

AM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 644 31 0
   

PED:  45 PED:
0  0 2

 7
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 333 10

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Midday (MD) Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 0 0 0
   

PED:  0 PED:
0  0 0

 0
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 0 0

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

PM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 1 BIKE: 0

0 474 33 0
   

PED:  40 PED:
3  0 9

 5
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 603 19

PED: 1 BIKE: 0

Count Basics
Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Washington Avenue


479

622
1,101

9
7

0  52

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

All Motor Vehicles

4
5 Sp

rin
g Stre

e
t

507
643


TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
1,174

Washington Avenue



0

0 

PM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue
3:00‐4:00pm 1,150

0

0

0 



0

0

0
0

0

0 Sp
rin

g Stre
e
t

0

 0

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
0 0

0

MD PEAK HOUR

0


651

343
994

Washington Avenue

Washington Avenue

0 

5
2 Sp

rin
g Stre

e
t

0
9
3

0  41

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

N/A

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Schools in Session

No Special Events

AM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
7:00‐8:00am 1,053 1,070

675
378


0

215 of 381



Count Basics Page 3 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Summary

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

Peak Hour Volumes, Truck Percentages, and PHFs

   

AM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

7:00 AM 0 146 6 0 152 21 0 5 0 26 2 86 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 266

7:15 AM 0 178 4 0 182 15 0 0 0 15 1 97 0 0 98 0 0 0 0 0 295

7:30 AM 0 168 8 0 176 4 0 1 0 5 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 239
7:45 AM 0 152 13 0 165 5 0 1 0 6 7 92 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 270
Peak Hour Volume 0 644 31 0 675 45 0 7 0 52 10 333 0 0 343 0 0 0 0 0 1070
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 645 30 0 675 45 0 5 0 50 10 335 0 0 345 0 0 0 0 0 1070

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 4.4 0.0 14.3 0.0 5.8 0.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 4.4 0.0 14.3 0.0 5.8 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 4.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.90 0.60 0.00 0.93 0.54 0.00 0.35 0.00 0.50 0.36 0.86 0.00 0.00 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.91

   

MD Peak Hour Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peak Hour Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   

PM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

3:00 PM 0 118 6 0 124 14 0 0 0 14 4 130 0 0 134 0 0 0 0 0 272

3:15 PM 0 112 9 0 121 10 0 3 0 13 4 156 0 0 160 0 0 0 0 0 294

3:30 PM 0 109 9 0 118 8 0 1 0 9 3 149 0 0 152 0 0 0 0 0 279
3:45 PM 0 135 9 0 144 8 0 1 0 9 8 168 0 0 176 0 0 0 0 0 329
Peak Hour Volume 0 474 33 0 507 40 0 5 0 45 19 603 0 0 622 0 0 0 0 0 1174
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 475 35 0 510 40 0 5 0 45 20 605 0 0 625 0 0 0 0 0 1180

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.88 0.92 0.00 0.88 0.71 0.00 0.42 0.00 0.80 0.59 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.89

Peak Hour Pedestrian and Bicyclist Volumes
Pedestrians and Bicyclists Total

Ped &

Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Bike

15‐Minute Start Time Total Total Total Total Volume

7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1

7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1

7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0

7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 2 0 0 2

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

3:00 PM 0 2 1 1 4

3:15 PM 1 2 0 2 5

3:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2

3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3
Total 1 9 1 3 14

Non‐Holiday

Schools in Session

No Special Events

Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

East Approach

From North From East From South From West

Weekday

West Approach

From North From East From South

From East From South From West

All Motor Vehicles

A
M

0
0

0

0

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian

0

0

0

Pedestrian

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist

CrossingCrossing

South Approach

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

N/A

A
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

M
id
d
a
y 
(M

D
) 
P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Crossing

North Approach

P
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

Crossing

From West

0 0
0 0

0

0 0

1 0

1 0

2 0

0

0 0 0 00 0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

M
D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

P
M

0 0 2

0 0 2

1 0 9

1 0 2

0 0 3

0

0 0 2 0

0

0

0 1 0 1

0

0 00

00 1 0 3
0 0 0 0

0

216 of 381



Count Basics Page 4 of 11

Hourly Volume Summary ‐ Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

One‐Hour Motor Vehicle Data

   
One‐Hour Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume E/W N/S

6:00 AM 0 363 15 0 378 14 0 7 0 21 4 136 0 0 140 0 0 0 0 0 539 21 518

7:00 AM 0 644 31 0 675 45 0 7 0 52 10 333 0 0 343 0 0 0 0 0 1070 52 1018

8:00 AM 0 451 24 0 475 47 0 7 0 54 22 347 0 0 369 0 0 0 0 0 898 54 844

9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2:00 PM 0 428 28 0 456 31 0 6 0 37 21 499 0 0 520 0 0 0 0 0 1013 37 976

3:00 PM 0 474 33 0 507 40 0 5 0 45 19 603 0 0 622 0 0 0 0 0 1174 45 1129

4:00 PM 0 517 41 0 558 55 0 5 0 60 29 731 0 0 760 0 0 0 0 0 1378 60 1318

5:00 PM 0 514 35 0 549 60 0 9 0 69 43 713 0 0 756 0 0 0 0 0 1374 69 1305

6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 3391 207 0 3598 292 0 46 0 338 148 3362 0 0 3510 0 0 0 0 0 7446 338 7108

Volume Totals

Non‐Holiday

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

DirectionalFrom South From WestFrom East

Weekday

P
M

Totals

A
M

M
D

From North

Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

Schools in Session

No Special Events

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

En
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 B
y 
A
p
p
ro
ac
h
 (
Li
n
e
 C
h
ar
t)

To
ta
l E
n
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 (
B
ar
 C
h
ar
t)

One‐Hour Time Period Start Time
(For example, 6am represents volumes from 6am to 7am)

Graphical Summary of Hourly Volumes
 All Motor Vehicles  Southbound Approach  Westbound Approach

 Northbound Approach  Eastbound Approach

217 of 381



Count Basics Page 5 of 11

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum PHF
6:00 AM 0 66 2 0 68 1 0 2 0 3 1 21 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 93 539 0.69
6:15 AM 0 72 2 0 74 2 0 1 0 3 0 24 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 101 712 0.67
6:30 AM 0 108 3 0 111 1 0 3 0 4 3 33 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 151 906 0.77
6:45 AM 0 117 8 0 125 10 0 1 0 11 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 194 994 0.84
7:00 AM 0 146 6 0 152 21 0 5 0 26 2 86 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 266 1070 0.91
7:15 AM 0 178 4 0 182 15 0 0 0 15 1 97 0 0 98 0 0 0 0 0 295 1032 0.87
7:30 AM 0 168 8 0 176 4 0 1 0 5 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 239 920 0.85
7:45 AM 0 152 13 0 165 5 0 1 0 6 7 92 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 270 942 0.87
8:00 AM 0 125 6 0 131 10 0 1 0 11 3 83 0 0 86 0 0 0 0 0 228 898 0.86
8:15 AM 0 87 0 0 87 8 0 1 0 9 6 81 0 0 87 0 0 0 0 0 183
8:30 AM 0 128 12 0 140 19 0 2 0 21 8 92 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 261
8:45 AM 0 111 6 0 117 10 0 3 0 13 5 91 0 0 96 0 0 0 0 0 226
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 103 4 0 107 4 0 0 0 4 1 111 0 0 112 0 0 0 0 0 223 1013 0.84
2:15 PM 0 85 4 0 89 10 0 3 0 13 7 131 0 0 138 0 0 0 0 0 240 1062 0.88
2:30 PM 0 99 4 0 103 10 0 2 0 12 7 126 0 0 133 0 0 0 0 0 248 1116 0.92
2:45 PM 0 141 16 0 157 7 0 1 0 8 6 131 0 0 137 0 0 0 0 0 302 1147 0.95
3:00 PM 0 118 6 0 124 14 0 0 0 14 4 130 0 0 134 0 0 0 0 0 272 1174 0.89
3:15 PM 0 112 9 0 121 10 0 3 0 13 4 156 0 0 160 0 0 0 0 0 294 1231 0.94
3:30 PM 0 109 9 0 118 8 0 1 0 9 3 149 0 0 152 0 0 0 0 0 279 1291 0.91
3:45 PM 0 135 9 0 144 8 0 1 0 9 8 168 0 0 176 0 0 0 0 0 329 1361 0.96
4:00 PM 0 129 8 0 137 16 0 1 0 17 5 170 0 0 175 0 0 0 0 0 329 1378 0.97
4:15 PM 0 132 7 0 139 11 0 1 0 12 9 194 0 0 203 0 0 0 0 0 354 1439 0.92
4:30 PM 0 132 14 0 146 12 0 3 0 15 9 179 0 0 188 0 0 0 0 0 349 1452 0.93
4:45 PM 0 124 12 0 136 16 0 0 0 16 6 188 0 0 194 0 0 0 0 0 346 1423 0.91
5:00 PM 0 151 13 0 164 16 0 3 0 19 13 194 0 0 207 0 0 0 0 0 390 1374 0.88
5:15 PM 0 146 11 0 157 16 0 2 0 18 8 184 0 0 192 0 0 0 0 0 367
5:30 PM 0 107 6 0 113 16 0 2 0 18 8 181 0 0 189 0 0 0 0 0 320
5:45 PM 0 110 5 0 115 12 0 2 0 14 14 154 0 0 168 0 0 0 0 0 297
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 3391 207 0 3598 292 0 46 0 338 148 3362 0 0 3510 0 0 0 0 0 7446  

Peak Hour All Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume PHF

AM 7:00 AM 0 644 31 0 675 45 0 7 0 52 10 333 0 0 343 0 0 0 0 0 1070 0.91

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 474 33 0 507 40 0 5 0 45 19 603 0 0 622 0 0 0 0 0 1174 0.89

From North From East From South From West

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

From North From East From South From West

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

218 of 381



Count Basics Page 6 of 11

15‐Minute Automobile Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Automobile Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 65 2 0 67 1 0 2 0 3 1 20 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 91 531
6:15 AM 0 71 2 0 73 2 0 1 0 3 0 24 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 100 700
6:30 AM 0 107 3 0 110 1 0 3 0 4 3 32 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 149 886
6:45 AM 0 114 8 0 122 10 0 1 0 11 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 191 971
7:00 AM 0 145 6 0 151 19 0 5 0 24 2 83 0 0 85 0 0 0 0 0 260 1043
7:15 AM 0 177 4 0 181 15 0 0 0 15 1 89 0 0 90 0 0 0 0 0 286 1005
7:30 AM 0 166 8 0 174 4 0 1 0 5 0 55 0 0 55 0 0 0 0 0 234 898
7:45 AM 0 146 13 0 159 5 0 0 0 5 7 92 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 263 915
8:00 AM 0 123 6 0 129 10 0 1 0 11 2 80 0 0 82 0 0 0 0 0 222 867
8:15 AM 0 86 0 0 86 7 0 1 0 8 6 79 0 0 85 0 0 0 0 0 179
8:30 AM 0 124 12 0 136 19 0 2 0 21 8 86 0 0 94 0 0 0 0 0 251
8:45 AM 0 109 6 0 115 9 0 3 0 12 4 84 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 215
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 100 4 0 104 4 0 0 0 4 1 108 0 0 109 0 0 0 0 0 217 995
2:15 PM 0 81 4 0 85 10 0 3 0 13 7 130 0 0 137 0 0 0 0 0 235 1046
2:30 PM 0 97 3 0 100 10 0 1 0 11 7 125 0 0 132 0 0 0 0 0 243 1099
2:45 PM 0 141 15 0 156 7 0 1 0 8 6 130 0 0 136 0 0 0 0 0 300 1130
3:00 PM 0 115 6 0 121 14 0 0 0 14 4 129 0 0 133 0 0 0 0 0 268 1151
3:15 PM 0 111 9 0 120 10 0 3 0 13 4 151 0 0 155 0 0 0 0 0 288 1208
3:30 PM 0 106 9 0 115 8 0 1 0 9 3 147 0 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 274 1272
3:45 PM 0 132 9 0 141 8 0 1 0 9 8 163 0 0 171 0 0 0 0 0 321 1340
4:00 PM 0 128 8 0 136 16 0 1 0 17 5 167 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 325 1363
4:15 PM 0 131 7 0 138 11 0 1 0 12 9 193 0 0 202 0 0 0 0 0 352 1422
4:30 PM 0 131 12 0 143 12 0 3 0 15 8 176 0 0 184 0 0 0 0 0 342 1436
4:45 PM 0 123 12 0 135 16 0 0 0 16 6 187 0 0 193 0 0 0 0 0 344 1413
5:00 PM 0 148 13 0 161 16 0 2 0 18 13 192 0 0 205 0 0 0 0 0 384 1361
5:15 PM 0 146 11 0 157 16 0 2 0 18 8 183 0 0 191 0 0 0 0 0 366
5:30 PM 0 107 6 0 113 16 0 2 0 18 8 180 0 0 188 0 0 0 0 0 319
5:45 PM 0 108 5 0 113 10 0 2 0 12 14 153 0 0 167 0 0 0 0 0 292
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 3338 203 0 3541 286 0 43 0 329 145 3296 0 0 3441 0 0 0 0 0 7311

Peak Hour Automobile Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 634 31 0 665 43 0 6 0 49 10 319 0 0 329 0 0 0 0 0 1043

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 464 33 0 497 40 0 5 0 45 19 590 0 0 609 0 0 0 0 0 1151

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Automobiles (Cars, Light Trucks, & Motorcycles)

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

219 of 381



Count Basics Page 7 of 11

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
6:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 11
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 19
6:45 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 21
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 24
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 9 25
7:30 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4 19
7:45 AM 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 24
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 6 29
8:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
8:30 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 9
8:45 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 11
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 15
2:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 13
2:30 PM 0 2 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 16
2:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 17
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 22
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 6 21
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5 17
3:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 7 19
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 13
4:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 16
4:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 7 15
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 9
5:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 13
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 46 4 0 50 5 0 3 0 8 3 63 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 124

Peak Hour Single Unit (SU) Truck & Buses Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 8 0 0 8 2 0 1 0 3 0 13 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 24

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 22

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Single Unit (SU) Trucks & Buses

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

220 of 381



Count Basics Page 8 of 11

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
2:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 7 0 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 11

Peak Hour Semi‐Truck Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

From North From East From South From West

From WestFrom East From South

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Semi‐Trucks

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

221 of 381



Count Basics Page 9 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
6:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 12
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 20
6:45 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 23
7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 27
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 9 27
7:30 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 22
7:45 AM 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 27
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 6 31
8:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4
8:30 AM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 10
8:45 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 11
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 18
2:15 PM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 16
2:30 PM 0 2 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 17
2:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 17
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 23
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 6 23
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5 19
3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 8 21
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 4 15
4:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 17
4:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 7 16
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 10
5:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 13
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 53 4 0 57 6 0 3 0 9 3 66 0 0 69 0 0 0 0 0 135

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 10 0 0 10 2 0 1 0 3 0 14 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 27

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 23

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

222 of 381



Count Basics Page 10 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

    Total Hourly

15‐Minute Heavy Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent Percent
6:00 AM 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 1.5
6:15 AM 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.7
6:30 AM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 2.2
6:45 AM 0.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 2.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 2.3
7:00 AM 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.7 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 3.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3 2.5
7:15 AM 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 8.2 0.0 0.0 8.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 2.6
7:30 AM 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.2 0.0 0.0 5.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1 2.4
7:45 AM 0.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.9
8:00 AM 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 3.6 0.0 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 3.5
8:15 AM 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 1.1 12.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2
8:30 AM 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.5 0.0 0.0 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8
8:45 AM 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 10.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 20.0 7.7 0.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.9
9:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2:00 PM 0.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7 0.0 0.0 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7 1.8
2:15 PM 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1 1.5
2:30 PM 0.0 2.0 25.0 0.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.5
2:45 PM 0.0 0.0 6.2 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 1.5
3:00 PM 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 2.0
3:15 PM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.9
3:30 PM 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.5
3:45 PM 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4 1.5
4:00 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 1.1
4:15 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 1.2
4:30 PM 0.0 0.8 14.3 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.1 1.7 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.1
4:45 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7
5:00 PM 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 5.3 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.9
5:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
5:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
5:45 PM 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7
6:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 1.6 1.9 0.0 1.6 2.1 0.0 6.5 0.0 2.7 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Percentages Summary

    Hourly

Hourly Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent

AM 7:00 AM 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 4.4 0.0 14.3 0.0 5.8 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 4.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5

MD 12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

PM 3:00 PM 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0

From North From East From South From West

From South From WestFrom East

Non‐Holiday No Special Events
P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

%

Weekday Schools in Session

223 of 381



Page 11 of 11

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Total Total Total Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 11
6:15 AM 0 1 0 4 5 11
6:30 AM 0 1 0 4 5 7
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 2
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 2
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 5
8:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 7
8:15 AM 0 1 0 2 3
8:30 AM 1 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 1 0 0 1 2
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 2 2 0 0 4 17
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 17
2:30 PM 0 3 0 1 4 22
2:45 PM 0 3 1 5 9 20
3:00 PM 0 2 1 1 4 14
3:15 PM 1 2 0 2 5 14
3:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 14
3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3 16
4:00 PM 0 1 0 3 4 16
4:15 PM 0 5 0 0 5 19
4:30 PM 0 1 0 3 4 22
4:45 PM 1 1 0 1 3 22
5:00 PM 0 3 0 4 7 25
5:15 PM 1 5 0 2 8
5:30 PM 0 2 0 2 4
5:45 PM 0 4 0 2 6
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0

7 46 2 37 92

Special Pedestrians

Pedestrian Type

Other (None)

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:
Count Basics

Unknown

West Approach

0 0

Pedestrians and Bicyclists

0 0 0 0

2 0

1 0

0

0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

0 0

Crossing Crossing

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

2 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0

Crossing

0
0 0 00

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

North Approach East Approach South Approach

0 0
00 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 4 0 0 0
0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0
1 0 5 0 0 0

0 3 0 0 0 4 0
1 0 1 0 0 0

0
0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0
0 0 4 1 0 0

0 0
0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0
0 0 3 0 0 0

2 0
0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
1 0 2 0 0 0

5 0
0 0 2 0 1 0 1 0
0 0 3 0 1 0

0 0
0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

00 0 0 0

0
0 0 1 0

0

0 0

0
0 0 0 00

2 00 0 1 0
0 1 0 0 0 0

0

0 0
0

0
0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 1 0 0 0

0 0
0

Crossing

0 0 0

1

0 0 0

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian
0 1

1
1
0

0

1 0 0

0

1

Bicyclist

0
0
0
0

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0 0

0 0 0

0

0

0 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist
0 0

4 0
4 0

0

0
0 0
0 0

0

00 0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Elderly/Disabled (except wheelchairs)

Wheelchairs/Electric Scooters

x

x

x

x

x

x

1 or 2 A Few Several Many

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Totals 7 0 45

None

Pre‐school Children

Elementry School Age Children

Visually Impaired (white cane/helper dog)

37 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist

0 0

2

0

1

224 of 381



Version 2013.J4.1 Page 1 of 11

Base Information, Observed (7) Hour and Estimated (24) Hour Volume Summaries

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

Site Information Count Information

SE

↑

AM MD PM

AM MD PM

0.937 2.000
Company Name 1.000

Comments

Observed 7 Hour Volume Summary

7
PED: 7 BIKE: 0

0 3391 207 0
   

PED:  292 PED:
37  0 45

 46
 0

↑
0  North
0 

BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  1

   
0 0 3362 148

PED: 2 BIKE: 0

Estimated 24 Hour AADT

0 6356 388 0
   

 547
 0
 86
 0

↑
0  North
0 
0 
0 

   
Daily/Seasonal Factor 0.937 0 0 6301 277
Count Expansion Factor 2.000
Manual Adjustment Factor 1.000
Total 24 Hr Expansion Factor 1.874

Special Considerations

East Leg Spring Street

Holidays None
Special Events None

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsCount Expansion Group
Daily/Seasonal Adjustment Factor

Schools In Session

Count Expansion Factor

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsDaily/Seasonal Adjustment Group

Intersection of:

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

WisDOT RegionOzaukee

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

Municipality City of Cedarburg Hrs Counted: 6:00 AM‐9:00 AM and 2:00 PM‐6:00 PM

Count Basics
Schools in Session

1st Day of Count Wednesday, April 05, 2017
Traffic Control Partial Stop Control

County

Roadway Names North Direction

4:30‐5:30pm

4:30‐5:30pm

1
,2
9
9

Sp
rin

g Stre
e
t 665

13,956
TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME



7,446
3598

6
9
3

0 0

Washington Avenue

ESTIMATED Washington Avenue

Total Entering Hourly Volume

0

24 HOUR AADT 13,592

HOUR VOLUMES 7,252
OBSERVED Washington Avenue

0


3437

3510
6,947

6744

0

0

0

Washington Avenue


6442

6579
13,021

6849


6
3
40 

 355

3654


3
3
8

Sp
rin

g Stre
e
t

Other (describe) None None

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME

None
Version 2011.J4.1

2015 DOT Factors

None
NoneWheelchairs/electric scooters

Elderly/disabled (except wheelchairs)
Visually impaired (white cane/helper dog)

AM Peak Period
Midday Peak Period

PM Peak Period

Karlyn Bieberitz

Karlyn Bieberitz

Observers
Special Pedestrians Observed

None
None

Manual Adj.

Elementry school age children
Pre‐school children

TADI, Inc.

None

Midday Peak Period
PM Peak Period Thursday, April 06, 2017

Peak Hours Selected for Analysis

Calculated Peak Hours
Clear & Dry

West Leg
South Leg Washington Avenue 7:00‐8:00am

7:00‐8:00am

North Leg Washington Avenue

Clear & Dry
Clear & Dry

AM Peak Period
Weather

Wednesday, April 05, 2017
Wednesday, April 05, 2017

No Special Events

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:

539

1070
898

0 0 0 0 0

1013
1174

1378 1374

0 0 0 0
0

1,000

2,000

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

M
o

to
r 

V
eh

ic
le

V
o

lu
m

e

One-Hour Time Period Start Time 
(For example, 6am represents volume from 6am to 7am)

225 of 381



Page 2 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Graphical Summary

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

AM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 644 31 0
   

PED:  45 PED:
0  0 2

 7
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 333 10

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Midday (MD) Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 0 0 0
   

PED:  0 PED:
0  0 0

 0
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 0 0

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

PM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 2 BIKE: 0

0 553 50 0
   

PED:  60 PED:
10  0 10

 8
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 745 36

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

N/A

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Schools in Session

No Special Events

AM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
7:00‐8:00am 1,053 1,070

675
378


0

0 

5
2 Sp

rin
g Stre

e
t

0
9
3

0  41

0


651

343
994

Washington Avenue

Washington Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
0 0

0

MD PEAK HOUR

0
0

0

0 Sp
rin

g Stre
e
t

0

 0

0

0 



0

0

0

0 

PM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue
4:30‐5:30pm 1,408

0
1
5
4

0  86

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

All Motor Vehicles

6
8 Sp

rin
g Stre

e
t

603
805


TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
1,452

Washington Avenue



Washington Avenue


561

781
1,342

Count Basics
Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

226 of 381



Count Basics Page 3 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Summary

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

Peak Hour Volumes, Truck Percentages, and PHFs

   

AM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

7:00 AM 0 146 6 0 152 21 0 5 0 26 2 86 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 266
7:15 AM 0 178 4 0 182 15 0 0 0 15 1 97 0 0 98 0 0 0 0 0 295
7:30 AM 0 168 8 0 176 4 0 1 0 5 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 239
7:45 AM 0 152 13 0 165 5 0 1 0 6 7 92 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 270
Peak Hour Volume 0 644 31 0 675 45 0 7 0 52 10 333 0 0 343 0 0 0 0 0 1070
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 645 30 0 675 45 0 5 0 50 10 335 0 0 345 0 0 0 0 0 1070
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 4.4 0.0 14.3 0.0 5.8 0.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 4.4 0.0 14.3 0.0 5.8 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 4.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.90 0.60 0.00 0.93 0.54 0.00 0.35 0.00 0.50 0.36 0.86 0.00 0.00 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.91

   

MD Peak Hour Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peak Hour Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   

PM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

4:30 PM 0 132 14 0 146 12 0 3 0 15 9 179 0 0 188 0 0 0 0 0 349
4:45 PM 0 124 12 0 136 16 0 0 0 16 6 188 0 0 194 0 0 0 0 0 346
5:00 PM 0 151 13 0 164 16 0 3 0 19 13 194 0 0 207 0 0 0 0 0 390
5:15 PM 0 146 11 0 157 16 0 2 0 18 8 184 0 0 192 0 0 0 0 0 367
Peak Hour Volume 0 553 50 0 603 60 0 8 0 68 36 745 0 0 781 0 0 0 0 0 1452
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 555 50 0 605 60 0 10 0 70 35 745 0 0 780 0 0 0 0 0 1455
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.9 4.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 12.5 0.0 1.5 2.8 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.9 4.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 12.5 0.0 1.5 2.8 0.9 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.92 0.89 0.00 0.92 0.94 0.00 0.67 0.00 0.89 0.69 0.96 0.00 0.00 0.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.93

Peak Hour Pedestrian and Bicyclist Volumes
Pedestrians and Bicyclists Total

Ped &

Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Bike

15‐Minute Start Time Total Total Total Total Volume

7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 2 0 0 2

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

4:30 PM 0 1 0 3 4
4:45 PM 1 1 0 1 3
5:00 PM 0 3 0 4 7
5:15 PM 1 5 0 2 8
Total 2 10 0 10 22

0
0 00

00 0 0 10
0 0 2 0

4

0
0 0 1 0

0
0
0 0 0 3

P
M

0 0 1

0 0 3

2 0 10

1 0 1

1 0 5

0
0 0 0 00 0 0 0
0 0 0 00 0 0 0

M
D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

0
0 0

1 0
1 0

2 0

CrossingCrossing

South Approach

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

N/A

A
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

M
id
d
a
y 
(M

D
) 
P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Crossing

North Approach

P
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

Crossing

From West

All Motor Vehicles

A
M

0
0
0
0
0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian

0
0
0

Pedestrian

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist

From East From South From West

Non‐Holiday

Schools in Session

No Special Events

Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

East Approach

From North From East From South From West

Weekday

West Approach

From North From East From South

227 of 381



Count Basics Page 4 of 11

Hourly Volume Summary ‐ Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

One‐Hour Motor Vehicle Data

   
One‐Hour Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume E/W N/S

6:00 AM 0 363 15 0 378 14 0 7 0 21 4 136 0 0 140 0 0 0 0 0 539 21 518
7:00 AM 0 644 31 0 675 45 0 7 0 52 10 333 0 0 343 0 0 0 0 0 1070 52 1018
8:00 AM 0 451 24 0 475 47 0 7 0 54 22 347 0 0 369 0 0 0 0 0 898 54 844
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2:00 PM 0 428 28 0 456 31 0 6 0 37 21 499 0 0 520 0 0 0 0 0 1013 37 976
3:00 PM 0 474 33 0 507 40 0 5 0 45 19 603 0 0 622 0 0 0 0 0 1174 45 1129
4:00 PM 0 517 41 0 558 55 0 5 0 60 29 731 0 0 760 0 0 0 0 0 1378 60 1318
5:00 PM 0 514 35 0 549 60 0 9 0 69 43 713 0 0 756 0 0 0 0 0 1374 69 1305
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 3391 207 0 3598 292 0 46 0 338 148 3362 0 0 3510 0 0 0 0 0 7446 338 7108

Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

Schools in Session

No Special Events
P
M

Totals

A
M

M
D

From North
Volume Totals

Non‐Holiday

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

DirectionalFrom South From WestFrom East

Weekday

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

En
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 B
y 
A
p
p
ro
ac
h
 (
Li
n
e
 C
h
ar
t)

To
ta
l E
n
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 (
B
ar
 C
h
ar
t)

One‐Hour Time Period Start Time
(For example, 6am represents volumes from 6am to 7am)

Graphical Summary of Hourly Volumes
 All Motor Vehicles  Southbound Approach  Westbound Approach

 Northbound Approach  Eastbound Approach

228 of 381



Count Basics Page 5 of 11

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum PHF

6:00 AM 0 66 2 0 68 1 0 2 0 3 1 21 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 93 539 0.69
6:15 AM 0 72 2 0 74 2 0 1 0 3 0 24 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 101 712 0.67
6:30 AM 0 108 3 0 111 1 0 3 0 4 3 33 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 151 906 0.77
6:45 AM 0 117 8 0 125 10 0 1 0 11 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 194 994 0.84
7:00 AM 0 146 6 0 152 21 0 5 0 26 2 86 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 266 1070 0.91
7:15 AM 0 178 4 0 182 15 0 0 0 15 1 97 0 0 98 0 0 0 0 0 295 1032 0.87
7:30 AM 0 168 8 0 176 4 0 1 0 5 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 239 920 0.85
7:45 AM 0 152 13 0 165 5 0 1 0 6 7 92 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 270 942 0.87
8:00 AM 0 125 6 0 131 10 0 1 0 11 3 83 0 0 86 0 0 0 0 0 228 898 0.86
8:15 AM 0 87 0 0 87 8 0 1 0 9 6 81 0 0 87 0 0 0 0 0 183
8:30 AM 0 128 12 0 140 19 0 2 0 21 8 92 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 261
8:45 AM 0 111 6 0 117 10 0 3 0 13 5 91 0 0 96 0 0 0 0 0 226
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 103 4 0 107 4 0 0 0 4 1 111 0 0 112 0 0 0 0 0 223 1013 0.84
2:15 PM 0 85 4 0 89 10 0 3 0 13 7 131 0 0 138 0 0 0 0 0 240 1062 0.88
2:30 PM 0 99 4 0 103 10 0 2 0 12 7 126 0 0 133 0 0 0 0 0 248 1116 0.92
2:45 PM 0 141 16 0 157 7 0 1 0 8 6 131 0 0 137 0 0 0 0 0 302 1147 0.95
3:00 PM 0 118 6 0 124 14 0 0 0 14 4 130 0 0 134 0 0 0 0 0 272 1174 0.89
3:15 PM 0 112 9 0 121 10 0 3 0 13 4 156 0 0 160 0 0 0 0 0 294 1231 0.94
3:30 PM 0 109 9 0 118 8 0 1 0 9 3 149 0 0 152 0 0 0 0 0 279 1291 0.91
3:45 PM 0 135 9 0 144 8 0 1 0 9 8 168 0 0 176 0 0 0 0 0 329 1361 0.96
4:00 PM 0 129 8 0 137 16 0 1 0 17 5 170 0 0 175 0 0 0 0 0 329 1378 0.97
4:15 PM 0 132 7 0 139 11 0 1 0 12 9 194 0 0 203 0 0 0 0 0 354 1439 0.92
4:30 PM 0 132 14 0 146 12 0 3 0 15 9 179 0 0 188 0 0 0 0 0 349 1452 0.93
4:45 PM 0 124 12 0 136 16 0 0 0 16 6 188 0 0 194 0 0 0 0 0 346 1423 0.91
5:00 PM 0 151 13 0 164 16 0 3 0 19 13 194 0 0 207 0 0 0 0 0 390 1374 0.88
5:15 PM 0 146 11 0 157 16 0 2 0 18 8 184 0 0 192 0 0 0 0 0 367
5:30 PM 0 107 6 0 113 16 0 2 0 18 8 181 0 0 189 0 0 0 0 0 320
5:45 PM 0 110 5 0 115 12 0 2 0 14 14 154 0 0 168 0 0 0 0 0 297
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 3391 207 0 3598 292 0 46 0 338 148 3362 0 0 3510 0 0 0 0 0 7446  

Peak Hour All Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume PHF

AM 7:00 AM 0 644 31 0 675 45 0 7 0 52 10 333 0 0 343 0 0 0 0 0 1070 0.91

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 553 50 0 603 60 0 8 0 68 36 745 0 0 781 0 0 0 0 0 1452 0.93

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

From North From East From South From West

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

From North From East From South From West

229 of 381



Count Basics Page 6 of 11

15‐Minute Automobile Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Automobile Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 65 2 0 67 1 0 2 0 3 1 20 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 91 531
6:15 AM 0 71 2 0 73 2 0 1 0 3 0 24 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 100 700
6:30 AM 0 107 3 0 110 1 0 3 0 4 3 32 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 149 886
6:45 AM 0 114 8 0 122 10 0 1 0 11 0 58 0 0 58 0 0 0 0 0 191 971
7:00 AM 0 145 6 0 151 19 0 5 0 24 2 83 0 0 85 0 0 0 0 0 260 1043
7:15 AM 0 177 4 0 181 15 0 0 0 15 1 89 0 0 90 0 0 0 0 0 286 1005
7:30 AM 0 166 8 0 174 4 0 1 0 5 0 55 0 0 55 0 0 0 0 0 234 898
7:45 AM 0 146 13 0 159 5 0 0 0 5 7 92 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 263 915
8:00 AM 0 123 6 0 129 10 0 1 0 11 2 80 0 0 82 0 0 0 0 0 222 867
8:15 AM 0 86 0 0 86 7 0 1 0 8 6 79 0 0 85 0 0 0 0 0 179
8:30 AM 0 124 12 0 136 19 0 2 0 21 8 86 0 0 94 0 0 0 0 0 251
8:45 AM 0 109 6 0 115 9 0 3 0 12 4 84 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 215
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 100 4 0 104 4 0 0 0 4 1 108 0 0 109 0 0 0 0 0 217 995
2:15 PM 0 81 4 0 85 10 0 3 0 13 7 130 0 0 137 0 0 0 0 0 235 1046
2:30 PM 0 97 3 0 100 10 0 1 0 11 7 125 0 0 132 0 0 0 0 0 243 1099
2:45 PM 0 141 15 0 156 7 0 1 0 8 6 130 0 0 136 0 0 0 0 0 300 1130
3:00 PM 0 115 6 0 121 14 0 0 0 14 4 129 0 0 133 0 0 0 0 0 268 1151
3:15 PM 0 111 9 0 120 10 0 3 0 13 4 151 0 0 155 0 0 0 0 0 288 1208
3:30 PM 0 106 9 0 115 8 0 1 0 9 3 147 0 0 150 0 0 0 0 0 274 1272
3:45 PM 0 132 9 0 141 8 0 1 0 9 8 163 0 0 171 0 0 0 0 0 321 1340
4:00 PM 0 128 8 0 136 16 0 1 0 17 5 167 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 325 1363
4:15 PM 0 131 7 0 138 11 0 1 0 12 9 193 0 0 202 0 0 0 0 0 352 1422
4:30 PM 0 131 12 0 143 12 0 3 0 15 8 176 0 0 184 0 0 0 0 0 342 1436
4:45 PM 0 123 12 0 135 16 0 0 0 16 6 187 0 0 193 0 0 0 0 0 344 1413
5:00 PM 0 148 13 0 161 16 0 2 0 18 13 192 0 0 205 0 0 0 0 0 384 1361
5:15 PM 0 146 11 0 157 16 0 2 0 18 8 183 0 0 191 0 0 0 0 0 366
5:30 PM 0 107 6 0 113 16 0 2 0 18 8 180 0 0 188 0 0 0 0 0 319
5:45 PM 0 108 5 0 113 10 0 2 0 12 14 153 0 0 167 0 0 0 0 0 292
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 3338 203 0 3541 286 0 43 0 329 145 3296 0 0 3441 0 0 0 0 0 7311

Peak Hour Automobile Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 634 31 0 665 43 0 6 0 49 10 319 0 0 329 0 0 0 0 0 1043
MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 548 48 0 596 60 0 7 0 67 35 738 0 0 773 0 0 0 0 0 1436

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

Automobiles (Cars, Light Trucks, & Motorcycles)

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

230 of 381



Count Basics Page 7 of 11

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
6:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 11
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 19
6:45 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 21
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 24
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 9 25
7:30 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4 19
7:45 AM 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 24
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 6 29
8:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
8:30 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 9
8:45 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 11
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 15
2:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 13
2:30 PM 0 2 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 16
2:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 17
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 22
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 6 21
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5 17
3:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 7 19
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 13
4:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 16
4:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 7 15
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 9
5:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 13
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 46 4 0 50 5 0 3 0 8 3 63 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 124

Peak Hour Single Unit (SU) Truck & Buses Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 8 0 0 8 2 0 1 0 3 0 13 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 24

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 5 2 0 7 0 0 1 0 1 1 6 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 15

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

Single Unit (SU) Trucks & Buses

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

231 of 381



Count Basics Page 8 of 11

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
2:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 7 0 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 11

Peak Hour Semi‐Truck Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Semi‐Trucks

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

From North From East From South From West

From WestFrom East From South

232 of 381



Count Basics Page 9 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
6:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 12
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 20
6:45 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 23
7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 27
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 9 27
7:30 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 22
7:45 AM 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 27
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 6 31
8:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4
8:30 AM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 10
8:45 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 11
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 18
2:15 PM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 16
2:30 PM 0 2 1 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 17
2:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 17
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 23
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 6 23
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5 19
3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 8 21
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 4 15
4:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 17
4:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 7 16
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 10
5:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 13
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 53 4 0 57 6 0 3 0 9 3 66 0 0 69 0 0 0 0 0 135

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 10 0 0 10 2 0 1 0 3 0 14 0 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 27
MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 5 2 0 7 0 0 1 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 16

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

233 of 381



Count Basics Page 10 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

    Total Hourly

15‐Minute Heavy Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle Vehicle
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent Percent

6:00 AM 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 1.5
6:15 AM 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.7
6:30 AM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 2.2
6:45 AM 0.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 2.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 2.3
7:00 AM 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.7 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 3.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3 2.5
7:15 AM 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 8.2 0.0 0.0 8.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 2.6
7:30 AM 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.2 0.0 0.0 5.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1 2.4
7:45 AM 0.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.9
8:00 AM 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 3.6 0.0 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 3.5
8:15 AM 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 1.1 12.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2
8:30 AM 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.5 0.0 0.0 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8
8:45 AM 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 10.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 20.0 7.7 0.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.9
9:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2:00 PM 0.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7 0.0 0.0 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7 1.8
2:15 PM 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1 1.5
2:30 PM 0.0 2.0 25.0 0.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.5
2:45 PM 0.0 0.0 6.2 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 1.5
3:00 PM 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 2.0
3:15 PM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.9
3:30 PM 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.5
3:45 PM 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4 1.5
4:00 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 1.1
4:15 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 1.2
4:30 PM 0.0 0.8 14.3 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.1 1.7 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 1.1
4:45 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.7
5:00 PM 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 5.3 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.5 0.9
5:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
5:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
5:45 PM 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7
6:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 1.6 1.9 0.0 1.6 2.1 0.0 6.5 0.0 2.7 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Percentages Summary

    Hourly

Hourly Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent

AM 7:00 AM 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.5 4.4 0.0 14.3 0.0 5.8 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 4.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5
MD 12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
PM 4:30 PM 0.0 0.9 4.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 12.5 0.0 1.5 2.8 0.9 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1

Start Date: Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

%

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events
P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

From North From East From South From West

From South From WestFrom East

234 of 381



Page 11 of 11

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

Washington Avenue and Spring Street

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Spring Street Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Total Total Total Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 11
6:15 AM 0 1 0 4 5 11
6:30 AM 0 1 0 4 5 7
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 2
7:15 AM 0 1 0 0 1 2
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 4
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 5
8:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 7
8:15 AM 0 1 0 2 3
8:30 AM 1 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 1 0 0 1 2
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 2 2 0 0 4 17
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 17
2:30 PM 0 3 0 1 4 22
2:45 PM 0 3 1 5 9 20
3:00 PM 0 2 1 1 4 14
3:15 PM 1 2 0 2 5 14
3:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 14
3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3 16
4:00 PM 0 1 0 3 4 16
4:15 PM 0 5 0 0 5 19
4:30 PM 0 1 0 3 4 22
4:45 PM 1 1 0 1 3 22
5:00 PM 0 3 0 4 7 25
5:15 PM 1 5 0 2 8
5:30 PM 0 2 0 2 4
5:45 PM 0 4 0 2 6
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0

7 46 2 37 92

Special Pedestrians

Pedestrian Type

Other (None)

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Totals 7 0 45

None

Pre‐school Children

Elementry School Age Children

Visually Impaired (white cane/helper dog)

37 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist

0 0

2

0

1

1 or 2 A Few Several Many

Elderly/Disabled (except wheelchairs)

Wheelchairs/Electric Scooters

x

x

x

x

x

x

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist
0 0

4 0
4 0

0

0
0 0
0 0

0

00 0

Bicyclist

0
0
0
0

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0 0

0 0 0

0

0

0 0

Crossing

0 0 0

1

0 0 0

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian
0 1

1
1
0

0

1 0 0

0

1

0 0
0 0 1 0 0 0

0 0
0

0 0
0

0
0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0

2 00 0 1 0
0 1 0 0 0 0

0

00 0 0 0

0
0 0 1 0

0

0 0

0
0 0 0 00

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

5 0
0 0 2 0 1 0 1 0
0 0 3 0 1 0

2 0
0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
1 0 2 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0
0 0 3 0 0 0

0
0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0
0 0 4 1 0 0

0 3 0 0 0 4 0
1 0 1 0 0 0

0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0
1 0 5 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 4 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

North Approach East Approach South Approach

0 0
00 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0

Crossing

0
0 0 00

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0
0 0

Crossing Crossing

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

2 0

0 0 0 0 0 00 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

Wednesday, April 05, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:
Count Basics

Unknown

West Approach

0 0

Pedestrians and Bicyclists

0 0 0 0

2 0

1 0

0

235 of 381



Version 2013.J4.1 Page 1 of 11

Base Information, Observed (7) Hour and Estimated (24) Hour Volume Summaries

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

Site Information Count Information

SE

↑

AM MD PM

AM MD PM

0.970 2.000
Company Name 1.000

Comments

Observed 7 Hour Volume Summary

7
PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 2848 571 1
   

PED:  462 PED:
36  0 31

 13
 0

↑
0  North
0 

BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  1

   
0 0 2965 20

PED: 12 BIKE: 0

Estimated 24 Hour AADT

0 5524 1107 2
   

 896
 0
 25
 0

↑
0  North
0 
0 
0 

   
Daily/Seasonal Factor 0.970 0 0 5751 39
Count Expansion Factor 2.000
Manual Adjustment Factor 1.000
Total 24 Hr Expansion Factor 1.939

Special Considerations

East Leg Hamilton Road

Holidays None
Special Events None

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsCount Expansion Group
Daily/Seasonal Adjustment Factor

Schools In Session

Count Expansion Factor

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsDaily/Seasonal Adjustment Group

Intersection of:

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

WisDOT RegionOzaukee

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

Municipality City of Cedarburg Hrs Counted: 6:00 AM‐9:00 AM and 2:00 PM‐6:00 PM

Count Basics
Schools in Session

1st Day of Count Monday, April 03, 2017
Traffic Control Partial Stop Control

County

Roadway Names North Direction

3:00‐4:00pm

4:30‐5:30pm

2
,0
6
8

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad 1146

13,344
TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME



6,880
3420

1
,0
6
6

0 0

Washington Avenue

ESTIMATED Washington Avenue

Total Entering Hourly Volume

0

24 HOUR AADT 13,282

HOUR VOLUMES 6,848
OBSERVED Washington Avenue

0


2861

2985
5,846

6633

0

0

0

Washington Avenue


5549

5789
11,338

6649


9
2
10 

 591

3428


4
7
5

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

Other (describe) None None

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME

None
Version 2011.J4.1

2015 DOT Factors

None
NoneWheelchairs/electric scooters

Elderly/disabled (except wheelchairs)
Visually impaired (white cane/helper dog)

AM Peak Period
Midday Peak Period

PM Peak Period

Amy Scheuerlein

Amy Scheuerlein

Observers
Special Pedestrians Observed

None
None

Manual Adj.

Elementry school age children
Pre‐school children

TADI, Inc.

None

Midday Peak Period
PM Peak Period Thursday, April 06, 2017

Peak Hours Selected for Analysis

Calculated Peak Hours
Clear & Dry

West Leg
South Leg Washington Avenue 7:00‐8:00am

7:00‐8:00am

North Leg Washington Avenue

Clear & Dry
Clear & Dry

AM Peak Period
Weather

Monday, April 03, 2017
Monday, April 03, 2017

No Special Events

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:

453

964 835

0 0 0 0 0

957
1107

1283 1281

0 0 0 0
0

1,000

2,000

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

M
o

to
r 

V
eh

ic
le

V
o

lu
m

e

One-Hour Time Period Start Time 
(For example, 6am represents volume from 6am to 7am)

236 of 381



Page 2 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Graphical Summary

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

AM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 514 143 0
   

PED:  75 PED:
1  0 3

 1
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 230 1

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Midday (MD) Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 0 0 0
   

PED:  0 PED:
0  0 0

 0
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 0 0

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

PM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 400 80 0
   

PED:  79 PED:
4  0 8

 2
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 543 3

PED: 2 BIKE: 0

Monday, April 03, 2017

N/A

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Schools in Session

No Special Events

AM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
7:00‐8:00am 962 964

657
305


0

0 

7
6 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

0
2
2
0

0  144

0


515

231
746

Washington Avenue

Washington Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
0 0

0

MD PEAK HOUR

0
0

0

0 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

0

 0

0

0 



0

0

0

0 

PM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue
3:00‐4:00pm 1,102

0
1
6
4

0  83

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

All Motor Vehicles

8
1 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

480
622


TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
1,107

Washington Avenue



Washington Avenue


402

546
948

Count Basics
Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

237 of 381



Count Basics Page 3 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Summary

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

Peak Hour Volumes, Truck Percentages, and PHFs

   

AM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

7:00 AM 0 113 30 0 143 17 0 0 0 17 0 51 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 211

7:15 AM 0 127 28 0 155 31 0 1 0 32 0 60 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 247

7:30 AM 0 136 40 0 176 11 0 0 0 11 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 241
7:45 AM 0 138 45 0 183 16 0 0 0 16 1 65 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 265
Peak Hour Volume 0 514 143 0 657 75 0 1 0 76 1 230 0 0 231 0 0 0 0 0 964
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 515 145 0 660 75 0 0 0 75 0 230 0 0 230 0 0 0 0 0 965

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 1.0 2.1 0.0 1.2 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.3 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 1.2 2.8 0.0 1.5 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.93 0.79 0.00 0.90 0.60 0.00 0.25 0.00 0.59 0.25 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.91

   

MD Peak Hour Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peak Hour Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   

PM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

3:00 PM 0 89 28 0 117 15 0 0 0 15 1 118 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 251

3:15 PM 0 91 25 0 116 20 0 0 0 20 0 141 0 0 141 0 0 0 0 0 277

3:30 PM 0 94 15 0 109 25 0 2 0 27 0 128 0 0 128 0 0 0 0 0 264
3:45 PM 0 126 12 0 138 19 0 0 0 19 2 156 0 0 158 0 0 0 0 0 315
Peak Hour Volume 0 400 80 0 480 79 0 2 0 81 3 543 0 0 546 0 0 0 0 0 1107
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 400 80 0 480 80 0 0 0 80 5 545 0 0 550 0 0 0 0 0 1110

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 1.9 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.1 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.79 0.71 0.00 0.87 0.79 0.00 0.25 0.00 0.75 0.37 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.88

Peak Hour Pedestrian and Bicyclist Volumes
Pedestrians and Bicyclists Total

Ped &

Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Bike

15‐Minute Start Time Total Total Total Total Volume

7:00 AM 0 1 0 1 2

7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0

7:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1

7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1
Total 0 3 0 1 4

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

3:00 PM 0 2 0 2 4

3:15 PM 0 1 2 2 5

3:30 PM 0 1 0 0 1

3:45 PM 0 4 0 0 4
Total 0 8 2 4 14

0

0 00

00 2 0 4
0 0 0 0

0

0

2 0 2 0

0

0

0 0 0 2

P
M

0 0 2

0 0 1

0 0 8

0 0 1

0 0 4

0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0
0 0 0 00 0 0 0

M
D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0

1 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
1 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0

0

1 0

1 0

0 0

3 0

CrossingCrossing

South Approach

Monday, April 03, 2017

N/A

A
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

M
id
d
a
y 
(M

D
) 
P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Crossing

North Approach

P
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

Crossing

From West

All Motor Vehicles

A
M

0
0

0

0

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian

0

0

0

Pedestrian

0

1

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist

From East From South From West

Non‐Holiday

Schools in Session

No Special Events

Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

East Approach

From North From East From South From West

Weekday

West Approach

From North From East From South

238 of 381



Count Basics Page 4 of 11

Hourly Volume Summary ‐ Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

One‐Hour Motor Vehicle Data

   
One‐Hour Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume E/W N/S

6:00 AM 0 261 65 0 326 24 0 0 0 24 3 100 0 0 103 0 0 0 0 0 453 24 429

7:00 AM 0 514 143 0 657 75 0 1 0 76 1 230 0 0 231 0 0 0 0 0 964 76 888

8:00 AM 0 416 70 1 487 51 0 2 0 53 3 292 0 0 295 0 0 0 0 0 835 53 782

9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2:00 PM 0 366 68 0 434 54 0 4 0 58 3 462 0 0 465 0 0 0 0 0 957 58 899

3:00 PM 0 400 80 0 480 79 0 2 0 81 3 543 0 0 546 0 0 0 0 0 1107 81 1026

4:00 PM 0 432 87 0 519 89 0 1 0 90 3 671 0 0 674 0 0 0 0 0 1283 90 1193

5:00 PM 0 459 58 0 517 90 0 3 0 93 4 667 0 0 671 0 0 0 0 0 1281 93 1188

6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2848 571 1 3420 462 0 13 0 475 20 2965 0 0 2985 0 0 0 0 0 6880 475 6405

Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

Schools in Session

No Special Events
P
M

Totals

A
M

M
D

From North

Volume Totals

Non‐Holiday

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

DirectionalFrom South From WestFrom East

Weekday

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

En
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 B
y 
A
p
p
ro
ac
h
 (
Li
n
e
 C
h
ar
t)

To
ta
l E
n
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 (
B
ar
 C
h
ar
t)

One‐Hour Time Period Start Time
(For example, 6am represents volumes from 6am to 7am)

Graphical Summary of Hourly Volumes
 All Motor Vehicles  Southbound Approach  Westbound Approach

 Northbound Approach  Eastbound Approach

239 of 381



Count Basics Page 5 of 11

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum PHF
6:00 AM 0 34 9 0 43 3 0 0 0 3 1 12 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 59 453 0.63
6:15 AM 0 64 15 0 79 1 0 0 0 1 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 101 605 0.72
6:30 AM 0 67 17 0 84 5 0 0 0 5 1 23 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 113 751 0.76
6:45 AM 0 96 24 0 120 15 0 0 0 15 1 44 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 180 879 0.89
7:00 AM 0 113 30 0 143 17 0 0 0 17 0 51 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 211 964 0.91
7:15 AM 0 127 28 0 155 31 0 1 0 32 0 60 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 247 951 0.90
7:30 AM 0 136 40 0 176 11 0 0 0 11 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 241 882 0.83
7:45 AM 0 138 45 0 183 16 0 0 0 16 1 65 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 265 864 0.82
8:00 AM 0 100 17 1 118 9 0 1 0 10 0 70 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 198 835 0.88
8:15 AM 0 99 16 0 115 7 0 0 0 7 0 56 0 0 56 0 0 0 0 0 178
8:30 AM 0 110 22 0 132 10 0 0 0 10 1 80 0 0 81 0 0 0 0 0 223
8:45 AM 0 107 15 0 122 25 0 1 0 26 2 86 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 236
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 85 18 0 103 8 0 1 0 9 0 101 0 0 101 0 0 0 0 0 213 957 0.85
2:15 PM 0 76 11 0 87 20 0 2 0 22 0 118 0 0 118 0 0 0 0 0 227 995 0.89
2:30 PM 0 87 14 0 101 15 0 1 0 16 3 116 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 236 1045 0.93
2:45 PM 0 118 25 0 143 11 0 0 0 11 0 127 0 0 127 0 0 0 0 0 281 1073 0.95
3:00 PM 0 89 28 0 117 15 0 0 0 15 1 118 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 251 1107 0.88
3:15 PM 0 91 25 0 116 20 0 0 0 20 0 141 0 0 141 0 0 0 0 0 277 1160 0.92
3:30 PM 0 94 15 0 109 25 0 2 0 27 0 128 0 0 128 0 0 0 0 0 264 1215 0.91
3:45 PM 0 126 12 0 138 19 0 0 0 19 2 156 0 0 158 0 0 0 0 0 315 1281 0.96
4:00 PM 0 110 21 0 131 20 0 0 0 20 0 153 0 0 153 0 0 0 0 0 304 1283 0.97
4:15 PM 0 108 21 0 129 22 0 0 0 22 1 180 0 0 181 0 0 0 0 0 332 1343 0.92
4:30 PM 0 106 29 0 135 22 0 1 0 23 1 171 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 330 1355 0.93
4:45 PM 0 108 16 0 124 25 0 0 0 25 1 167 0 0 168 0 0 0 0 0 317 1321 0.91
5:00 PM 0 142 13 0 155 26 0 1 0 27 1 181 0 0 182 0 0 0 0 0 364 1281 0.88
5:15 PM 0 133 13 0 146 23 0 1 0 24 1 173 0 0 174 0 0 0 0 0 344
5:30 PM 0 92 16 0 108 18 0 0 0 18 1 169 0 0 170 0 0 0 0 0 296
5:45 PM 0 92 16 0 108 23 0 1 0 24 1 144 0 0 145 0 0 0 0 0 277
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2848 571 1 3420 462 0 13 0 475 20 2965 0 0 2985 0 0 0 0 0 6880  

Peak Hour All Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume PHF

AM 7:00 AM 0 514 143 0 657 75 0 1 0 76 1 230 0 0 231 0 0 0 0 0 964 0.91

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 400 80 0 480 79 0 2 0 81 3 543 0 0 546 0 0 0 0 0 1107 0.88

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

From North From East From South From West

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

From North From East From South From West

240 of 381



Count Basics Page 6 of 11

15‐Minute Automobile Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Automobile Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 32 9 0 41 3 0 0 0 3 1 12 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 57 443
6:15 AM 0 61 15 0 76 1 0 0 0 1 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 98 593
6:30 AM 0 66 17 0 83 5 0 0 0 5 1 22 0 0 23 0 0 0 0 0 111 737
6:45 AM 0 95 24 0 119 15 0 0 0 15 1 42 0 0 43 0 0 0 0 0 177 860
7:00 AM 0 113 29 0 142 17 0 0 0 17 0 48 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 207 941
7:15 AM 0 126 27 0 153 31 0 1 0 32 0 57 0 0 57 0 0 0 0 0 242 927
7:30 AM 0 135 39 0 174 9 0 0 0 9 0 51 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 234 858
7:45 AM 0 134 44 0 178 16 0 0 0 16 1 63 0 0 64 0 0 0 0 0 258 839
8:00 AM 0 99 16 1 116 9 0 1 0 10 0 67 0 0 67 0 0 0 0 0 193 808
8:15 AM 0 97 16 0 113 6 0 0 0 6 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 173
8:30 AM 0 106 21 0 127 10 0 0 0 10 1 77 0 0 78 0 0 0 0 0 215
8:45 AM 0 105 14 0 119 24 0 0 0 24 1 83 0 0 84 0 0 0 0 0 227
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 82 18 0 100 7 0 1 0 8 0 99 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 207 941
2:15 PM 0 73 10 0 83 20 0 2 0 22 0 117 0 0 117 0 0 0 0 0 222 981
2:30 PM 0 86 12 0 98 15 0 1 0 16 3 115 0 0 118 0 0 0 0 0 232 1028
2:45 PM 0 118 25 0 143 11 0 0 0 11 0 126 0 0 126 0 0 0 0 0 280 1055
3:00 PM 0 86 28 0 114 14 0 0 0 14 1 118 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 247 1082
3:15 PM 0 90 25 0 115 19 0 0 0 19 0 135 0 0 135 0 0 0 0 0 269 1135
3:30 PM 0 91 15 0 106 24 0 2 0 26 0 127 0 0 127 0 0 0 0 0 259 1196
3:45 PM 0 123 12 0 135 19 0 0 0 19 2 151 0 0 153 0 0 0 0 0 307 1261
4:00 PM 0 109 21 0 130 18 0 0 0 18 0 152 0 0 152 0 0 0 0 0 300 1269
4:15 PM 0 108 20 0 128 21 0 0 0 21 1 180 0 0 181 0 0 0 0 0 330 1327
4:30 PM 0 104 29 0 133 21 0 1 0 22 1 168 0 0 169 0 0 0 0 0 324 1338
4:45 PM 0 107 16 0 123 25 0 0 0 25 1 166 0 0 167 0 0 0 0 0 315 1309
5:00 PM 0 138 13 0 151 26 0 1 0 27 1 179 0 0 180 0 0 0 0 0 358 1271
5:15 PM 0 132 13 0 145 23 0 1 0 24 1 171 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 341
5:30 PM 0 92 16 0 108 17 0 0 0 17 1 169 0 0 170 0 0 0 0 0 295
5:45 PM 0 92 16 0 108 23 0 1 0 24 1 144 0 0 145 0 0 0 0 0 277
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2800 560 1 3361 449 0 12 0 461 19 2914 0 0 2933 0 0 0 0 0 6755

Peak Hour Automobile Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 508 139 0 647 73 0 1 0 74 1 219 0 0 220 0 0 0 0 0 941

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 390 80 0 470 76 0 2 0 78 3 531 0 0 534 0 0 0 0 0 1082

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

Automobiles (Cars, Light Trucks, & Motorcycles)

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

241 of 381



Count Basics Page 7 of 11

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 9
6:15 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 9
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 11
6:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 14
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 19
7:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 22
7:30 AM 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 22
7:45 AM 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 7 24
8:00 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 26
8:15 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 AM 0 3 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 7
8:45 AM 0 2 1 0 3 1 0 1 0 2 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 9
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 13
2:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 11
2:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 16
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 18
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 24
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 8 23
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 17
3:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 7 18
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 12
4:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 15
4:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 16
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 11
5:00 PM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 10
5:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 42 10 0 52 12 0 1 0 13 1 47 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 113

Peak Hour Single Unit (SU) Truck & Buses Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 5 3 0 8 1 0 0 0 1 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 19

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 9 0 0 9 3 0 0 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 24

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

Single Unit (SU) Trucks & Buses

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

242 of 381



Count Basics Page 8 of 11

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
7:00 AM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 4
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
2:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 6 1 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 12

Peak Hour Semi‐Truck Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Semi‐Trucks

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

From North From East From South From West

From WestFrom East From South

243 of 381



Count Basics Page 9 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 10
6:15 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 12
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 14
6:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3 19
7:00 AM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 4 23
7:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 24
7:30 AM 0 1 1 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 7 24
7:45 AM 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 7 25
8:00 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 27
8:15 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 AM 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 8
8:45 AM 0 2 1 0 3 1 0 1 0 2 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 9
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 16
2:15 PM 0 3 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 14
2:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 17
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 18
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 25
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 8 25
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 19
3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 8 20
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 14
4:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 16
4:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 17
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 12
5:00 PM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 10
5:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 48 11 0 59 13 0 1 0 14 1 51 0 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 125

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 6 4 0 10 2 0 0 0 2 0 11 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 23

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 10 0 0 10 3 0 0 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 25

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

244 of 381



Count Basics Page 10 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

    Total Hourly

15‐Minute Heavy Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent Percent
6:00 AM 0.0 5.9 0.0 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.4 2.2
6:15 AM 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 2.0
6:30 AM 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.9
6:45 AM 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 2.2
7:00 AM 0.0 0.0 3.3 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 0.0 0.0 5.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 2.4
7:15 AM 0.0 0.8 3.6 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 2.5
7:30 AM 0.0 0.7 2.5 0.0 1.1 18.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 18.2 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 2.7
7:45 AM 0.0 2.9 2.2 0.0 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.9
8:00 AM 0.0 1.0 5.9 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 3.2
8:15 AM 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 14.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8
8:30 AM 0.0 3.6 4.5 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.6
8:45 AM 0.0 1.9 6.7 0.0 2.5 4.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 7.7 50.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8
9:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2:00 PM 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 2.9 12.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 1.7
2:15 PM 0.0 3.9 9.1 0.0 4.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 1.4
2:30 PM 0.0 1.1 14.3 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 1.6
2:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.7
3:00 PM 0.0 3.4 0.0 0.0 2.6 6.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 2.3
3:15 PM 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.9 5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 2.2
3:30 PM 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 2.8 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.6
3:45 PM 0.0 2.4 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 1.6
4:00 PM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 10.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.1
4:15 PM 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.8 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 1.2
4:30 PM 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.5 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.3
4:45 PM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.9
5:00 PM 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 0.8
5:15 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9
5:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
5:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 1.7 1.9 0.0 1.7 2.8 0.0 7.7 0.0 2.9 5.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Percentages Summary

    Hourly

Hourly Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent

AM 7:00 AM 0.0 1.2 2.8 0.0 1.5 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4

MD 12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

PM 3:00 PM 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.1 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3

Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

%

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events
P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

From North From East From South From West

From South From WestFrom East

245 of 381



Page 11 of 11

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Total Total Total Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 1 1 3
6:15 AM 0 0 0 2 2 4
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
7:00 AM 0 1 0 1 2 4
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 6
7:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 6
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 7
8:00 AM 0 1 1 2 4 9
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 2 0 0 2
8:45 AM 0 0 1 2 3
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 1 1 0 2 13
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 15
2:30 PM 0 2 2 2 6 20
2:45 PM 0 2 0 3 5 15
3:00 PM 0 2 0 2 4 14
3:15 PM 0 1 2 2 5 13
3:30 PM 0 1 0 0 1 11
3:45 PM 0 4 0 0 4 16
4:00 PM 0 0 0 3 3 13
4:15 PM 0 3 0 0 3 15
4:30 PM 0 0 0 6 6 22
4:45 PM 0 0 0 1 1 20
5:00 PM 0 1 3 1 5 24
5:15 PM 0 3 2 5 10
5:30 PM 0 2 0 2 4
5:45 PM 0 4 0 1 5
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0

0 32 12 36 80

Special Pedestrians

Pedestrian Type

Other (None)

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Totals 0 0 31

None

Pre‐school Children

Elementry School Age Children

Visually Impaired (white cane/helper dog)

36 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist

0 0

12

0

1

1 or 2 A Few Several Many

Elderly/Disabled (except wheelchairs)

Wheelchairs/Electric Scooters

x

x

x

x

x

x

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist
0 0

2 0
0 0

0

0
0 0
0 0

1

00 0

Bicyclist

0
0
0
0

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0 2

0 0 0

0

0

0 0

Crossing

0 0 0

1

0 0 1

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian
0 0

0
0
0

0

0 0 0

0

0

1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0

0 0
0

0
0 0 1 0

0
0 0 0 0

0 00 0 0 0
0 1 0 1 0 2

0

00 0 0 0

0
1 0 2 0

0

0 0

0
0 0 0 00

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 2 0 2 0 2 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

3 0
0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0
0 0 2 0 0 0

2 0
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 1 0 2 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0
0 0 4 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0
0 0 2 1 0 0

0 1 0 3 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0
0 0 3 0 2 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 4 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

North Approach East Approach South Approach

0 0
00 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0

Crossing

0
0 0 00

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0
0 0

Crossing Crossing

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

1 0

0 0 0 0 0 00 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:
Count Basics

Unknown

West Approach

0 0

Pedestrians and Bicyclists

0 0 0 0

5 0

1 0

0

246 of 381



Version 2013.J4.1 Page 1 of 11

Base Information, Observed (7) Hour and Estimated (24) Hour Volume Summaries

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

Site Information Count Information

SE

↑

AM MD PM

AM MD PM

0.970 2.000
Company Name 1.000

Comments

Observed 7 Hour Volume Summary

7
PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 2848 571 1
   

PED:  462 PED:
36  0 31

 13
 0

↑
0  North
0 

BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  1

   
0 0 2965 20

PED: 12 BIKE: 0

Estimated 24 Hour AADT

0 5524 1107 2
   

 896
 0
 25
 0

↑
0  North
0 
0 
0 

   
Daily/Seasonal Factor 0.970 0 0 5751 39
Count Expansion Factor 2.000
Manual Adjustment Factor 1.000
Total 24 Hr Expansion Factor 1.939

Clear & Dry
Clear & Dry

AM Peak Period
Weather

Monday, April 03, 2017
Monday, April 03, 2017

No Special Events

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:

Special Pedestrians Observed
None
None

Manual Adj.

Elementry school age children
Pre‐school children

TADI, Inc.

None

Midday Peak Period
PM Peak Period Thursday, April 06, 2017

Peak Hours Selected for Analysis

Calculated Peak Hours
Clear & Dry

West Leg
South Leg Washington Avenue 7:00‐8:00am

7:00‐8:00am

North Leg Washington Avenue

None
Version 2011.J4.1

2015 DOT Factors

None
NoneWheelchairs/electric scooters

Elderly/disabled (except wheelchairs)
Visually impaired (white cane/helper dog)

AM Peak Period
Midday Peak Period

PM Peak Period

Amy Scheuerlein

Amy Scheuerlein

Observers

 591

3428


4
7
5

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

Other (describe) None None

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME

Washington Avenue


5549

5789
11,338

6649


9
2
10 

24 HOUR AADT 13,282

HOUR VOLUMES 6,848
OBSERVED Washington Avenue

0


2861

2985
5,846

6633

0

0

0
Traffic Control Partial Stop Control

County

Roadway Names North Direction

4:30‐5:30pm

4:30‐5:30pm

2
,0
6
8

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad 1146

13,344
TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME



6,880
3420

1
,0
6
6

0 0

Washington Avenue

ESTIMATED Washington Avenue

Total Entering Hourly Volume

0
Intersection of:

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

WisDOT RegionOzaukee

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

Municipality City of Cedarburg Hrs Counted: 6:00 AM‐9:00 AM and 2:00 PM‐6:00 PM

Count Basics
Schools in Session

1st Day of Count Monday, April 03, 2017

Special Considerations

East Leg Hamilton Road

Holidays None
Special Events None

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsCount Expansion Group
Daily/Seasonal Adjustment Factor

Schools In Session

Count Expansion Factor

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsDaily/Seasonal Adjustment Group

453

964 835

0 0 0 0 0

957
1107

1283 1281

0 0 0 0
0

1,000

2,000

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

M
o

to
r 

V
eh

ic
le

V
o

lu
m

e

One-Hour Time Period Start Time 
(For example, 6am represents volume from 6am to 7am)

247 of 381



Page 2 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Graphical Summary

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

AM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 514 143 0
   

PED:  75 PED:
1  0 3

 1
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 230 1

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Midday (MD) Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 0 0 0
   

PED:  0 PED:
0  0 0

 0
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 0 0

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

PM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 489 71 0
   

PED:  96 PED:
13  0 4

 3
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 692 4

PED: 5 BIKE: 0

Count Basics
Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Washington Avenue


492

696
1,188

1
7
4

0  75

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

All Motor Vehicles

9
9 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

560
788


TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
1,355

Washington Avenue



0

0 

PM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue
4:30‐5:30pm 1,348

0

0

0 



0

0

0
0

0

0 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

0

 0

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
0 0

0

MD PEAK HOUR

0


515

231
746

Washington Avenue

Washington Avenue

0 

7
6 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

0
2
2
0

0  144

Monday, April 03, 2017

N/A

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Schools in Session

No Special Events

AM PEAK HOUR Washington Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
7:00‐8:00am 962 964

657
305


0

248 of 381



Count Basics Page 3 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Summary

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

Peak Hour Volumes, Truck Percentages, and PHFs

   

AM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

7:00 AM 0 113 30 0 143 17 0 0 0 17 0 51 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 211
7:15 AM 0 127 28 0 155 31 0 1 0 32 0 60 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 247
7:30 AM 0 136 40 0 176 11 0 0 0 11 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 241
7:45 AM 0 138 45 0 183 16 0 0 0 16 1 65 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 265
Peak Hour Volume 0 514 143 0 657 75 0 1 0 76 1 230 0 0 231 0 0 0 0 0 964
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 515 145 0 660 75 0 0 0 75 0 230 0 0 230 0 0 0 0 0 965
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 1.0 2.1 0.0 1.2 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.2 0.7 0.0 0.3 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 1.2 2.8 0.0 1.5 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.93 0.79 0.00 0.90 0.60 0.00 0.25 0.00 0.59 0.25 0.88 0.00 0.00 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.91

   

MD Peak Hour Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peak Hour Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   

PM Peak Hour Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

4:30 PM 0 106 29 0 135 22 0 1 0 23 1 171 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 330
4:45 PM 0 108 16 0 124 25 0 0 0 25 1 167 0 0 168 0 0 0 0 0 317
5:00 PM 0 142 13 0 155 26 0 1 0 27 1 181 0 0 182 0 0 0 0 0 364
5:15 PM 0 133 13 0 146 23 0 1 0 24 1 173 0 0 174 0 0 0 0 0 344
Peak Hour Volume 0 489 71 0 560 96 0 3 0 99 4 692 0 0 696 0 0 0 0 0 1355
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 490 70 0 560 95 0 5 0 100 5 690 0 0 695 0 0 0 0 0 1355
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.86 0.61 0.00 0.90 0.92 0.00 0.75 0.00 0.92 1.00 0.96 0.00 0.00 0.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.93

Peak Hour Pedestrian and Bicyclist Volumes
Pedestrians and Bicyclists Total

Ped &

Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Bike

15‐Minute Start Time Total Total Total Total Volume

7:00 AM 0 1 0 1 2
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1
Total 0 3 0 1 4

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

4:30 PM 0 0 0 6 6
4:45 PM 0 0 0 1 1
5:00 PM 0 1 3 1 5
5:15 PM 0 3 2 5 10
Total 0 4 5 13 22

Non‐Holiday

Schools in Session

No Special Events

Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

East Approach

From North From East From South From West

Weekday

West Approach

From North From East From South

From East From South From West

All Motor Vehicles

A
M

0
0
0
0
0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian

0
0
0

Pedestrian

0

1

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist

CrossingCrossing

South Approach

Monday, April 03, 2017

N/A

A
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

M
id
d
a
y 
(M

D
) 
P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Crossing

North Approach

P
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

Crossing

From West

0 0
0 0

0
1 0

1 0
0 0

3 0

0
0 0 0 00 0 0

1 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
1 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

M
D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 00 0 0 0

P
M

0 0 0

0 0 1

0 0 4

0 0 0

0 0 3

0
0 0 1 0

0
0
0 0 0 6

0
3 00

00 5 0 13
2 0 5 0

1

249 of 381



Count Basics Page 4 of 11

Hourly Volume Summary ‐ Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

One‐Hour Motor Vehicle Data

   
One‐Hour Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume E/W N/S

6:00 AM 0 261 65 0 326 24 0 0 0 24 3 100 0 0 103 0 0 0 0 0 453 24 429
7:00 AM 0 514 143 0 657 75 0 1 0 76 1 230 0 0 231 0 0 0 0 0 964 76 888
8:00 AM 0 416 70 1 487 51 0 2 0 53 3 292 0 0 295 0 0 0 0 0 835 53 782
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2:00 PM 0 366 68 0 434 54 0 4 0 58 3 462 0 0 465 0 0 0 0 0 957 58 899
3:00 PM 0 400 80 0 480 79 0 2 0 81 3 543 0 0 546 0 0 0 0 0 1107 81 1026
4:00 PM 0 432 87 0 519 89 0 1 0 90 3 671 0 0 674 0 0 0 0 0 1283 90 1193
5:00 PM 0 459 58 0 517 90 0 3 0 93 4 667 0 0 671 0 0 0 0 0 1281 93 1188
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2848 571 1 3420 462 0 13 0 475 20 2965 0 0 2985 0 0 0 0 0 6880 475 6405

Volume Totals

Non‐Holiday

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

DirectionalFrom South From WestFrom East

Weekday

P
M

Totals

A
M

M
D

From North

Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

Schools in Session

No Special Events

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

En
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 B
y 
A
p
p
ro
ac
h
 (
Li
n
e
 C
h
ar
t)

To
ta
l E
n
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 (
B
ar
 C
h
ar
t)

One‐Hour Time Period Start Time
(For example, 6am represents volumes from 6am to 7am)

Graphical Summary of Hourly Volumes
 All Motor Vehicles  Southbound Approach  Westbound Approach

 Northbound Approach  Eastbound Approach

250 of 381



Count Basics Page 5 of 11

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum PHF

6:00 AM 0 34 9 0 43 3 0 0 0 3 1 12 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 59 453 0.63
6:15 AM 0 64 15 0 79 1 0 0 0 1 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 101 605 0.72
6:30 AM 0 67 17 0 84 5 0 0 0 5 1 23 0 0 24 0 0 0 0 0 113 751 0.76
6:45 AM 0 96 24 0 120 15 0 0 0 15 1 44 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 180 879 0.89
7:00 AM 0 113 30 0 143 17 0 0 0 17 0 51 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 211 964 0.91
7:15 AM 0 127 28 0 155 31 0 1 0 32 0 60 0 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 247 951 0.90
7:30 AM 0 136 40 0 176 11 0 0 0 11 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 241 882 0.83
7:45 AM 0 138 45 0 183 16 0 0 0 16 1 65 0 0 66 0 0 0 0 0 265 864 0.82
8:00 AM 0 100 17 1 118 9 0 1 0 10 0 70 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 198 835 0.88
8:15 AM 0 99 16 0 115 7 0 0 0 7 0 56 0 0 56 0 0 0 0 0 178
8:30 AM 0 110 22 0 132 10 0 0 0 10 1 80 0 0 81 0 0 0 0 0 223
8:45 AM 0 107 15 0 122 25 0 1 0 26 2 86 0 0 88 0 0 0 0 0 236
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 85 18 0 103 8 0 1 0 9 0 101 0 0 101 0 0 0 0 0 213 957 0.85
2:15 PM 0 76 11 0 87 20 0 2 0 22 0 118 0 0 118 0 0 0 0 0 227 995 0.89
2:30 PM 0 87 14 0 101 15 0 1 0 16 3 116 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 236 1045 0.93
2:45 PM 0 118 25 0 143 11 0 0 0 11 0 127 0 0 127 0 0 0 0 0 281 1073 0.95
3:00 PM 0 89 28 0 117 15 0 0 0 15 1 118 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 251 1107 0.88
3:15 PM 0 91 25 0 116 20 0 0 0 20 0 141 0 0 141 0 0 0 0 0 277 1160 0.92
3:30 PM 0 94 15 0 109 25 0 2 0 27 0 128 0 0 128 0 0 0 0 0 264 1215 0.91
3:45 PM 0 126 12 0 138 19 0 0 0 19 2 156 0 0 158 0 0 0 0 0 315 1281 0.96
4:00 PM 0 110 21 0 131 20 0 0 0 20 0 153 0 0 153 0 0 0 0 0 304 1283 0.97
4:15 PM 0 108 21 0 129 22 0 0 0 22 1 180 0 0 181 0 0 0 0 0 332 1343 0.92
4:30 PM 0 106 29 0 135 22 0 1 0 23 1 171 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 330 1355 0.93
4:45 PM 0 108 16 0 124 25 0 0 0 25 1 167 0 0 168 0 0 0 0 0 317 1321 0.91
5:00 PM 0 142 13 0 155 26 0 1 0 27 1 181 0 0 182 0 0 0 0 0 364 1281 0.88
5:15 PM 0 133 13 0 146 23 0 1 0 24 1 173 0 0 174 0 0 0 0 0 344
5:30 PM 0 92 16 0 108 18 0 0 0 18 1 169 0 0 170 0 0 0 0 0 296
5:45 PM 0 92 16 0 108 23 0 1 0 24 1 144 0 0 145 0 0 0 0 0 277
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2848 571 1 3420 462 0 13 0 475 20 2965 0 0 2985 0 0 0 0 0 6880  

Peak Hour All Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume PHF

AM 7:00 AM 0 514 143 0 657 75 0 1 0 76 1 230 0 0 231 0 0 0 0 0 964 0.91

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 489 71 0 560 96 0 3 0 99 4 692 0 0 696 0 0 0 0 0 1355 0.93

From North From East From South From West

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

From North From East From South From West

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

251 of 381



Count Basics Page 6 of 11

15‐Minute Automobile Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Automobile Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 32 9 0 41 3 0 0 0 3 1 12 0 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 57 443
6:15 AM 0 61 15 0 76 1 0 0 0 1 0 21 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 98 593
6:30 AM 0 66 17 0 83 5 0 0 0 5 1 22 0 0 23 0 0 0 0 0 111 737
6:45 AM 0 95 24 0 119 15 0 0 0 15 1 42 0 0 43 0 0 0 0 0 177 860
7:00 AM 0 113 29 0 142 17 0 0 0 17 0 48 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 207 941
7:15 AM 0 126 27 0 153 31 0 1 0 32 0 57 0 0 57 0 0 0 0 0 242 927
7:30 AM 0 135 39 0 174 9 0 0 0 9 0 51 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 234 858
7:45 AM 0 134 44 0 178 16 0 0 0 16 1 63 0 0 64 0 0 0 0 0 258 839
8:00 AM 0 99 16 1 116 9 0 1 0 10 0 67 0 0 67 0 0 0 0 0 193 808
8:15 AM 0 97 16 0 113 6 0 0 0 6 0 54 0 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 173
8:30 AM 0 106 21 0 127 10 0 0 0 10 1 77 0 0 78 0 0 0 0 0 215
8:45 AM 0 105 14 0 119 24 0 0 0 24 1 83 0 0 84 0 0 0 0 0 227
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 82 18 0 100 7 0 1 0 8 0 99 0 0 99 0 0 0 0 0 207 941
2:15 PM 0 73 10 0 83 20 0 2 0 22 0 117 0 0 117 0 0 0 0 0 222 981
2:30 PM 0 86 12 0 98 15 0 1 0 16 3 115 0 0 118 0 0 0 0 0 232 1028
2:45 PM 0 118 25 0 143 11 0 0 0 11 0 126 0 0 126 0 0 0 0 0 280 1055
3:00 PM 0 86 28 0 114 14 0 0 0 14 1 118 0 0 119 0 0 0 0 0 247 1082
3:15 PM 0 90 25 0 115 19 0 0 0 19 0 135 0 0 135 0 0 0 0 0 269 1135
3:30 PM 0 91 15 0 106 24 0 2 0 26 0 127 0 0 127 0 0 0 0 0 259 1196
3:45 PM 0 123 12 0 135 19 0 0 0 19 2 151 0 0 153 0 0 0 0 0 307 1261
4:00 PM 0 109 21 0 130 18 0 0 0 18 0 152 0 0 152 0 0 0 0 0 300 1269
4:15 PM 0 108 20 0 128 21 0 0 0 21 1 180 0 0 181 0 0 0 0 0 330 1327
4:30 PM 0 104 29 0 133 21 0 1 0 22 1 168 0 0 169 0 0 0 0 0 324 1338
4:45 PM 0 107 16 0 123 25 0 0 0 25 1 166 0 0 167 0 0 0 0 0 315 1309
5:00 PM 0 138 13 0 151 26 0 1 0 27 1 179 0 0 180 0 0 0 0 0 358 1271
5:15 PM 0 132 13 0 145 23 0 1 0 24 1 171 0 0 172 0 0 0 0 0 341
5:30 PM 0 92 16 0 108 17 0 0 0 17 1 169 0 0 170 0 0 0 0 0 295
5:45 PM 0 92 16 0 108 23 0 1 0 24 1 144 0 0 145 0 0 0 0 0 277
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2800 560 1 3361 449 0 12 0 461 19 2914 0 0 2933 0 0 0 0 0 6755

Peak Hour Automobile Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 508 139 0 647 73 0 1 0 74 1 219 0 0 220 0 0 0 0 0 941
MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 481 71 0 552 95 0 3 0 98 4 684 0 0 688 0 0 0 0 0 1338

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Automobiles (Cars, Light Trucks, & Motorcycles)

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

252 of 381



Count Basics Page 7 of 11

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 9
6:15 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 9
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 11
6:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 14
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 19
7:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 22
7:30 AM 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 22
7:45 AM 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 7 24
8:00 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 26
8:15 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 AM 0 3 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 7
8:45 AM 0 2 1 0 3 1 0 1 0 2 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 9
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 13
2:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 11
2:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 16
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 18
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 24
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 8 23
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 17
3:45 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 7 18
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 12
4:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 15
4:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 16
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 11
5:00 PM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 10
5:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 42 10 0 52 12 0 1 0 13 1 47 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 113

Peak Hour Single Unit (SU) Truck & Buses Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 5 3 0 8 1 0 0 0 1 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 19

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 8 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 1 0 7 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 16

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Single Unit (SU) Trucks & Buses

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

253 of 381



Count Basics Page 8 of 11

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
7:00 AM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 4
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
2:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
3:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 6 1 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 12

Peak Hour Semi‐Truck Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

From North From East From South From West

From WestFrom East From South

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Semi‐Trucks

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

254 of 381



Count Basics Page 9 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 10
6:15 AM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 12
6:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 14
6:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3 19
7:00 AM 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 4 23
7:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 24
7:30 AM 0 1 1 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 7 24
7:45 AM 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 7 25
8:00 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 5 27
8:15 AM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 5
8:30 AM 0 4 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 8
8:45 AM 0 2 1 0 3 1 0 1 0 2 1 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 9
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 16
2:15 PM 0 3 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 14
2:30 PM 0 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 17
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 18
3:00 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 25
3:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 8 25
3:30 PM 0 3 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 19
3:45 PM 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 8 20
4:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 14
4:15 PM 0 0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 16
4:30 PM 0 2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 6 17
4:45 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 12
5:00 PM 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 6 10
5:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 48 11 0 59 13 0 1 0 14 1 51 0 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 125

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 6 4 0 10 2 0 0 0 2 0 11 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 23
MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 8 0 0 8 1 0 0 0 1 0 8 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 17

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

255 of 381



Count Basics Page 10 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

    Total Hourly

15‐Minute Heavy Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle Vehicle
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent Percent

6:00 AM 0.0 5.9 0.0 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.4 2.2
6:15 AM 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 2.0
6:30 AM 0.0 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.9
6:45 AM 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 2.2
7:00 AM 0.0 0.0 3.3 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 0.0 0.0 5.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 2.4
7:15 AM 0.0 0.8 3.6 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 2.5
7:30 AM 0.0 0.7 2.5 0.0 1.1 18.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 18.2 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 2.7
7:45 AM 0.0 2.9 2.2 0.0 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 2.9
8:00 AM 0.0 1.0 5.9 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 3.2
8:15 AM 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 14.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8
8:30 AM 0.0 3.6 4.5 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.6
8:45 AM 0.0 1.9 6.7 0.0 2.5 4.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 7.7 50.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8
9:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2:00 PM 0.0 3.5 0.0 0.0 2.9 12.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 1.7
2:15 PM 0.0 3.9 9.1 0.0 4.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 1.4
2:30 PM 0.0 1.1 14.3 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 1.6
2:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 1.7
3:00 PM 0.0 3.4 0.0 0.0 2.6 6.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 2.3
3:15 PM 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.9 5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.9 2.2
3:30 PM 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 2.8 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.6
3:45 PM 0.0 2.4 0.0 0.0 2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 3.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 1.6
4:00 PM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 10.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.1
4:15 PM 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.8 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 1.2
4:30 PM 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.5 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 1.8 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.3
4:45 PM 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.9
5:00 PM 0.0 2.8 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 0.8
5:15 PM 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.9
5:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
5:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 1.7 1.9 0.0 1.7 2.8 0.0 7.7 0.0 2.9 5.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Percentages Summary

    Hourly

Hourly Heavy

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 Vehicle
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent

AM 7:00 AM 0.0 1.2 2.8 0.0 1.5 2.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4
MD 12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
PM 4:30 PM 0.0 1.6 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3

From North From East From South From West

From South From WestFrom East

Non‐Holiday No Special Events
P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Start Date: Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

%

Weekday Schools in Session

256 of 381



Page 11 of 11

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

Washington Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

15‐Minute

Time Period Washington Avenue Hamilton Road Washington Avenue 0 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Total Total Total Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 1 1 3
6:15 AM 0 0 0 2 2 4
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
7:00 AM 0 1 0 1 2 4
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 6
7:30 AM 0 1 0 0 1 6
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 7
8:00 AM 0 1 1 2 4 9
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 2 0 0 2
8:45 AM 0 0 1 2 3
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 1 1 0 2 13
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 15
2:30 PM 0 2 2 2 6 20
2:45 PM 0 2 0 3 5 15
3:00 PM 0 2 0 2 4 14
3:15 PM 0 1 2 2 5 13
3:30 PM 0 1 0 0 1 11
3:45 PM 0 4 0 0 4 16
4:00 PM 0 0 0 3 3 13
4:15 PM 0 3 0 0 3 15
4:30 PM 0 0 0 6 6 22
4:45 PM 0 0 0 1 1 20
5:00 PM 0 1 3 1 5 24
5:15 PM 0 3 2 5 10
5:30 PM 0 2 0 2 4
5:45 PM 0 4 0 1 5
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0

0 32 12 36 80

Special Pedestrians

Pedestrian Type

Other (None)

Monday, April 03, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:
Count Basics

Unknown

West Approach

0 0

Pedestrians and Bicyclists

0 0 0 0

5 0

1 0

0

0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

0 0

Crossing Crossing

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

1 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0

Crossing

0
0 0 00

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

North Approach East Approach South Approach

0 0
00 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 4 0 0 0
0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0
0 0 3 0 2 0

0 1 0 3 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0
0 0 2 1 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0
0 0 4 0 0 0

2 0
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 1 0 2 0

3 0
0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0
0 0 2 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 2 0 2 0 2 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

00 0 0 0

0
1 0 2 0

0

0 0

0
0 0 0 00

0 00 0 0 0
0 1 0 1 0 2

0

0 0
0

0
0 0 1 0

0
0 0 0 0

1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0

Crossing

0 0 0

1

0 0 1

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian
0 0

0
0
0

0

0 0 0

0

0

Bicyclist

0
0
0
0

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0 2

0 0 0

0

0

0 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist
0 0

2 0
0 0

0

0
0 0
0 0

1

00 0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Elderly/Disabled (except wheelchairs)

Wheelchairs/Electric Scooters

x

x

x

x

x

x

1 or 2 A Few Several Many

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Totals 0 0 31

None

Pre‐school Children

Elementry School Age Children

Visually Impaired (white cane/helper dog)

36 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist

0 0

12

0

1

257 of 381



Version 2013.J4.1 Page 1 of 11

Base Information, Observed (7) Hour and Estimated (24) Hour Volume Summaries

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

Site Information Count Information

SE

↑

AM MD PM

AM MD PM

0.934 2.000
Company Name 1.000

Comments

Observed 7 Hour Volume Summary

7
PED: 5 BIKE: 0

3 12 5 0
   

PED:  11 PED:
6  466 6

 32
 0

↑
0  North
4 

BIKE: 550  BIKE:
1 9  0

   
0 6 17 39

PED: 5 BIKE: 1

Estimated 24 Hour AADT

6 22 9 0
   

 21
 871
 60
 0

↑
0  North
7 

1028 
17 

   
Daily/Seasonal Factor 0.934 0 11 32 73
Count Expansion Factor 2.000
Manual Adjustment Factor 1.000
Total 24 Hr Expansion Factor 1.869

Clear & Dry
Clear & Dry

AM Peak Period
Weather

Thursday, April 06, 2017
Thursday, April 06, 2017

No Special Events

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:

Special Pedestrians Observed
None
None

Manual Adj.

Elementry school age children
Pre‐school children

TADI, Inc.

None

Midday Peak Period
PM Peak Period Thursday, April 06, 2017

Peak Hours Selected for Analysis

Calculated Peak Hours
Clear & Dry

West Leg Hamilton Road
South Leg Hilgen Avenue 7:00‐8:00am

7:00‐8:00am

North Leg Hilgen Avenue

None
Version 2011.J4.1

2015 DOT Factors

None
NoneWheelchairs/electric scooters

Elderly/disabled (except wheelchairs)
Visually impaired (white cane/helper dog)

AM Peak Period
Midday Peak Period

PM Peak Period

Karlyn Bieberitz

Larry Numerich

Observers

 594

32


5
0
9

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

Other (describe) None None

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME

Hilgen Avenue


99

116
215

60


9
5
1888 

24 HOUR AADT 97

HOUR VOLUMES 52
OBSERVED Hilgen Avenue

1
0
5
2


53

62
115

37

475

1
,0
3
8

5
6
3

Traffic Control Partial Stop Control
County

Roadway Names North Direction

3:00‐4:00pm

4:00‐5:00pm

2
,0
6
1

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad 1110

2,157
TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME



1,154
20

1
,1
0
3

H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad

1
,9
4
0

Hilgen Avenue

ESTIMATED Hilgen Avenue

Total Entering Hourly Volume

H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad

Intersection of:

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

WisDOT RegionOzaukee

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

Municipality City of Cedarburg Hrs Counted: 6:00 AM‐9:00 AM and 2:00 PM‐6:00 PM

Count Basics
Schools in Session

1st Day of Count Thursday, April 06, 2017

Special Considerations

East Leg Hamilton Road

Holidays None
Special Events None

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsCount Expansion Group
Daily/Seasonal Adjustment Factor

Schools In Session

Count Expansion Factor

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsDaily/Seasonal Adjustment Group

109
191 159

0 0 0 0 0
144 186 193 172

0 0 0 0
0

1,000

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

M
o

to
r 

V
eh

ic
le

V
o

lu
m

e

One-Hour Time Period Start Time 
(For example, 6am represents volume from 6am to 7am)

258 of 381



Page 2 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Graphical Summary

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

AM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

2 1 1 0
   

PED:  1 PED:
1  69 0

 4
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 104  BIKE:
0 1  0

   
0 3 1 4

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Midday (MD) Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 0 0 0
   

PED:  0 PED:
0  0 0

 0
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 0 0

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

PM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 2 0 0
   

PED:  2 PED:
1  77 0

 8
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 84  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 2 0 11

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Count Basics
Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Hilgen Avenue


10

13
23

1
8
2

8
4  95

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

All Motor Vehicles

8
7 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

2
2


TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
186

Hilgen Avenue



H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad 79 

PM PEAK HOUR Hilgen Avenue
3:00‐4:00pm 4

1
6
3

H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad 0 



0

0

0
0

0

0 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

0

 0

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
0 0

0

MD PEAK HOUR

0


6

8
14

Hilgen Avenue

Hilgen Avenue

74 

7
4 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

1
7
9

1
8
3

1
0
5

 109

Thursday, April 06, 2017

N/A

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Schools in Session

No Special Events

AM PEAK HOUR Hilgen Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
7:00‐8:00am 6 191

4
2


H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad

259 of 381



Count Basics Page 3 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Summary

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

Peak Hour Volumes, Truck Percentages, and PHFs

   

AM Peak Hour Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 18 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 30 49

7:15 AM 1 0 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 1 0 0 0 1 0 28 0 0 28 51

7:30 AM 1 0 1 0 2 0 12 1 0 13 1 1 0 0 2 1 23 0 0 24 41
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 3 0 5 0 23 0 0 23 50
Peak Hour Volume 2 1 1 0 4 1 69 4 0 74 4 1 3 0 8 1 104 0 0 105 191
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 5 0 75 5 0 5 0 10 0 105 0 0 105 190

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 7.2 0.0 0.0 8.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.9 4.2

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.6
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 8.7 0.0 0.0 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 3.8 5.8
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.00 0.50 0.25 0.86 0.50 0.00 0.88 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.00 0.40 0.25 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.87 0.94

   

MD Peak Hour Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peak Hour Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   

PM Peak Hour Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 16 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 29 0 0 29 49

3:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 20 4 0 24 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 56

3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 26 1 0 28 5 0 1 0 6 0 15 0 0 15 49
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 0 17 2 0 1 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 32
Peak Hour Volume 0 2 0 0 2 2 77 8 0 87 11 0 2 0 13 0 84 0 0 84 186
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 75 10 0 85 10 0 0 0 10 0 85 0 0 85 180

% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 4.6 9.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7

% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 4.6 9.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.25 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.74 0.50 0.00 0.78 0.55 0.00 0.50 0.00 0.54 0.00 0.72 0.00 0.00 0.72 0.83

Peak Hour Pedestrian and Bicyclist Volumes
Pedestrians and Bicyclists Total

Ped &

Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Bike

15‐Minute Start Time Total Total Total Total Volume

7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0

7:15 AM 0 0 0 1 1

7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0

7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 1 1

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0

12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0

3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0

3:30 PM 0 0 0 1 1

3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 1 1

Non‐Holiday

Schools in Session

No Special Events

Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

East Approach

From North From East From South From West

Weekday

West Approach

From North From East From South

From East From South From West

All Motor Vehicles

A
M

0
0

0

0

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian

0

0

0

Pedestrian

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist

CrossingCrossing

South Approach

Thursday, April 06, 2017

N/A

A
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

M
id
d
a
y 
(M

D
) 
P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Crossing

North Approach

P
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

Crossing

From West

0 0
0 0

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0

0 0 0 00 0 0

0 0

1 0

0 0

0 0
1 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

M
D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

P
M

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0

0

0 0 0 0

0

0 00

00 0 0 1
0 0 0 0

1

260 of 381



Count Basics Page 4 of 11

Hourly Volume Summary ‐ Motor Vehicle Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

One‐Hour Motor Vehicle Data

   
One‐Hour Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume E/W N/S

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 27 3 0 30 5 0 0 0 5 0 73 1 0 74 109 104 5

7:00 AM 2 1 1 0 4 1 69 4 0 74 4 1 3 0 8 1 104 0 0 105 191 179 12

8:00 AM 0 3 1 0 4 2 56 4 0 62 10 3 0 0 13 3 77 0 0 80 159 142 17

9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2:00 PM 0 2 1 0 3 1 59 2 0 62 3 4 1 0 8 2 69 0 0 71 144 133 11

3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 77 8 0 87 11 0 2 0 13 0 84 0 0 84 186 171 15

4:00 PM 1 2 0 0 3 1 86 7 0 94 2 3 0 0 5 2 87 2 0 91 193 185 8

5:00 PM 0 2 2 0 4 4 92 4 0 100 4 6 0 0 10 1 56 1 0 58 172 158 14

6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 12 5 0 20 11 466 32 0 509 39 17 6 0 62 9 550 4 0 563 1154 1072 82

Volume Totals

Non‐Holiday

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

DirectionalFrom South From WestFrom East

Weekday

P
M

Totals

A
M

M
D

From North

Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

Schools in Session

No Special Events

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

0

50

100

150

200

250

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

En
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 B
y 
A
p
p
ro
ac
h
 (
Li
n
e
 C
h
ar
t)

To
ta
l E
n
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 (
B
ar
 C
h
ar
t)

One‐Hour Time Period Start Time
(For example, 6am represents volumes from 6am to 7am)

Graphical Summary of Hourly Volumes
 All Motor Vehicles  Southbound Approach  Westbound Approach

 Northbound Approach  Eastbound Approach

261 of 381



Count Basics Page 5 of 11

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum PHF
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 12 13 109 0.57
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 18 0 0 18 26 145 0.74
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4 2 0 0 0 2 0 15 1 0 16 22 170 0.83
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 48 189 0.93
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 18 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 30 49 191 0.94
7:15 AM 1 0 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 1 0 0 0 1 0 28 0 0 28 51 188 0.92
7:30 AM 1 0 1 0 2 0 12 1 0 13 1 1 0 0 2 1 23 0 0 24 41 173 0.87
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 3 0 5 0 23 0 0 23 50 175 0.88
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 1 1 0 0 2 0 15 0 0 15 46 159 0.86
8:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 11 1 0 12 2 0 0 0 2 1 19 0 0 20 36
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 2 0 13 3 1 0 0 4 2 24 0 0 26 43
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 1 0 10 4 1 0 0 5 0 19 0 0 19 34
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 1 0 1 0 2 0 16 0 0 16 27 144 0.88
2:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 0 23 1 0 24 1 2 0 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 41 166 0.85
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 18 0 1 0 0 1 2 18 0 0 20 39 181 0.81
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 1 0 12 1 1 0 0 2 0 23 0 0 23 37 191 0.85
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 16 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 29 0 0 29 49 186 0.83
3:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 20 4 0 24 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 56 181 0.81
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 26 1 0 28 5 0 1 0 6 0 15 0 0 15 49 174 0.89
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 0 17 2 0 1 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 32 179 0.83
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 0 0 2 0 21 0 0 21 44 193 0.89
4:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 22 3 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 49 188 0.87
4:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 1 20 2 0 23 0 1 0 0 1 1 28 0 0 29 54 187 0.87
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 1 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 1 19 0 0 20 46 178 0.93
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 1 0 0 0 1 0 11 0 0 11 39 172 0.90
5:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 3 0 0 0 3 1 14 1 0 16 48
5:30 PM 0 1 1 0 2 1 19 2 0 22 0 5 0 0 5 0 16 0 0 16 45
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 1 0 24 0 1 0 0 1 0 15 0 0 15 40
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 12 5 0 20 11 466 32 0 509 39 17 6 0 62 9 550 4 0 563 1154  

Peak Hour All Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume PHF

AM 7:00 AM 2 1 1 0 4 1 69 4 0 74 4 1 3 0 8 1 104 0 0 105 191 0.94

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 77 8 0 87 11 0 2 0 13 0 84 0 0 84 186 0.83

From North From East From South From West

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

From North From East From South From West

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

262 of 381



Count Basics Page 6 of 11

15‐Minute Automobile Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Automobile Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 12 13 109
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 18 0 0 18 26 142
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4 2 0 0 0 2 0 15 1 0 16 22 166
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 48 180
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 29 46 180
7:15 AM 1 0 0 0 1 0 18 2 0 20 1 0 0 0 1 0 28 0 0 28 50 177
7:30 AM 1 0 1 0 2 0 8 1 0 9 1 1 0 0 2 1 22 0 0 23 36 162
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 3 0 5 0 21 0 0 21 48 168
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 2 24 0 0 26 0 1 0 0 1 0 14 0 0 14 43 153
8:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 10 1 0 11 2 0 0 0 2 1 19 0 0 20 35
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 2 0 13 3 0 0 0 3 2 24 0 0 26 42
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 1 0 10 4 1 0 0 5 0 18 0 0 18 33
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 6 0 0 7 1 0 1 0 2 0 16 0 0 16 26 140
2:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 0 23 1 0 24 1 1 0 0 2 0 11 0 0 11 39 161
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 18 0 1 0 0 1 2 17 0 0 19 38 177
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 1 0 12 1 1 0 0 2 0 23 0 0 23 37 187
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 1 0 16 2 0 0 0 2 0 29 0 0 29 47 181
3:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 19 4 0 23 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 55 176
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 5 0 1 0 6 0 15 0 0 15 48 169
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 0 17 1 0 1 0 2 0 12 0 0 12 31 175
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 1 0 19 2 0 0 0 2 0 21 0 0 21 42 190
4:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 21 3 0 24 0 1 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 48 187
4:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 1 20 2 0 23 0 1 0 0 1 1 28 0 0 29 54 186
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 1 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 1 19 0 0 20 46 176
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 1 0 0 0 1 0 11 0 0 11 39 169
5:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 3 0 0 0 3 1 14 0 0 15 47
5:30 PM 0 1 1 0 2 1 18 2 0 21 0 5 0 0 5 0 16 0 0 16 44
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 1 0 24 0 1 0 0 1 0 14 0 0 14 39
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 12 5 0 20 9 450 32 0 491 37 15 6 0 58 9 541 3 0 553 1122

Peak Hour Automobile Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 2 1 1 0 4 0 63 4 0 67 4 1 3 0 8 1 100 0 0 101 180

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 2 1 74 8 0 83 10 0 2 0 12 0 84 0 0 84 181

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Automobiles (Cars, Light Trucks, & Motorcycles)

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

263 of 381



Count Basics Page 7 of 11

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 9
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 9
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 7
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 6
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 2 5
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 4
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 5
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 2 15 0 0 17 2 2 0 0 4 0 7 1 0 8 29

Peak Hour Single Unit (SU) Truck & Buses Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 8

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Single Unit (SU) Trucks & Buses

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

264 of 381



Count Basics Page 8 of 11

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 3
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2 2
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 3

Peak Hour Semi‐Truck Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

From North From East From South From West

From WestFrom East From South

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Semi‐Trucks

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

265 of 381



Count Basics Page 9 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 3 11
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 11
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 5 11
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 7
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 6
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 2 5
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 4
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 5
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 2 16 0 0 18 2 2 0 0 4 0 9 1 0 10 32

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 6 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 11

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PM 3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

266 of 381



Count Basics Page 10 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

    Total Hourly

15‐Minute Heavy Heavy

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Vehicle Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent Percent
6:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1
6:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4
6:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.8
7:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 10.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.3 0.0 0.0 3.3 6.1 5.8
7:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 5.9
7:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 0.0 30.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.2 12.2 6.4
7:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 8.7 0.0 0.0 8.7 4.0 4.0
8:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 6.7 0.0 0.0 6.7 6.5 3.8
8:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9.1 0.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8
8:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 25.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3
8:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 0.0 0.0 5.3 2.9
9:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0 0.0 12.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 2.8
2:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 8.3 4.9 3.0
2:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.0 2.6 2.2
2:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1
3:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 6.2 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.1 2.7
3:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 2.8
3:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 2.9
3:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 2.2
4:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 0.0 0.0 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 1.6
4:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.5
4:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5
4:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1
5:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7
5:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 6.2 2.1
5:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2
5:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.7 0.0 0.0 6.7 2.5
6:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 18.2 3.4 0.0 0.0 3.5 5.1 11.8 0.0 0.0 6.5 0.0 1.6 25.0 0.0 1.8 2.8

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Percentages Summary

    Hourly

Hourly Heavy

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent

AM 7:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 8.7 0.0 0.0 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 3.8 5.8

MD 12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

PM 3:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 3.9 0.0 0.0 4.6 9.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.7

From North From East From South From West

From South From WestFrom East

Non‐Holiday No Special Events
P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

%

Weekday Schools in Session

267 of 381



Page 11 of 11

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Total Total Total Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:15 AM 0 0 1 0 1 3
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 AM 0 0 1 1 2 3
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1
7:15 AM 0 0 0 1 1 1
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 1 0 0 1 2
8:45 AM 0 0 1 0 1
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 1 0 0 0 1 2
2:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 5
3:30 PM 0 0 0 1 1 5
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 7
4:00 PM 0 2 1 1 4 9
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9
4:30 PM 0 2 0 1 3 9
4:45 PM 1 1 0 0 2 6
5:00 PM 2 0 1 1 4 5
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0

5 6 6 7 24

Special Pedestrians

Pedestrian Type

Other (None)

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:
Count Basics

Unknown

West Approach

0 0

Pedestrians and Bicyclists

0 0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0

0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

0 0

Crossing Crossing

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0

Crossing

0
0 0 00

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

North Approach East Approach South Approach

0 0
00 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 1 0 1 0
1 0 1 0 0 0

0
0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 1 0 0 0

0 0
1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

00 0 0 0

0
1 0 0 0

0

0 1

0
0 0 0 00

0 00 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0 0
0

1
0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0

Crossing

0 0 0

0

0 0 0

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian
0 0

0
0
0

0

0 0 0

0

1

Bicyclist

0
0
0
0

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0 0

0 0 0

0

0

0 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist
0 0

0 0
0 0

0

0
0 1
0 0

0

11 0

0

0

1

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

2

Elderly/Disabled (except wheelchairs)

Wheelchairs/Electric Scooters

x

x

x

x

x

x

1 or 2 A Few Several Many

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Totals 5 0 6

None

Pre‐school Children

Elementry School Age Children

Visually Impaired (white cane/helper dog)

6 1

Pedestrian Bicyclist

0 0

5

0

0

268 of 381



Version 2013.J4.1 Page 1 of 11

Base Information, Observed (7) Hour and Estimated (24) Hour Volume Summaries

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

Site Information Count Information

SE

↑

AM MD PM

AM MD PM

0.934 2.000
Company Name 1.000

Comments

Observed 7 Hour Volume Summary

7
PED: 5 BIKE: 0

3 12 5 0
   

PED:  11 PED:
6  466 6

 32
 0

↑
0  North
4 

BIKE: 550  BIKE:
1 9  0

   
0 6 17 39

PED: 5 BIKE: 1

Estimated 24 Hour AADT

6 22 9 0
   

 21
 871
 60
 0

↑
0  North
7 

1028 
17 

   
Daily/Seasonal Factor 0.934 0 11 32 73
Count Expansion Factor 2.000
Manual Adjustment Factor 1.000
Total 24 Hr Expansion Factor 1.869

Clear & Dry
Clear & Dry

AM Peak Period
Weather

Thursday, April 06, 2017
Thursday, April 06, 2017

No Special Events

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:

Special Pedestrians Observed
None
None

Manual Adj.

Elementry school age children
Pre‐school children

TADI, Inc.

None

Midday Peak Period
PM Peak Period Thursday, April 06, 2017

Peak Hours Selected for Analysis

Calculated Peak Hours
Clear & Dry

West Leg Hamilton Road
South Leg Hilgen Avenue 7:00‐8:00am

7:00‐8:00am

North Leg Hilgen Avenue

None
Version 2011.J4.1

2015 DOT Factors

None
NoneWheelchairs/electric scooters

Elderly/disabled (except wheelchairs)
Visually impaired (white cane/helper dog)

AM Peak Period
Midday Peak Period

PM Peak Period

Karlyn Bieberitz

Larry Numerich

Observers

 594

32


5
0
9

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

Other (describe) None None

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME

Hilgen Avenue


99

116
215

60


9
5
1888 

24 HOUR AADT 97

HOUR VOLUMES 52
OBSERVED Hilgen Avenue

1
0
5
2


53

62
115

37

475

1
,0
3
8

5
6
3

Traffic Control Partial Stop Control
County

Roadway Names North Direction

4:30‐5:30pm

4:00‐5:00pm

2
,0
6
1

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad 1110

2,157
TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME



1,154
20

1
,1
0
3

H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad

1
,9
4
0

Hilgen Avenue

ESTIMATED Hilgen Avenue

Total Entering Hourly Volume

H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad

Intersection of:

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

WisDOT RegionOzaukee

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

Municipality City of Cedarburg Hrs Counted: 6:00 AM‐9:00 AM and 2:00 PM‐6:00 PM

Count Basics
Schools in Session

1st Day of Count Thursday, April 06, 2017

Special Considerations

East Leg Hamilton Road

Holidays None
Special Events None

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsCount Expansion Group
Daily/Seasonal Adjustment Factor

Schools In Session

Count Expansion Factor

(2) Urban Arterials & CollectorsDaily/Seasonal Adjustment Group

109
191 159

0 0 0 0 0
144 186 193 172

0 0 0 0
0

1,000

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

M
o

to
r 

V
eh

ic
le

V
o

lu
m

e

One-Hour Time Period Start Time 
(For example, 6am represents volume from 6am to 7am)

269 of 381



Page 2 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Graphical Summary

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

AM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

2 1 1 0
   

PED:  1 PED:
1  69 0

 4
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 104  BIKE:
0 1  0

   
0 3 1 4

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

Midday (MD) Peak Hour Summary

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

0 0 0 0
   

PED:  0 PED:
0  0 0

 0
 0

↑

0  North

0 
BIKE: 0  BIKE:
0 0  0

   
0 0 0 0

PED: 0 BIKE: 0

PM Peak Hour Summary

PED: 3 BIKE: 0

1 1 1 0
   

PED:  4 PED:
2  94 3

 4
 0

↑

0  North

1 
BIKE: 72  BIKE:
0 3  0

   
0 0 2 4

PED: 1 BIKE: 0

Count Basics
Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Hilgen Avenue


8

6
14

1
7
9

7
6  77

Weekday

Non‐Holiday

All Motor Vehicles

1
0
2

H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

3
7


TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
187

Hilgen Avenue



H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad 95 

PM PEAK HOUR Hilgen Avenue
4:30‐5:30pm 10

1
7
1

H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad 0 



0

0

0
0

0

0 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

0

 0

TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
0 0

0

MD PEAK HOUR

0


6

8
14

Hilgen Avenue

Hilgen Avenue

74 

7
4 H
am

ilto
n
 R
o
ad

1
7
9

1
8
3

1
0
5

 109

Thursday, April 06, 2017

N/A

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Schools in Session

No Special Events

AM PEAK HOUR Hilgen Avenue TOTAL ENTERING VOLUME
7:00‐8:00am 6 191

4
2


H
am

ilt
o
n
 R
o
ad

270 of 381



Count Basics Page 3 of 11

Peak Hour Volume Summary

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

Peak Hour Volumes, Truck Percentages, and PHFs

   

AM Peak Hour Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 18 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 30 49
7:15 AM 1 0 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 1 0 0 0 1 0 28 0 0 28 51
7:30 AM 1 0 1 0 2 0 12 1 0 13 1 1 0 0 2 1 23 0 0 24 41
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 3 0 5 0 23 0 0 23 50
Peak Hour Volume 2 1 1 0 4 1 69 4 0 74 4 1 3 0 8 1 104 0 0 105 191
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 5 0 75 5 0 5 0 10 0 105 0 0 105 190
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 7.2 0.0 0.0 8.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.9 4.2
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.6
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 8.7 0.0 0.0 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 3.8 5.8
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.00 0.50 0.25 0.86 0.50 0.00 0.88 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.00 0.40 0.25 0.87 0.00 0.00 0.87 0.94

   

MD Peak Hour Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Peak Hour Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   

PM Peak Hour Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals

4:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 1 20 2 0 23 0 1 0 0 1 1 28 0 0 29 54
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 1 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 1 19 0 0 20 46
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 1 0 0 0 1 0 11 0 0 11 39
5:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 3 0 0 0 3 1 14 1 0 16 48
Peak Hour Volume 1 1 1 0 3 4 94 4 0 102 4 2 0 0 6 3 72 1 0 76 187
Rounded Hourly Volume 0 0 0 0 0 5 95 5 0 105 5 0 0 0 5 5 70 0 0 75 185
% Single Unit Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 1.3 0.5
% Heavy Trucks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
% Trucks (Total) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 1.3 0.5
Peak Hour Factor (PHF) 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.00 0.37 0.50 0.94 0.50 0.00 0.94 0.33 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.75 0.64 0.25 0.00 0.66 0.87

Peak Hour Pedestrian and Bicyclist Volumes
Pedestrians and Bicyclists Total

Ped &

Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Bike

15‐Minute Start Time Total Total Total Total Volume

7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 AM 0 0 0 1 1
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 1 1

12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

4:30 PM 0 2 0 1 3
4:45 PM 1 1 0 0 2
5:00 PM 2 0 1 1 4
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
Total 3 3 1 2 9

Non‐Holiday

Schools in Session

No Special Events

Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

East Approach

From North From East From South From West

Weekday

West Approach

From North From East From South

From East From South From West

All Motor Vehicles

A
M

0
0
0
0
0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian

0
0
0

Pedestrian

0

0

Bicyclist Pedestrian Bicyclist

CrossingCrossing

South Approach

Thursday, April 06, 2017

N/A

A
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

M
id
d
a
y 
(M

D
) 
P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Crossing

North Approach

P
M
 P
ea

k 
H
o
u
r

Crossing

From West

0 0
0 0

0
0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0

0
0 0 0 00 0 0

0 0
1 0
0 0
0 0
1 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

M
D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 00 0 0 0

P
M

0 0 2

2 0 0

3 0 3

1 0 1

0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0

0
0
0 0 0 1

0
1 00

00 1 0 2
0 0 0 0

1

271 of 381



Count Basics Page 4 of 11

Hourly Volume Summary ‐ Motor Vehicle Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

One‐Hour Motor Vehicle Data

   
One‐Hour Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Vehicle

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume E/W N/S

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 27 3 0 30 5 0 0 0 5 0 73 1 0 74 109 104 5
7:00 AM 2 1 1 0 4 1 69 4 0 74 4 1 3 0 8 1 104 0 0 105 191 179 12
8:00 AM 0 3 1 0 4 2 56 4 0 62 10 3 0 0 13 3 77 0 0 80 159 142 17
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2:00 PM 0 2 1 0 3 1 59 2 0 62 3 4 1 0 8 2 69 0 0 71 144 133 11
3:00 PM 0 2 0 0 2 2 77 8 0 87 11 0 2 0 13 0 84 0 0 84 186 171 15
4:00 PM 1 2 0 0 3 1 86 7 0 94 2 3 0 0 5 2 87 2 0 91 193 185 8
5:00 PM 0 2 2 0 4 4 92 4 0 100 4 6 0 0 10 1 56 1 0 58 172 158 14
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 12 5 0 20 11 466 32 0 509 39 17 6 0 62 9 550 4 0 563 1154 1072 82

Volume Totals

Non‐Holiday

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

DirectionalFrom South From WestFrom East

Weekday

P
M

Totals

A
M

M
D

From North

Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

Schools in Session

No Special Events

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

0

50

100

150

200

250

6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM

En
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 B
y 
A
p
p
ro
ac
h
 (
Li
n
e
 C
h
ar
t)

To
ta
l E
n
te
ri
n
g 
V
e
h
ic
le
 V
o
lu
m
e
 (
B
ar
 C
h
ar
t)

One‐Hour Time Period Start Time
(For example, 6am represents volumes from 6am to 7am)

Graphical Summary of Hourly Volumes
 All Motor Vehicles  Southbound Approach  Westbound Approach

 Northbound Approach  Eastbound Approach

272 of 381



Count Basics Page 5 of 11

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Motor Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum PHF

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 12 13 109 0.57
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 18 0 0 18 26 145 0.74
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4 2 0 0 0 2 0 15 1 0 16 22 170 0.83
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 48 189 0.93
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 18 0 0 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 30 49 191 0.94
7:15 AM 1 0 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 1 0 0 0 1 0 28 0 0 28 51 188 0.92
7:30 AM 1 0 1 0 2 0 12 1 0 13 1 1 0 0 2 1 23 0 0 24 41 173 0.87
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 3 0 5 0 23 0 0 23 50 175 0.88
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 1 1 0 0 2 0 15 0 0 15 46 159 0.86
8:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 11 1 0 12 2 0 0 0 2 1 19 0 0 20 36
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 2 0 13 3 1 0 0 4 2 24 0 0 26 43
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 1 0 10 4 1 0 0 5 0 19 0 0 19 34
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 7 0 0 8 1 0 1 0 2 0 16 0 0 16 27 144 0.88
2:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 0 23 1 0 24 1 2 0 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 41 166 0.85
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 18 0 1 0 0 1 2 18 0 0 20 39 181 0.81
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 1 0 12 1 1 0 0 2 0 23 0 0 23 37 191 0.85
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 16 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 29 0 0 29 49 186 0.83
3:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 20 4 0 24 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 56 181 0.81
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 26 1 0 28 5 0 1 0 6 0 15 0 0 15 49 174 0.89
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 0 17 2 0 1 0 3 0 12 0 0 12 32 179 0.83
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 0 0 2 0 21 0 0 21 44 193 0.89
4:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 22 3 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 49 188 0.87
4:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 1 20 2 0 23 0 1 0 0 1 1 28 0 0 29 54 187 0.87
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 1 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 1 19 0 0 20 46 178 0.93
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 1 0 0 0 1 0 11 0 0 11 39 172 0.90
5:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 3 0 0 0 3 1 14 1 0 16 48
5:30 PM 0 1 1 0 2 1 19 2 0 22 0 5 0 0 5 0 16 0 0 16 45
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 1 0 24 0 1 0 0 1 0 15 0 0 15 40
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 12 5 0 20 11 466 32 0 509 39 17 6 0 62 9 550 4 0 563 1154  

Peak Hour All Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly

Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume PHF

AM 7:00 AM 2 1 1 0 4 1 69 4 0 74 4 1 3 0 8 1 104 0 0 105 191 0.94

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 1 1 1 0 3 4 94 4 0 102 4 2 0 0 6 3 72 1 0 76 187 0.87

From North From East From South From West

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

From North From East From South From West

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

All Motor Vehicles

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

273 of 381



Count Basics Page 6 of 11

15‐Minute Automobile Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Automobile Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 12 13 109
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 1 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 18 0 0 18 26 142
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4 2 0 0 0 2 0 15 1 0 16 22 166
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 1 0 18 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 48 180
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 29 46 180
7:15 AM 1 0 0 0 1 0 18 2 0 20 1 0 0 0 1 0 28 0 0 28 50 177
7:30 AM 1 0 1 0 2 0 8 1 0 9 1 1 0 0 2 1 22 0 0 23 36 162
7:45 AM 0 1 0 0 1 0 20 1 0 21 2 0 3 0 5 0 21 0 0 21 48 168
8:00 AM 0 2 0 0 2 2 24 0 0 26 0 1 0 0 1 0 14 0 0 14 43 153
8:15 AM 0 1 1 0 2 0 10 1 0 11 2 0 0 0 2 1 19 0 0 20 35
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 2 0 13 3 0 0 0 3 2 24 0 0 26 42
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 1 0 10 4 1 0 0 5 0 18 0 0 18 33
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1 6 0 0 7 1 0 1 0 2 0 16 0 0 16 26 140
2:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 0 23 1 0 24 1 1 0 0 2 0 11 0 0 11 39 161
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 18 0 1 0 0 1 2 17 0 0 19 38 177
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 1 0 12 1 1 0 0 2 0 23 0 0 23 37 187
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 1 0 16 2 0 0 0 2 0 29 0 0 29 47 181
3:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 19 4 0 23 2 0 0 0 2 0 28 0 0 28 55 176
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 5 0 1 0 6 0 15 0 0 15 48 169
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 2 0 17 1 0 1 0 2 0 12 0 0 12 31 175
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 1 0 19 2 0 0 0 2 0 21 0 0 21 42 190
4:15 PM 0 2 0 0 2 0 21 3 0 24 0 1 0 0 1 0 19 2 0 21 48 187
4:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 1 20 2 0 23 0 1 0 0 1 1 28 0 0 29 54 186
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 1 0 25 0 1 0 0 1 1 19 0 0 20 46 176
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 25 1 0 27 1 0 0 0 1 0 11 0 0 11 39 169
5:15 PM 0 1 1 0 2 2 25 0 0 27 3 0 0 0 3 1 14 0 0 15 47
5:30 PM 0 1 1 0 2 1 18 2 0 21 0 5 0 0 5 0 16 0 0 16 44
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 1 0 24 0 1 0 0 1 0 14 0 0 14 39
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 12 5 0 20 9 450 32 0 491 37 15 6 0 58 9 541 3 0 553 1122

Peak Hour Automobile Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 2 1 1 0 4 0 63 4 0 67 4 1 3 0 8 1 100 0 0 101 180
MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 1 1 1 0 3 4 94 4 0 102 4 2 0 0 6 3 72 0 0 75 186

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Automobiles (Cars, Light Trucks, & Motorcycles)

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

274 of 381



Count Basics Page 7 of 11

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Single Unit (SU) Truck & Bus Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 9
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 9
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 7
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 6
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 2 5
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 4
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 5
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 2 15 0 0 17 2 2 0 0 4 0 7 1 0 8 29

Peak Hour Single Unit (SU) Truck & Buses Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 8

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Single Unit (SU) Trucks & Buses

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

275 of 381



Count Basics Page 8 of 11

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Semi‐Truck Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 3
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2 2
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 3

Peak Hour Semi‐Truck Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 2

MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

From North From East From South From West

From WestFrom East From South

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Semi‐Trucks

Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

276 of 381



Count Basics Page 9 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Data

   
15‐Minute
Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Totals Sum

6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
6:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 3 11
7:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 11
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 5 11
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 7
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 6
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
8:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
2:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 2 5
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 4
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 5
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 2 16 0 0 18 2 2 0 0 4 0 9 1 0 10 32

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Volume Summary

   
Hourly Total

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hourly
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Volume

AM 7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1 6 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 11
MD 12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PM 4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1

From North From East From South From West

From South From West

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North From East

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Start Date:

277 of 381



Count Basics Page 10 of 11

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Heavy Vehicle Percentages

    Total Hourly

15‐Minute Heavy Heavy

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Vehicle Vehicle
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent Percent

6:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1
6:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4
6:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.8
7:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 10.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.3 0.0 0.0 3.3 6.1 5.8
7:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 0.0 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 5.9
7:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 0.0 30.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 0.0 0.0 4.2 12.2 6.4
7:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 8.7 0.0 0.0 8.7 4.0 4.0
8:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 6.7 0.0 0.0 6.7 6.5 3.8
8:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9.1 0.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8
8:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 25.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.3
8:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 0.0 0.0 5.3 2.9
9:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
10:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:15 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:30 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
11:45 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
12:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
2:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 14.3 0.0 0.0 12.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7 2.8
2:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 8.3 4.9 3.0
2:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.6 0.0 0.0 5.0 2.6 2.2
2:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1
3:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 6.2 0.0 0.0 11.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.1 2.7
3:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.0 0.0 0.0 4.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8 2.8
3:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 3.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 2.9
3:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 33.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 2.2
4:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 0.0 0.0 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 1.6
4:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.5
4:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5
4:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.1
5:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7
5:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 6.2 2.1
5:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.3 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2
5:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.7 0.0 0.0 6.7 2.5
6:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
6:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
8:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:15 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
9:45 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 18.2 3.4 0.0 0.0 3.5 5.1 11.8 0.0 0.0 6.5 0.0 1.6 25.0 0.0 1.8 2.8

Peak Hour Heavy Vehicle Percentages Summary

    Hourly

Hourly Heavy

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Vehicle
Start Time Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Right  Thru  Left  U‐Tn Total Percent

AM 7:00 AM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 8.7 0.0 0.0 9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.8 0.0 0.0 3.8 5.8
MD 12:00 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
PM 4:30 PM 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 1.3 0.5

From North From East From South From West

From South From WestFrom East

Non‐Holiday No Special Events
P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

Totals

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

From North

Start Date: Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Intersection Traffic Volume Report

Heavy Vehicles (Single‐Unit Trucks, Buses & Semi‐Trucks)

%

Weekday Schools in Session

278 of 381



Page 11 of 11

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

Hilgen Avenue and Hamilton Road

15‐Minute Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data

15‐Minute

Time Period Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road Hilgen Avenue Hamilton Road 15‐Min Hourly

Start Time Total Total Total Total Totals Sum
6:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:15 AM 0 0 1 0 1 3
6:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
6:45 AM 0 0 1 1 2 3
7:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 1
7:15 AM 0 0 0 1 1 1
7:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 2
8:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 3
8:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 AM 1 0 0 1 2
8:45 AM 0 0 1 0 1
9:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
10:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0
11:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0
12:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
12:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
1:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
2:00 PM 1 0 0 0 1 2
2:15 PM 0 1 0 0 1 1
2:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0
2:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 1
3:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 5
3:30 PM 0 0 0 1 1 5
3:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 7
4:00 PM 0 2 1 1 4 9
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 9
4:30 PM 0 2 0 1 3 9
4:45 PM 1 1 0 0 2 6
5:00 PM 2 0 1 1 4 5
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
5:45 PM 0 0 1 0 1
6:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
6:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
7:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
8:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0
9:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0

5 6 6 7 24

Special Pedestrians

Pedestrian Type

Other (None)

Thursday, April 06, 2017

Total Number of Hours Counted: 7

Start Date:
Count Basics

Unknown

West Approach

0 0

Pedestrians and Bicyclists

0 0 0 0

0 0

0 0

0

0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

0 0

Crossing Crossing

0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0

Crossing

0
0 0 00

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0

P
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

North Approach East Approach South Approach

0 0
00 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 1 0 1 0
1 0 1 0 0 0

0
0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 2 0 1 0 0 1
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 1 0 0 0

0 0
1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

00 0 0 0

0
1 0 0 0

0

0 1

0
0 0 0 00

0 00 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0 0
0

1
0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0

0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0
0

Crossing

0 0 0

0

0 0 0

0

Pedestrian Bicyclist Pedestrian
0 0

0
0
0

0

0 0 0

0

1

Bicyclist

0
0
0
0

A
M
 P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

M
id
d
a
y 
P
ea

k 
P
er
io
d

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0 0

0 0 0

0

0

0 0

Pedestrian Bicyclist
0 0

0 0
0 0

0

0
0 1
0 0

0

11 0

0

0

1

0

0 0

0

0 0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

2

Elderly/Disabled (except wheelchairs)

Wheelchairs/Electric Scooters

x

x

x

x

x

x

1 or 2 A Few Several Many

Intersection Traffic Volume Report Weekday Schools in Session

Non‐Holiday No Special Events

Totals 5 0 6

None

Pre‐school Children

Elementry School Age Children

Visually Impaired (white cane/helper dog)

6 1

Pedestrian Bicyclist

0 0

5

0

0

279 of 381



S
ta

rt 
Ti

m
e

V
ol

um
e

2 
- 3

4 
- 5

6 
- 7

8 
- 9

10
 - 

11
12

 - 
13

14
 - 

15
16

 - 
17

18
 - 

19
20

 - 
21

22
 - 

23
24

 - 
25

26
 - 

27
28

 - 
29

>2
9

7:
00

 A
M

0
12

8
9

8
6

2
2

2
2

0
1

1
0

0
0

7:
15

 A
M

0
18

13
10

4
4

3
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

7:
30

 A
M

0
11

25
11

7
3

0
2

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

7:
45

 A
M

0
7

20
8

6
4

0
1

2
1

2
2

0
0

0
0

P
ea

k
0

48
66

38
25

17
5

5
6

3
2

5
1

0
0

0

Le
ft 

tu
rn

S
in

gl
e 

G
ap

Tw
o 

G
ap

Th
re

e 
G

ap
6.

4 
se

c
9.

9 
se

c
13

.5
 s

ec

48
66

8
54

18
4

6
6

3
2

5
1

0
0

0

S
in

gl
e

54
D

ou
bl

e
22

Tr
ip

le
23

G
ap

s 
A

va
ila

bl
e

16
7

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
20

68
 A

rr
ab

el
le

 A
pa

rtm
en

ts
 - 

C
ed

ar
bu

rg
S

ta
rt 

D
at

e:
4/

7/
20

17
S

ta
rt 

Ti
m

e:
7:

00
:0

0 
A

M

C
om

m
en

t 3
:

C
om

m
en

t 4
:

S
ite

 C
od

e:
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
A

ve
nu

e 
at

 H
am

ilt
on

 R
oa

d
C

om
m

en
t 1

:C
ed

ar
bu

rg
C

om
m

en
t 2

:W
ee

kd
ay

 A
M

280 of 381



S
ta

rt 
Ti

m
e

V
ol

um
e

2 
- 3

4 
- 5

6 
- 7

8 
- 9

10
 - 

11
12

 - 
13

14
 - 

15
16

 - 
17

18
 - 

19
20

 - 
21

22
 - 

23
24

 - 
25

26
 - 

27
28

 - 
29

>2
9

4:
30

 P
M

0
4

10
17

8
4

0
3

2
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

4:
45

 P
M

0
6

21
12

9
3

1
3

1
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

5:
00

 P
M

0
7

12
7

13
5

2
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5:
15

 P
M

0
6

12
13

6
4

6
3

0
1

1
2

0
0

0
0

P
ea

k
0

23
55

49
36

16
9

11
3

2
3

3
0

0
0

0

Le
ft 

tu
rn

S
in

gl
e 

G
ap

Tw
o 

G
ap

Th
re

e 
G

ap
6.

4 
se

c
9.

9 
se

c
13

.5
 s

ec

23
55

10
73

18
7

13
3

2
3

3
0

0
0

0

S
in

gl
e

73
D

ou
bl

e
25

Tr
ip

le
24

G
ap

s 
A

va
ila

bl
e

19
5

C
om

m
en

t 3
:

C
om

m
en

t 4
:

S
ite

 C
od

e:
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
A

ve
nu

e 
at

 H
am

ilt
on

 R
oa

d
C

om
m

en
t 1

:C
ed

ar
bu

rg
C

om
m

en
t 2

:W
ee

kd
ay

 P
M

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
20

68
 A

rr
ab

el
le

 A
pa

rtm
en

ts
 - 

C
ed

ar
bu

rg
S

ta
rt 

D
at

e:
4/

10
/2

01
7

S
ta

rt 
Ti

m
e:

4:
30

:0
0 

P
M

281 of 381



S
te

ve
n

s 
P

o
in

t
G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e 

A
n

al
ys

is

N
or

th
 o

n 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n
S

ou
th

 o
n 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n

E
as

t o
n 

S
pr

in
g

Y
ea

r
A

A
D

T
Y

ea
r

A
A

D
T

Y
ea

r
A

A
D

T

19
95

17
10

0
19

95
15

45
0

19
95

15
40

19
98

17
00

0
19

98
15

00
0

19
98

12
00

20
01

16
40

0
20

01
17

40
0

20
01

11
00

20
04

15
50

0
20

04
13

50
0

20
04

10
00

20
10

14
80

0
20

10
12

30
0

20
10

11
00

20
13

12
70

0
20

13
12

50
0

20
13

20
16

13
60

0
20

16
12

20
0

20
16

282 of 381



y 
= 

-2
03

.7
7x

 +
 4

23
91

1
R

² =
 0

.9
02

1

0

20
00

40
00

60
00

80
00

10
00

0

12
00

0

14
00

0

16
00

0

18
00

0

20
00

0 19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

20
25

20
30

20
35

AADT

Y
ea

r

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
N

o
rt

h
 o

f 
S

p
ri

n
g

A
AD

T

Li
ne

ar
 (A

A
D

T)

283 of 381



y 
= 

-2
6.

30
6x

 +
 5

38
43

R
² =

 0
.5

27
1

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

10
00

12
00

14
00

16
00

18
00

19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

20
25

20
30

20
35

AADT

Y
ea

r

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
S

o
u

th
 o

f 
H

am
il

to
n

A
AD

T

Li
ne

ar
 (A

A
D

T)

284 of 381



y 
= 

-1
99

.7
7x

 +
 4

14
64

9
R

² =
 0

.6
43

7

0

50
00

10
00

0

15
00

0

20
00

0

25
00

0 19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

20
25

20
30

20
35

AADT

Y
ea

r

S
p

ri
n

g
 S

tr
ee

t
E

as
t 

o
f 

W
as

h
in

g
to

n

AA
D

T
Li

ne
ar

 (A
A

D
T)

Li
ne

ar
 (A

A
D

T)

285 of 381



Arrabelle Apartment Development – Cedarburg, Wisconsin       April 24, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
Peak Hour Analysis Outputs 

 
Year 2017 Existing Traffic  

Year 2017 Existing Total (with previous school) Traffic 
Year 2018 Build (with residential development) Traffic 

286 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing am peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 45 315 10 30 640
Future Volume (vph) 5 45 315 10 30 640
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.877 0.996
Flt Protected 0.995 0.998
Satd. Flow (prot) 1564 0 1820 0 0 1859
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.998
Satd. Flow (perm) 1564 0 1820 0 0 1859
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 6% 6% 4% 4% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 5 49 346 11 33 703
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 54 0 357 0 0 736
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 65.9% ICU Level of Service C
Analysis Period (min) 15

287 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing am peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 45 315 10 30 640
Future Vol, veh/h 5 45 315 10 30 640
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 6 6 4 4 2 2
Mvmt Flow 5 49 346 11 33 703
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1121 352 0 0 357 0
          Stage 1 352 - - - - -
          Stage 2 769 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.46 6.26 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.46 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.46 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.554 3.354 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 224 683 - - 1202 -
          Stage 1 703 - - - - -
          Stage 2 450 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 214 683 - - 1202 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 214 - - - - -
          Stage 1 703 - - - - -
          Stage 2 430 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 12.1 0 0.4
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 560 1202 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.098 0.027 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 12.1 8.1 0
HCM Lane LOS - - B A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.3 0.1 -

288 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing am peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 75 250 1 130 515
Future Volume (vph) 1 75 250 1 130 515
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.867
Flt Protected 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1598 0 1810 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1598 0 1810 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 3% 3% 5% 5% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 82 275 1 143 566
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 83 0 276 0 143 566
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 38.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

289 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing am peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 75 250 1 130 515
Future Vol, veh/h 1 75 250 1 130 515
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 3 5 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 82 275 1 143 566
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1127 275 0 0 276 0
          Stage 1 275 - - - - -
          Stage 2 852 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.43 6.23 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.43 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.43 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.527 3.327 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 225 761 - - 1287 -
          Stage 1 769 - - - - -
          Stage 2 416 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 200 761 - - 1287 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 200 - - - - -
          Stage 1 769 - - - - -
          Stage 2 370 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.5 0 1.6
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 734 1287 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.114 0.111 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 10.5 8.1 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.4 0.4 -

290 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing am peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 120 1 5 70 1 5 1 5 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 1 120 1 5 70 1 5 1 5 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.998 0.939 0.955
Flt Protected 0.997 0.978 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1825 0 0 1719 0 0 1728 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.978 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1825 0 0 1719 0 0 1728 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 10% 10% 10% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 128 1 5 74 1 5 1 5 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 130 0 0 80 0 0 11 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 17.1% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

291 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing am peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 120 1 5 70 1 5 1 5 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 120 1 5 70 1 5 1 5 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 10 10 10 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 1 128 1 5 74 1 5 1 5 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 76 0 0 129 0 0 217 216 128 220 217 75
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 130 130 - 86 86 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 87 86 - 134 131 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 4.2 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - 2.29 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1510 - - 1409 - - 742 684 925 738 683 989
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 876 791 - 924 826 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 923 826 - 872 790 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1510 - - 1409 - - 737 681 925 730 680 989
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 737 681 - 730 680 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 875 790 - 923 823 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 917 823 - 865 789 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.1 0.5 9.5 9.6
HCM LOS A A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 805 1510 - - 1409 - - 779
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.015 0.001 - - 0.004 - - 0.004
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.5 7.4 0 - 7.6 0 - 9.6
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 0 - - 0 - - 0

292 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 50 605 20 35 475
Future Volume (vph) 5 50 605 20 35 475
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.878 0.996
Flt Protected 0.995 0.997
Satd. Flow (prot) 1643 0 1855 0 0 1857
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.997
Satd. Flow (perm) 1643 0 1855 0 0 1857
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 6 56 680 22 39 534
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 62 0 702 0 0 573
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 63.8% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15

293 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 50 605 20 35 475
Future Vol, veh/h 5 50 605 20 35 475
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 6 56 680 22 39 534
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1303 691 0 0 702 0
          Stage 1 691 - - - - -
          Stage 2 612 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.41 6.21 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.41 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.41 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.509 3.309 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 178 446 - - 895 -
          Stage 1 499 - - - - -
          Stage 2 543 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 167 446 - - 895 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 167 - - - - -
          Stage 1 499 - - - - -
          Stage 2 509 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 16.1 0 0.6
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 387 895 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.16 0.044 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 16.1 9.2 0
HCM Lane LOS - - C A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.6 0.1 -

294 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 80 545 5 80 400
Future Volume (vph) 1 80 545 5 80 400
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.866 0.999
Flt Protected 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1581 0 1861 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1581 0 1861 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 91 619 6 91 455
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 92 0 625 0 91 455
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.4% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

295 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.7

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 80 545 5 80 400
Future Vol, veh/h 1 80 545 5 80 400
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 88 88 88 88 88 88
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 91 619 6 91 455
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1258 622 0 0 625 0
          Stage 1 622 - - - - -
          Stage 2 636 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.24 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.44 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.44 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.536 3.336 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 187 483 - - 956 -
          Stage 1 532 - - - - -
          Stage 2 524 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 169 483 - - 956 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 169 - - - - -
          Stage 1 532 - - - - -
          Stage 2 474 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.5 0 1.5
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 472 956 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.195 0.095 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 14.5 9.2 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.7 0.3 -

296 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 85 1 10 80 1 1 1 10 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 1 85 1 10 80 1 1 1 10 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.999 0.999 0.884 0.955
Flt Protected 0.995 0.996 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1879 0 0 1749 0 0 1593 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.996 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1879 0 0 1749 0 0 1593 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 8% 8% 8% 5% 5% 5% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 102 1 12 96 1 1 1 12 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 104 0 0 109 0 0 14 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 20.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

297 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 85 1 10 80 1 1 1 10 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 85 1 10 80 1 1 1 10 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 8 8 8 5 5 5 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 1 102 1 12 96 1 1 1 12 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 98 0 0 104 0 0 227 227 103 233 227 97
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 105 105 - 121 121 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 122 122 - 112 106 -
Critical Hdwy 4.11 - - 4.18 - - 7.15 6.55 6.25 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.15 5.55 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.15 5.55 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.209 - - 2.272 - - 3.545 4.045 3.345 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1501 - - 1451 - - 722 667 944 724 674 962
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 893 803 - 886 798 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 875 789 - 895 809 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1501 - - 1451 - - 715 660 944 708 667 962
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 715 660 - 708 667 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 892 802 - 885 791 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 865 782 - 881 808 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.1 0.8 9.1 9.8
HCM LOS A A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 888 1501 - - 1451 - - 759
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.016 0.001 - - 0.008 - - 0.005
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.1 7.4 0 - 7.5 0 - 9.8
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0

298 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing evening peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 60 745 35 50 555
Future Volume (vph) 10 60 745 35 50 555
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.885 0.994
Flt Protected 0.993 0.996
Satd. Flow (prot) 1637 0 1870 0 0 1874
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.996
Satd. Flow (perm) 1637 0 1870 0 0 1874
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 65 801 38 54 597
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 76 0 839 0 0 651
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 81.6% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

299 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing evening peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 60 745 35 50 555
Future Vol, veh/h 10 60 745 35 50 555
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 11 65 801 38 54 597
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1524 820 0 0 839 0
          Stage 1 820 - - - - -
          Stage 2 704 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.11 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.209 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 130 375 - - 800 -
          Stage 1 433 - - - - -
          Stage 2 490 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 117 375 - - 800 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 117 - - - - -
          Stage 1 433 - - - - -
          Stage 2 441 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 22.1 0 0.8
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 285 800 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.264 0.067 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 22.1 9.8 0
HCM Lane LOS - - C A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 1 0.2 -

300 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing evening peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 95 685 5 70 495
Future Volume (vph) 5 95 685 5 70 495
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.871 0.999
Flt Protected 0.998 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1635 0 1879 0 1787 1881
Flt Permitted 0.998 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1635 0 1879 0 1787 1881
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 5 102 737 5 75 532
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 107 0 742 0 75 532
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 56.4% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15

301 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing evening peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 95 685 5 70 495
Future Vol, veh/h 5 95 685 5 70 495
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 5 102 737 5 75 532
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1422 739 0 0 742 0
          Stage 1 739 - - - - -
          Stage 2 683 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.41 6.21 - - 4.11 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.41 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.41 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.509 3.309 - - 2.209 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 151 419 - - 870 -
          Stage 1 474 - - - - -
          Stage 2 503 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 138 419 - - 870 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 138 - - - - -
          Stage 1 474 - - - - -
          Stage 2 460 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 18.2 0 1.2
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 380 870 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.283 0.087 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 18.2 9.5 -
HCM Lane LOS - - C A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 1.1 0.3 -

302 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing evening peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 70 5 5 100 5 1 1 5 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 1 70 5 5 100 5 1 1 5 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.991 0.994 0.899 0.955
Flt Protected 0.999 0.998 0.994 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1862 0 0 1866 0 0 1681 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.998 0.994 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1862 0 0 1866 0 0 1681 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 80 6 6 115 6 1 1 6 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 87 0 0 127 0 0 8 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 18.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

303 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
existing evening peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 70 5 5 100 5 1 1 5 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 70 5 5 100 5 1 1 5 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 1 80 6 6 115 6 1 1 6 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 121 0 0 86 0 0 216 218 83 218 218 118
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 86 86 - 129 129 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 130 132 - 89 89 -
Critical Hdwy 4.11 - - 4.11 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.209 - - 2.209 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1473 - - 1517 - - 743 682 979 740 682 937
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 924 826 - 877 791 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 876 789 - 921 823 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1473 - - 1517 - - 738 679 979 732 679 937
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 738 679 - 732 679 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 923 825 - 876 788 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 870 786 - 913 822 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.1 0.3 9.1 9.7
HCM LOS A A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 882 1473 - - 1517 - - 768
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.009 0.001 - - 0.004 - - 0.004
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.1 7.4 0 - 7.4 0 - 9.7
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 0 - - 0 - - 0

304 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total am peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 70 320 25 55 645
Future Volume (vph) 10 70 320 25 55 645
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.882 0.990
Flt Protected 0.994 0.996
Satd. Flow (prot) 1571 0 1809 0 0 1855
Flt Permitted 0.994 0.996
Satd. Flow (perm) 1571 0 1809 0 0 1855
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 6% 6% 4% 4% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 77 352 27 60 709
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 88 0 379 0 0 769
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 70.2% ICU Level of Service C
Analysis Period (min) 15

305 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total am peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.3

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 70 320 25 55 645
Future Vol, veh/h 10 70 320 25 55 645
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 6 6 4 4 2 2
Mvmt Flow 11 77 352 27 60 709
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1195 365 0 0 379 0
          Stage 1 365 - - - - -
          Stage 2 830 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.46 6.26 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.46 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.46 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.554 3.354 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 202 671 - - 1179 -
          Stage 1 694 - - - - -
          Stage 2 421 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 185 671 - - 1179 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 185 - - - - -
          Stage 1 694 - - - - -
          Stage 2 386 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.6 0 0.6
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 505 1179 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.174 0.051 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 13.6 8.2 0
HCM Lane LOS - - B A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.6 0.2 -

306 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total am peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 80 265 5 130 525
Future Volume (vph) 1 80 265 5 130 525
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.867 0.998
Flt Protected 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1598 0 1806 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1598 0 1806 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 3% 3% 5% 5% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 88 291 5 143 577
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 89 0 296 0 143 577
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 39.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

307 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total am peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 80 265 5 130 525
Future Vol, veh/h 1 80 265 5 130 525
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 3 5 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 88 291 5 143 577
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1157 294 0 0 297 0
          Stage 1 294 - - - - -
          Stage 2 863 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.43 6.23 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.43 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.43 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.527 3.327 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 216 743 - - 1264 -
          Stage 1 754 - - - - -
          Stage 2 411 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 192 743 - - 1264 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 192 - - - - -
          Stage 1 754 - - - - -
          Stage 2 365 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 10.7 0 1.6
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 718 1264 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.124 0.113 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 10.7 8.2 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.4 0.4 -

308 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total am peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 40 130 20 5 75 5 5 10 5 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 40 130 20 5 75 5 5 10 5 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.986 0.992 0.968 0.955
Flt Protected 0.989 0.997 0.988 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1782 0 0 1708 0 0 1799 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.989 0.997 0.988 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1782 0 0 1708 0 0 1799 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 10% 10% 10% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 43 138 21 5 80 5 5 11 5 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 202 0 0 90 0 0 21 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 26.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

309 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total am peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 40 130 20 5 75 5 5 10 5 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 40 130 20 5 75 5 5 10 5 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 10 10 10 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 43 138 21 5 80 5 5 11 5 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 85 0 0 160 0 0 328 330 149 335 338 82
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 234 234 - 93 93 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 94 96 - 242 245 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 4.2 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - 2.29 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1499 - - 1372 - - 627 591 900 621 585 980
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 771 713 - 916 820 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 915 817 - 764 705 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1499 - - 1372 - - 608 570 900 592 564 980
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 608 570 - 592 564 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 746 690 - 887 817 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 909 814 - 724 682 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 1.6 0.4 10.8 10.4
HCM LOS B B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 639 1499 - - 1372 - - 669
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.033 0.028 - - 0.004 - - 0.005
HCM Control Delay (s) 10.8 7.5 0 - 7.6 0 - 10.4
HCM Lane LOS B A A - A A - B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0.1 - - 0 - - 0

310 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 65 615 30 50 480
Future Volume (vph) 10 65 615 30 50 480
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.883 0.994
Flt Protected 0.993 0.995
Satd. Flow (prot) 1649 0 1852 0 0 1853
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.995
Satd. Flow (perm) 1649 0 1852 0 0 1853
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 73 691 34 56 539
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 84 0 725 0 0 595
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 76.8% ICU Level of Service D
Analysis Period (min) 15

311 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.5

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 65 615 30 50 480
Future Vol, veh/h 10 65 615 30 50 480
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 11 73 691 34 56 539
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1360 708 0 0 725 0
          Stage 1 708 - - - - -
          Stage 2 652 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.41 6.21 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.41 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.41 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.509 3.309 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 164 436 - - 878 -
          Stage 1 490 - - - - -
          Stage 2 520 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 149 436 - - 878 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 149 - - - - -
          Stage 1 490 - - - - -
          Stage 2 473 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 18.7 0 0.9
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 347 878 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.243 0.064 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 18.7 9.4 0
HCM Lane LOS - - C A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.9 0.2 -

312 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 85 560 10 80 410
Future Volume (vph) 1 85 560 10 80 410
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.866 0.998
Flt Protected 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1581 0 1859 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1581 0 1859 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88 0.88
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 97 636 11 91 466
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 98 0 647 0 91 466
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 49.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

313 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 85 560 10 80 410
Future Vol, veh/h 1 85 560 10 80 410
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 88 88 88 88 88 88
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 97 636 11 91 466
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1290 642 0 0 648 0
          Stage 1 642 - - - - -
          Stage 2 648 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.24 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.44 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.44 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.536 3.336 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 179 471 - - 938 -
          Stage 1 520 - - - - -
          Stage 2 517 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 162 471 - - 938 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 162 - - - - -
          Stage 1 520 - - - - -
          Stage 2 467 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.9 0 1.5
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 461 938 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.212 0.097 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 14.9 9.2 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.8 0.3 -

314 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 25 90 15 10 85 1 1 5 10 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 25 90 15 10 85 1 1 5 10 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.984 0.999 0.915 0.955
Flt Protected 0.990 0.995 0.997 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1833 0 0 1749 0 0 1651 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.990 0.995 0.997 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1833 0 0 1749 0 0 1651 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83 0.83
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 8% 8% 8% 5% 5% 5% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 30 108 18 12 102 1 1 6 12 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 156 0 0 115 0 0 19 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 21.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

315 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2017 total afternoon (school discharge) peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 25 90 15 10 85 1 1 5 10 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 25 90 15 10 85 1 1 5 10 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 8 8 8 5 5 5 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 30 108 18 12 102 1 1 6 12 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 104 0 0 127 0 0 306 306 117 314 314 103
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 178 178 - 127 127 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 128 128 - 187 187 -
Critical Hdwy 4.11 - - 4.18 - - 7.15 6.55 6.25 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.15 5.55 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.15 5.55 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.209 - - 2.272 - - 3.545 4.045 3.345 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1494 - - 1423 - - 641 603 927 641 603 955
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 817 746 - 879 793 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 869 784 - 817 747 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1494 - - 1423 - - 624 584 927 613 584 955
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 624 584 - 613 584 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 799 730 - 860 786 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 859 777 - 782 731 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 1.4 0.8 9.8 10.3
HCM LOS A B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 764 1494 - - 1423 - - 683
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.025 0.02 - - 0.008 - - 0.005
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.8 7.5 0 - 7.6 0 - 10.3
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - B
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0.1 - - 0 - - 0

316 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 45 325 10 30 650
Future Volume (vph) 5 45 325 10 30 650
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.877 0.996
Flt Protected 0.995 0.998
Satd. Flow (prot) 1564 0 1820 0 0 1859
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.998
Satd. Flow (perm) 1564 0 1820 0 0 1859
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 6% 6% 4% 4% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 5 49 357 11 33 714
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 54 0 368 0 0 747
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 66.9% ICU Level of Service C
Analysis Period (min) 15

317 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 45 325 10 30 650
Future Vol, veh/h 5 45 325 10 30 650
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 6 6 4 4 2 2
Mvmt Flow 5 49 357 11 33 714
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1143 363 0 0 368 0
          Stage 1 363 - - - - -
          Stage 2 780 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.16 6.26 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.16 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.16 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.554 3.354 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 174 673 - - 1191 -
          Stage 1 648 - - - - -
          Stage 2 382 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 168 673 - - 1191 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 168 - - - - -
          Stage 1 648 - - - - -
          Stage 2 364 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 12.8 0 0.4
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 517 1191 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.106 0.028 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 12.8 8.1 0
HCM Lane LOS - - B A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.4 0.1 -

318 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 15 80 255 5 135 520
Future Volume (vph) 15 80 255 5 135 520
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.886 0.998
Flt Protected 0.992 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1621 0 1806 0 1770 1863
Flt Permitted 0.992 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1621 0 1806 0 1770 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 3% 3% 5% 5% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 16 88 280 5 148 571
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 104 0 285 0 148 571
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 39.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

319 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.4

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 15 80 255 5 135 520
Future Vol, veh/h 15 80 255 5 135 520
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 3 5 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 16 88 280 5 148 571
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1151 283 0 0 286 0
          Stage 1 283 - - - - -
          Stage 2 868 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.43 6.23 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.43 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.43 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.527 3.327 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 218 754 - - 1276 -
          Stage 1 763 - - - - -
          Stage 2 409 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 193 754 - - 1276 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 193 - - - - -
          Stage 1 763 - - - - -
          Stage 2 362 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.7 0 1.7
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 517 1276 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.202 0.116 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 13.7 8.2 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0.7 0.4 -

320 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 120 5 5 70 1 15 1 5 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 1 120 5 5 70 1 15 1 5 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.995 0.998 0.969 0.955
Flt Protected 0.997 0.965 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1818 0 0 1719 0 0 1759 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.997 0.965 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1818 0 0 1719 0 0 1759 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 10% 10% 10% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 128 5 5 74 1 16 1 5 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 134 0 0 80 0 0 22 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 17.1% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

321 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.3

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 120 5 5 70 1 15 1 5 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 120 5 5 70 1 15 1 5 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 10 10 10 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 1 128 5 5 74 1 16 1 5 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 76 0 0 133 0 0 219 218 130 222 221 75
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 132 132 - 86 86 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 87 86 - 136 135 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 4.2 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - 2.29 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1510 - - 1404 - - 739 682 922 736 679 989
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 874 789 - 924 826 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 923 826 - 870 787 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1510 - - 1404 - - 735 679 922 728 676 989
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 735 679 - 728 676 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 873 788 - 923 823 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 917 823 - 863 786 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.1 0.5 9.8 9.7
HCM LOS A A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 769 1510 - - 1404 - - 776
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.029 0.001 - - 0.004 - - 0.004
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.8 7.4 0 - 7.6 0 - 9.7
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 0 - - 0 - - 0

322 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
350: Washington Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 7

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 5 255 0 0 535
Future Volume (vph) 0 5 255 0 0 535
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.865
Flt Protected
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1627 1810 0 0 1863
Flt Permitted
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1627 1810 0 0 1863
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 150 578 240
Travel Time (s) 4.1 15.8 6.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91 0.91
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 5% 5% 2% 2%
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 5 280 0 0 588
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 5 280 0 0 588
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 31.5% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

323 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
350: Washington Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 8

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 5 255 0 0 535
Future Vol, veh/h 0 5 255 0 0 535
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - 0 - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 5 5 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 5 280 0 0 588
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All - 280 0 0 280 0
          Stage 1 - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy - 6.21 - - 4.12 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy - 3.309 - - 2.218 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 761 - - 1283 -
          Stage 1 0 - - - - -
          Stage 2 0 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 761 - - 1283 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - -
          Stage 1 - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 9.8 0 0
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 761 1283 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.007 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 9.8 0 -
HCM Lane LOS - - A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0 0 -

324 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
400: Driveway & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 135 5 1 85 1 5 1 1 1 1 5
Future Volume (vph) 1 135 5 1 85 1 5 1 1 1 1 5
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.995 0.999 0.981 0.904
Flt Protected 0.999 0.966 0.993
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1818 0 0 1724 0 0 1783 0 0 1689 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.966 0.993
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1818 0 0 1724 0 0 1783 0 0 1689 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 326 115 106
Travel Time (s) 9.5 8.9 3.1 2.9
Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 4% 4% 10% 10% 10% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 144 5 1 90 1 5 1 1 1 1 5
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 150 0 0 92 0 0 7 0 0 7 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 18.0% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

325 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
400: Driveway & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 135 5 1 85 1 5 1 1 1 1 5
Future Vol, veh/h 1 135 5 1 85 1 5 1 1 1 1 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94 94
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 10 10 10 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 1 144 5 1 90 1 5 1 1 1 1 5
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 91 0 0 149 0 0 244 242 146 242 244 91
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 148 148 - 93 93 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 96 94 - 149 151 -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - 4.2 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.236 - - 2.29 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1491 - - 1385 - - 712 661 904 714 660 969
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 857 777 - 916 820 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 913 819 - 856 774 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1491 - - 1385 - - 706 660 904 711 659 969
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 706 660 - 711 659 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 856 776 - 915 819 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 906 818 - 853 773 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.1 0.1 10 9.2
HCM LOS B A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 721 1491 - - 1385 - - 866
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.01 0.001 - - 0.001 - - 0.009
HCM Control Delay (s) 10 7.4 0 - 7.6 0 - 9.2
HCM Lane LOS B A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 0 - - 0 - - 0

326 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
450: Hilgen Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 1 1 10 5 5
Future Volume (vph) 10 1 1 10 5 5
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.989 0.932
Flt Protected 0.956 0.996
Satd. Flow (prot) 1779 0 0 1874 1753 0
Flt Permitted 0.956 0.996
Satd. Flow (perm) 1779 0 0 1874 1753 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 200 229 230
Travel Time (s) 5.5 6.2 6.3
Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 1 1 11 5 5
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 12 0 0 12 10 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

327 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
450: Hilgen Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build am peak Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 3.2

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 1 1 10 5 5
Future Vol, veh/h 10 1 1 10 5 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 11 1 1 11 5 5
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 21 8 11 0 - 0
          Stage 1 8 - - - - -
          Stage 2 13 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.41 6.21 4.11 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.41 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.41 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.509 3.309 2.209 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 998 1077 1615 - - -
          Stage 1 1018 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1012 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 997 1077 1615 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 997 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1018 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1011 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.6 0.7 0
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1615 - 1004 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - 0.012 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.2 0 8.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0 - -

328 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 1

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 60 755 35 50 570
Future Volume (vph) 10 60 755 35 50 570
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.885 0.994
Flt Protected 0.993 0.996
Satd. Flow (prot) 1637 0 1870 0 0 1874
Flt Permitted 0.993 0.996
Satd. Flow (perm) 1637 0 1870 0 0 1874
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 600 160 432
Travel Time (s) 16.4 4.4 11.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 65 812 38 54 613
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 76 0 850 0 0 667
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 82.3% ICU Level of Service E
Analysis Period (min) 15

329 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
100: Washington Avenue & Spring Street 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 60 755 35 50 570
Future Vol, veh/h 10 60 755 35 50 570
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 11 65 812 38 54 613
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1551 831 0 0 849 0
          Stage 1 831 - - - - -
          Stage 2 720 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 - - 4.11 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 - - 2.209 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 125 370 - - 793 -
          Stage 1 428 - - - - -
          Stage 2 482 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 112 370 - - 793 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 112 - - - - -
          Stage 1 428 - - - - -
          Stage 2 432 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 22.7 0 0.8
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 278 793 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.271 0.068 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 22.7 9.9 0
HCM Lane LOS - - C A A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 1.1 0.2 -

330 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 3

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 10 100 690 25 80 500
Future Volume (vph) 10 100 690 25 80 500
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.877 0.995
Flt Protected 0.995 0.950
Satd. Flow (prot) 1642 0 1872 0 1787 1881
Flt Permitted 0.995 0.950
Satd. Flow (perm) 1642 0 1872 0 1787 1881
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 240 160
Travel Time (s) 9.5 6.5 4.4
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 11 108 742 27 86 538
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 119 0 769 0 86 538
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 12 12 12
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 59.0% ICU Level of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15

331 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
200: Washington Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.2

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 100 690 25 80 500
Future Vol, veh/h 10 100 690 25 80 500
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 11 108 742 27 86 538
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1465 755 0 0 769 0
          Stage 1 755 - - - - -
          Stage 2 710 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.41 6.21 - - 4.11 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.41 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.41 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.509 3.309 - - 2.209 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 142 410 - - 850 -
          Stage 1 466 - - - - -
          Stage 2 489 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 128 410 - - 850 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 128 - - - - -
          Stage 1 466 - - - - -
          Stage 2 440 - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 21 0 1.3
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 342 850 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.346 0.101 -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 21 9.7 -
HCM Lane LOS - - C A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 1.5 0.3 -

332 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 5

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 1 70 15 5 100 5 5 1 5 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 1 70 15 5 100 5 5 1 5 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.977 0.994 0.938 0.955
Flt Protected 0.999 0.998 0.977 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1836 0 0 1866 0 0 1724 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.999 0.998 0.977 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1836 0 0 1866 0 0 1724 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 326 395 230 470
Travel Time (s) 8.9 10.8 6.3 12.8
Peak Hour Factor 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 1 80 17 6 115 6 6 1 6 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 98 0 0 127 0 0 13 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 18.6% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

333 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
300: Hilgen Avenue & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 6

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 70 15 5 100 5 5 1 5 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 70 15 5 100 5 5 1 5 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 1 80 17 6 115 6 6 1 6 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 121 0 0 98 0 0 221 223 89 224 229 118
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 91 91 - 129 129 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 130 132 - 95 100 -
Critical Hdwy 4.11 - - 4.11 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.209 - - 2.209 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1473 - - 1501 - - 737 678 972 734 672 937
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 919 821 - 877 791 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 876 789 - 914 814 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1473 - - 1501 - - 732 675 972 726 669 937
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 732 675 - 726 669 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 918 820 - 876 788 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 870 786 - 906 813 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.1 0.3 9.5 9.7
HCM LOS A A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 817 1473 - - 1501 - - 762
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.015 0.001 - - 0.004 - - 0.005
HCM Control Delay (s) 9.5 7.4 0 - 7.4 0 - 9.7
HCM Lane LOS A A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 0 - - 0 - - 0

334 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
350: Washington Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 7

Lane Group WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 1 715 0 0 510
Future Volume (vph) 0 1 715 0 0 510
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.865
Flt Protected
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1627 1881 0 0 1881
Flt Permitted
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1627 1881 0 0 1881
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 150 578 240
Travel Time (s) 4.1 15.8 6.5
Peak Hour Factor 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93 0.93
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 0 1 769 0 0 548
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 1 769 0 0 548
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Right Left Left
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 9 15
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 47.6% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

335 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
350: Washington Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 8

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL SBT
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 1 715 0 0 510
Future Vol, veh/h 0 1 715 0 0 510
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - 0 - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - 0 - - 0
Grade, % 0 - 0 - - 0
Peak Hour Factor 93 93 93 93 93 93
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 0 1 769 0 0 548
 

Major/Minor Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All - 769 0 0 769 0
          Stage 1 - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy - 6.21 - - 4.11 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy - 3.309 - - 2.209 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 403 - - 850 -
          Stage 1 0 - - - - -
          Stage 2 0 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 403 - - 850 -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - -
          Stage 1 - - - - - -
          Stage 2 - - - - - -
 

Approach WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14 0 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBT NBRWBLn1 SBL SBT
Capacity (veh/h) - - 403 850 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - 0.003 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) - - 14 0 -
HCM Lane LOS - - B A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) - - 0 0 -

336 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
400: Driveway & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 9

Lane Group EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 85 15 1 105 1 5 1 1 1 1 1
Future Volume (vph) 5 85 15 1 105 1 5 1 1 1 1 1
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.981 0.999 0.983 0.955
Flt Protected 0.998 0.964 0.984
Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1842 0 0 1879 0 0 1783 0 0 1768 0
Flt Permitted 0.998 0.964 0.984
Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1842 0 0 1879 0 0 1783 0 0 1768 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 350 326 115 106
Travel Time (s) 9.5 8.9 3.1 2.9
Peak Hour Factor 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 6 98 17 1 121 1 6 1 1 1 1 1
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 121 0 0 123 0 0 8 0 0 3 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Free Free Stop Stop

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 18.7% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

337 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
400: Driveway & Hamilton Road 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 10

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 85 15 1 105 1 5 1 1 1 1 1
Future Vol, veh/h 5 85 15 1 105 1 5 1 1 1 1 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 6 98 17 1 121 1 6 1 1 1 1 1
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 122 0 0 115 0 0 243 242 106 243 250 121
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 118 118 - 124 124 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 125 124 - 119 126 -
Critical Hdwy 4.11 - - 4.11 - - 7.11 6.51 6.21 7.11 6.51 6.21
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - - - 6.11 5.51 - 6.11 5.51 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.209 - - 2.209 - - 3.509 4.009 3.309 3.509 4.009 3.309
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1472 - - 1480 - - 713 661 951 713 655 933
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 889 800 - 882 795 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 881 795 - 888 794 -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1472 - - 1480 - - 708 658 951 708 652 933
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 708 658 - 708 652 -
          Stage 1 - - - - - - 885 797 - 878 794 -
          Stage 2 - - - - - - 878 794 - 882 791 -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.4 0.1 10 9.8
HCM LOS B A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 727 1472 - - 1480 - - 747
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.011 0.004 - - 0.001 - - 0.005
HCM Control Delay (s) 10 7.5 0 - 7.4 0 - 9.8
HCM Lane LOS B A A - A A - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 0 - - 0 - - 0

338 of 381



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
450: Hilgen Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 11

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph) 5 1 1 5 10 10
Future Volume (vph) 5 1 1 5 10 10
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Frt 0.981 0.932
Flt Protected 0.959 0.993
Satd. Flow (prot) 1770 0 0 1868 1753 0
Flt Permitted 0.959 0.993
Satd. Flow (perm) 1770 0 0 1868 1753 0
Link Speed (mph) 25 25 25
Link Distance (ft) 200 229 230
Travel Time (s) 5.5 6.2 6.3
Peak Hour Factor 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
Heavy Vehicles (%) 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Adj. Flow (vph) 6 1 1 6 11 11
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph) 7 0 0 7 22 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Right Left Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 12 0 0
Link Offset(ft) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9
Sign Control Stop Free Free

Intersection Summary
Area Type: Other
Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 13.3% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

339 of 381



HCM 2010 TWSC
450: Hilgen Avenue & Driveway 04/21/2017

TADI Synchro 9 Report
Year 2018 build evening peak Page 12

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.8

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 5 1 1 5 10 10
Future Vol, veh/h 5 1 1 5 10 10
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 1 1 1 1 1 1
Mvmt Flow 6 1 1 6 11 11
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 25 17 23 0 - 0
          Stage 1 17 - - - - -
          Stage 2 8 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.41 6.21 4.11 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.41 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.41 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.509 3.309 2.209 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 993 1065 1599 - - -
          Stage 1 1008 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1018 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 992 1065 1599 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 992 - - - - -
          Stage 1 1008 - - - - -
          Stage 2 1017 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 8.6 1.2 0
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1599 - 1003 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - 0.007 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.3 0 8.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0 - -

340 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 8, 2017                                                                               ITEM NO:   9. A. 

                           

TITLE:   Consider approval of a Revolving Loan Fund loan for TemperaturePro; and action thereon 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY:  Ken Theiler of TemperaturePro has applied for a $70,000 loan through the City’s 

revolving loan fund program (RLF).  The funds will be used s working capital as part of his start-up costs and 

will be matched with funds from Mr. Theiler.   

 

The ad hoc debt/investment committee reviewed the request along with collateralization and income statement 

projections and have recommended approval of the loan. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   N/A 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:   The ad hoc Debt/Investment 

Advisory Committee met on Tuesday, May 2, 2017 and unanimously recommended approval.  Bob Loomis 

was excused from the meeting. 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:  None.  This program is funded through State funds from the Community 

Development Block Grant program (CDBG); a special revenue fund. 

                    

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    Memo from Kathleen Cady Schilling, Executive Director of Ozaukee Economic 

Development 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Ken Theiler, TemperaturePro 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Christy Mertes, Administrator/Treasurer, 376-3907 
      

  

 

341 of 381



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Cedarburg Ad Hoc Financial Committee 
 
FROM: Kathleen Cady Schilling, Executive Director 
 Ozaukee Economic Development 
 
DATE:  April 26, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: REVOLVING LOAN FUND LOAN: TemperaturePro 
 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a summary and staff analysis of the 
request from TemperaturePro for a Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) loan for working capital 
as part of his start-up costs.   
 
Background 
 
TemperturePro is a customer-oriented nationwide Heating, Ventilation and Air 
Conditioning (HVAC) franchise.  Ken Theiler opened a Cedarburg franchise in 2016.  
The company looks to succeed, by combining a nationwide network and a hometown 
personal touch. 
 
Although, the owner, Ken Theiler, does not have HVAC experience, he does bring an 
outsider perspective with a lot of business experience.  He has spent 20 years in 
business, mainly with Johnson and Johnson managing global businesses.  He also has 
an MBA from the University of Michigan with a specialization in marketing.  The key, thy 
feel to the business, is creating fast, professional and affordable service.   
 
He has already hired a couple of outstanding technicians and is working with them to 
create a management philosophy and way of doing business that puts the customer 
first.  The company provides 100% satisfaction guarantee on all of its work.   

342 of 381



-2- 

Over its first eight months of business, the company has seen increasing sales.  
However, with the cost of doing business as is not uncommon with a new business, the 
company was in the red for six out of the eight months.  The company expects to 
continue to lose money through the first three quarters of 2017, (it made money in 
January, but saw a loss in February, the most recent financials available.) upon where it 
will begin to see a profit.  It sees that 2018 will end out of the red with a significant profit 
and that 2019 will see the company continue its profitability. 
 
Funding Request 
 
The Company is requesting that the $70,000 RLF loan be provided with a term and 
amortization of five years and an interest rate of 2 percent. With the current financial 
projections, the company is requesting a 6 month deferral of principal.  The match 
financing is a new equity gift line that the owner will be provide to the company.  As this 
is an equity infusion, there is no term or rate.  
 
The collateral available to secure the loan would be a security lien on business assets, 
the unlimited personal guaranty of Ken Theiler, and a mortgage on the Theiler 
residence at N31 W7117 Lincoln Boulevard that is junior to one mortgage totaling 
$300,000. The market value of the property is $640,000 and was purchased for 
$618,000. 
  
The Company has agreed to create at least two new full-time equivalent jobs in 
exchange for the RLF loan. The jobs would be recruited through the Ozaukee County 
Workforce Development Center and the company would agree to submit income survey 
information on all applicants.  The company agrees to hire 51% of its employees from 
low to moderate income households. 
 
Contingencies 
 
If the County approves the loan request, it is recommended that the following conditions 
accompany the approval: 
 
1. That a $70,000 RLF loan is provided to TemperaturePro. The loan would be used 

for working capital as part of its start-up costs. 
 
2. That an equity infusion of $70,000 is provided to the Company by the owner. 

 
3. That the RLF loan is provided with a five-year term and amortization and an 

interest rate of 2 percent.  
 

4. That the RLF loan have a six month deferral of principal payments. 
 

5. That the loan is secured with the collateral identified above. 
 
6. That the Company creates two new full-time equivalent positions within 24 months 

of the closing on the RLF loan and that the new jobs are made available through 

343 of 381



-3- 

the Ozaukee County Workforce Development Center. Additionally, the company 
agrees to hire 51% of its employees from low to moderate income households.   

 
7. That the Company provides to the City, or its designee, on an annual basis, semi-

annual financial statements that are certified by the borrower, annual financial 
statements that are compiled by a certified public accountant, and signed copies of 
the corporate Federal income tax return.  

 
*  *  * 

 
 
 
 

344 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2017                                                                          ITEM NO:  9. B. 

 

 

TITLE: Consider proposal from Ruekert & Mielke for Cedarburg to participate in the Mid Moraine Water 

Quality Collective; and action thereon. 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: Storm water regulations have been evolving, and to better address the new Total 

Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) some communities have banded together to attack the problem on more of a 

watershed basis. Ruekert & Mielke has teamed up with Graef to form the Mid Moraine Water Quality 

Collective. The group represents communities in Ozaukee and Washington Counties, and presently includes: 

Cedarburg, Mequon, West Bend, Campbellsport, Fredonia, Grafton, Jackson, Kewaskum, Newburg, Saukville, 

Thiensville, and the Town of Grafton. 

 

Per the attached proposal, Cedarburg’s cost share to retain membership in this group for 2017 is not-to-exceed 

$5,000, based on hourly consultant rates and actual expenses.     

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: A regional approach to storm water clean-up makes sense, and there are 

many regulatory unknowns at this time. The Mid Moraine group would be helpful in navigating the new DNR 

regulations, but there is additional cost involved. 

 

AECOM presently compiles our annual report, completes the Illicit Discharge Elimination Program, and 

prepares the DNR required storm water modelling and ordinance updates.   

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A   

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Estimated $5,000 for participation in the Mid Moraine Water Quality Collective in 

2017.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Ruekert & Mielke proposal 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza - Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza 262-375-7610                            
 
 
 
 

 

345 of 381



346 of 381



347 of 381



348 of 381



349 of 381



350 of 381



351 of 381



352 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: May 8, 2017                                                                          ITEM NO:  9. C. 

                           

 

 

TITLE: Consider engineering proposal from GRAEF for additional testing and analysis of the Columbia Mills 

Dam per DNR requirements; and action thereon. 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: Graef is currently preparing plans for various DNR mandated repairs to the Woolen 

Mills and Columbia Mills dams. As part of their review process, DNR is requiring additional testing of the 

bedrock, as well as a stability analysis of the existing Columbia Mills Dam structure. 

 

This work was not included in the original engineering services proposal, and Graef has requested a contract 

amendment in the amount of $5,850 to complete the additional work. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends amending Graef’s engineering services contract to 

include the additional studies requested by DNR. 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A.   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: $5,850 from Environmental Fund. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Copy of Graef’s proposal   

                                   

                                  

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza 

 

  

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza-Director of Engineering and Public Works 

                                                                262-375-7610 
 
 
 

 

353 of 381



354 of 381



355 of 381



356 of 381



357 of 381



358 of 381



359 of 381



360 of 381



 

 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
MEETING DATE:  May 8, 2017                                                               ITEM NO: 9. D. 
 
TITLE: Consider request from WE Energies to rent the former remote receiving station at N144 
W588 Pioneer Road from June 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018 for outdoor storage of power poles, cables, 
trucks and switchgear; and action thereon.   
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  WE Energies informs us that they will be doing work in the area and in 
preparation for that work they are now searching for a site to serve their temporary storage needs. 
Since they have been unsuccessful in working with private land owners in the area, they are 
requesting to use the City’s former receiving station at N144 W5888 Pioneer Road. This site is 

approximately 1 acre in size, is secure by a 6 foot high chain link fence with vegetative screening 
around the periphery and is supported by a 9 inch thick concrete drive. WE Energies proposes to 
rent the space for $400.00 per month.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: While the site appears to be unused at the moment, the Police 
Department does use this as an impound site on a periodic basis. Accordingly, unless the Police 
Department has objects to the co-use of this use, staff has no objection.  
 
BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  $400.00 X 10 months = $4,000.00 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 WE Energies Storage Agreement and Certificate of Insurance 
 
INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Douglas Hartmann, WE Energies  
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Jonathan P. Censky, City Planner, 262-375-7610 
 
 

361 of 381



362 of 381



363 of 381



364 of 381



365 of 381



366 of 381



367 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: May 8, 2017                                                                          ITEM NO:  9. E. 

                         

 

TITLE: Consider appeal of the WPDES permit and request for contested case hearing; and action thereon. 

 

 

 

ISSUE SUMMARY: Attorney Art Harrington of Godfrey & Kahn and Jonathon Butt of Symbiont have 

assisted staff in preparing an appeal of the new DNR permit for the wastewater treatment plant. The permit sets 

forth a very restrictive effluent phosphorus limit, and there are a number of technical issues that we believe are 

worth challenging.   

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the City file the appeal and request a contested case 

hearing for the re-issuance of the wastewater treatment plant permit.  

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Public Works and Sewerage 

Commission has discussed this issue multiple times in the last year.   

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Estimated $20,000 in legal and engineering consultant fees.  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Petition for review of final WPDES permit and request for contested case hearing will be 

presented at the meeting. 

 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY: Tom Wiza - Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT: Tom Wiza 262-375-7610 

                                                                Eric Hackert 262-375-7900 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

368 of 381



City of Cedarburg 

Resolution 2017-11 

International Migratory Bird Day  

 

  Whereas, migratory birds are some of the most beautiful and easily observed wildlife that share our 

communities, and 

 Whereas, many citizens recognize and welcome migratory songbirds as symbolic harbingers of 

spring, and  

 Whereas, these migrant species also play an important economic role in our community, 

controlling insect pests and generating millions in recreational dollars statewide, and 

 Whereas, migratory birds and their habitats are declining throughout the Americas, facing a 

growing number of threats on their migration routes and in both their summer and winter homes, 

and 

 Whereas, public awareness and concern are crucial components of migratory bird conservation, 

and 

 Whereas, citizens enthusiastic about birds, informed about the threats they face, and empowered to 

help address those threats can directly contribute to maintaining health bird populations, and 

 Whereas, since 1993 International Migratory Bird Day (IMBD) has become a primary vehicle for 

focusing public attention on the nearly 350 species that travel between nesting habitats in our 

communities and throughout North America and their wintering grounds in South and Central 

America, Mexico, the Caribbean, and the southern U.S., and 

 Whereas, hundreds of thousands of people will observe IMBD, gathering in town squares, 

community centers, schools, parks, nature centers,  and wildlife refuges to learn about birds, take 

action to conserve them, and simply to have fun, and 

 Whereas, while IMBD officially is held each year on the second Saturday in May, its observance 

is not limited to a single day, and planners are encouraged to schedule activities on the dates best 

suited to the presence of both migrants and celebrants, and  

 Whereas,  IMBD is not only a day to foster appreciation for wild birds and to celebrate and 

support migratory bird conservation, but also a call to action,  

 

NOW THEREFORE I, Kip Kinzel, as Mayor of the City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, do hereby proclaim May 

13, 2017 as  

International Migratory Bird Day 

in the City of Cedarburg, and I urge all citizens to celebrate this observance and to support efforts to protect and 

conserve migratory birds and their habitats in our community and the world at large. 

 

Dated  this 8
th

 day of May in the year 2017. 

 

Signed   ________________________________________ 

Title ________________________________________ 

369 of 381



 CITY OF CEDARBURG 
 

MEETING DATE: May 8, 2017                                                                  ITEM NO:   9. G. 

                           

TITLE:  Consider request for additional funding for purchase of a front end loader; and action thereon 

 

 

 

           

ISSUE SUMMARY:  A front end loader purchased by Public Works in 2011 has had an ongoing steering 

issue. In spite of John Deere’s persistent effort’s to service it, they haven’t been able to fully fix the problem. 

 

To resolve the issue, John Deere is offering to buy out the 2011 John Deere loader with the troubled steering, 

and is offering to replace this unit with a new one, provided the City purchase the loader we have in the budget 

from John Deere. This loader in the budget would replace the existing 2003 Case loader and plow. The offer 

proposed by John Deere would put us approximately $10,000 over our approved $235,000 Capital budget.                                                                                                                                                                                            

With this Proposal we would be getting two new front end loaders close to the price of one.  There are 

advantages in servicing and maintaining like units.   

                  

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve funding 

 

 

 

 

BOARD, COMMISSION OR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

          

 

 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: Increases the Public Works capital budget by $10,000.  Currently $235,000 is 

budgeted for the Case loader and plow replacement.  Funds not budgeted but would come from Capital 

Improvement equipment replacement fund. 

                   

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

                 

 

 

INITIATED/REQUESTED BY:  Tom Wiza, Joel Bublitz, and Bill Hintz 

 

                      

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT:  Joel Bublitz 375-7636 or jbublitz@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 

Bill Hintz 375-7636 or bhintz@ci.cedarburg.wi.us 
 

 

370 of 381

mailto:jbublitz@ci.cedarburg.wi.us
mailto:bhintz@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


371 of 381



372 of 381



373 of 381



374 of 381



375 of 381



376 of 381



377 of 381



378 of 381



379 of 381



380 of 381



PROCLAMATION 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedarburg is home to more than 2,500 citizens 60 years of age or older; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the older citizens in the City of Cedarburg and throughout the nation are an 

increasing population with evolving needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, older persons are valuable members of our society who enhance our communities 

and personal lives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the increasing number of baby boomers reaching traditional retirement age 

highlights the need for increased support of older adults; and  

 

WHEREAS, our older citizens of today and tomorrow promise to be among the most active and 

involved older adult populations in our nation’s history; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of this and all U.S. communities to work collaboratively to 

address older adults’ unique health and long-term care challenges; and 

 

 WHEREAS, communities can improve older citizens’ overall quality of life by helping them: 

 

 Make behavioral changes in their lifestyles than can reduce the risk of disease, disability, 

and injury; 

 

 Obtain the tools they need to make informed decisions about, and gain better access to, 

existing health and long-term care options in their communities; 

 

 Have more options to avoid placement in nursing homes and remain at home as long as 

possible. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Kip Kinzel, Mayor of the City of Cedarburg, Ozaukee County, 

Wisconsin, do hereby proclaim May 2017 to be Older Americans Month and urge everyone to take time 

this May to honor our older adults and the professionals, family members, and citizens who care for 

them.  Our efforts can improve the lives of our older citizens and help pave the way for future 

generations. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the official seal 

of the City of Cedarburg, this 8
th

 day of May 2017. 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Kip Kinzel, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 

Constance K. McHugh, City Clerk 

 

381 of 381


	Agenda
	CC Min 04 24 17
	CC Min 04 18 17
	CC & CDA Min 04 25 17
	Res 2017-10 - Vahsholtz
	Audit Presentation
	Draft - Audit Communication Letter
	Draft - Financial Statements 2016
	Draft - TID 3 Audit
	2016 Library Report
	Blue Sheet - Arabelle Traffic Study
	Arrabelle Traffic Study
	2068 Report Cover
	Page 1

	Cedarburdg TIA 042417
	2068 Cedarburg Exhibits
	1: 1-1
	2: 1-2
	3: 1-3
	4: 2-1
	5: 2-2
	6: 3-1
	7: 3-2
	8: 3-3
	9: 3-4
	10: 4-1
	11: 4-2
	12: 4-3
	13: 4-4
	14: 4-5
	15: 4-6
	16: 4-7
	17: 4-8

	Arrabelle Cedarburg TIA compiled appendix
	Appendix Cover Sheets 042417
	Arrabelle Cedarburg TIA compiled appendix
	compiled counts
	Washington & Spring Weekday Processed Counts school peaks
	Washington & Spring Weekday Processed Counts
	Washington & Hamilton Weekday Processed Counts school peaks
	Washington & Hamilton Weekday Processed Counts
	Hilgen & Hamilton Weekday Processed Counts school peaks
	Hilgen & Hamilton Weekday Processed Counts

	Gap Count
	growth rate backup
	Projection Data Cedarburg1
	Projection Data Cedarburg2
	Projection Data Cedarburg3
	Projection Data Cedarburg4

	exist am - Report
	exist pm1 - Report
	exist pm2 - Report
	2017 am - Report
	2017 pm1 - Report
	2018 am - Report
	2018 pm2 - Report



	Blue Sheet - TemperaturePro
	TemperaturePro Memo from County
	Blue Sheet - Water Quality Collective
	Ruekert Mielke Water Quality Proposal
	Blue Sheet - GRAEF Dam Proposal
	GRAEF Proposal - Dams
	Blue Sheet - WE Energies Storage Rental
	WE Energies Documents
	Blue Sheet - WPDES hearing request
	Res 2017-11 - Migratory Bird Day
	Blue Sheet - Front End Loader
	Bills
	City Administrators Report
	Building Inspectors Report - June
	Proclamation - Older Americans Month



